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REINVENTING THE SOCIAL SECURITY
ADMINISTRATION

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 28, 1993

House of Representatives,
Committee on Ways and Means,
Subcommittee on Social Security,

Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10 a.m., in room
B-318, Raybum House Office Building, Hon. Andrew Jacobs, Jr.

(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

[The press release announcing the hearing follows:!
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE PRESS RELEASE #8
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 1993 SUBCOMMITTEE ON SOCIAL SECURITY

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
1102 LONGWORTH HOUSE OFFICE BLDG.
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20515
TELEPHONE: (202) 225-1721

THE HONORABLE ANDY JACOBS, JR. (D., IND . ) , CHAIRMAN,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON SOCIAL SECURITY, COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS,

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, ANNOUNCES A HEARING ON
REINVENTING THE SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

The Honorable Andy Jacobs, Jr. (D., Ind.), Chairman,
Subcommittee on Social Security, Committee on Ways and Means,
U.S. House of Representatives, announced today that the
Subcommittee will hold a hearing on "reinventing" the Social
Security Administration (SSA) by implementing measures to
revitalize and streamline its operations. The hearing will be
held on Thursday, October 28, 1993, in room B-318 of the Rayburn
House Office Building, beginning at 10:00 a.m.

BACKGROUND:

The Clinton Administration has put forward a vision of
making the Federal government more efficient, competent, and
responsive to the people it serves. As part of its broad-scale
effort to "reinvent government," the Administration has proposed
to cut unnecessary spending, develop budgets based on outcomes,
empower employees through delegation of authority and
responsibility, and measure success in terms of customer
satisfaction. Vice President Gore recently completed a National
Performance Review (NPR) which includes hundreds of agency-
specific recommendations to achieve these goals.

No agency is more central to the success of this effort than
the Social Security Administration. Today one in four households
receives a benefit check each month from SSA; and over the course
of a year, SSA records the wages of nearly every worker in the
U.S. -- some 135 million taxpayers. Because SSA touches so many
lives, its •ervice provides an important gauge by which Americans
judge the overall performance of government.

Yet the challenge of reinventing government at SSA is a
substantial one. Over the past decade, SSA' s performance has
deteriorated as the result of frequent changes in leadership,
repeated reorganizations, sharply rising caseloads, and cuts in
staffing which reduced agency personnel by over 20 percent.
While SSA attempted to compensate for these staffing losses
through increased reliance on technology, it has achieved mixed
results. Customer waiting times have risen, a huge backlog of
pending disability claims has developed, and SSA has relied
increasingly on highly centralized, impersonal modes of service
which many Americans find unresponsive to their needs and
preferences. Moreover, overwhelmed by the combination of
staffing cuts and rising workloads, SSA has done little to
prepare for the sharply increased demands that will confront it

over the next decade as the baby-boom generation approaches
retirement

.

FOCUS OF THE HEARING :

The hearing will focus on three issues of critical
importance in the effort to "reinvent government" at SSA and will
examine proposals for action from the National Performance Review
and from a recent management review of SSA by the General
Accounting Office ( Social Security: Sustained Efforts Needed to
Improve Management and Prepare for the Future . August 1993) . The
three issues upon which the hearing will focus are:

(MORE)



(1) Averting Crisis in the Disability Program: The
combination of staffing cuts and rising applications has resulted
in a backlog of more than half a million disability claims. As a
result, the average waiting period for an initial decision is
nearly three months, and the full appeal process may take more
than two years. In addition, SSA has sharply reduced the number
of Continuing Disability Reviews (CDRs) it performs to verify
beneficiaries' ongoing eligibility. The number of overdue CDRs
now exceeds one million. What does SSA need to do to reduce its
backlog of disability applications and CDRs? Can advanced
technology be used to achieve significant results? What level of
additional resources is required?

(2) Redefining Performance Goals in Terms of Customer Needs
and Preferences: In its recent management review, the GAO found
that SSA' s previous management routinely made decisions without
seeking input from customer or client groups. As a result, it
invested heavily in some systems and technology that may not be
useful to customers and missed opportunities to achieve the
greatest improvements in service quality. In some cases, these
investments have achieved savings by transferring internal
operating costs to the public -- e.g., the termination of public
telephone access to local Social Security offices in favor of a
centralized 800-number with high busy rates. How should SSA'

s

new management go about soliciting public opinion? How can it
insure that it receives broad, unbiased samples of customer
preferences? How should it use this information in its planning
process?

<3) Anticipating Future Customer Needs: The GAO management
review also characterizes SSA as lacking a vision of where and
how it will provide seirvice in the future. Developing such a
vision, GAO states, is especially important in light of several
factors: the baby-boom generation will soon begin placing
increased demands on the agency; demographically, large numbers
of baby-boom retirees may relocate in the South and West; and SSA
continues to shift to more centralized, impersonal service in the
absence of a vision for the future. Where and how should SSA
provide service in the next century? in person? by telephone? by
computer? in local offices or at centralized sites? As SSA
develops high-tech service alternatives, should it also maintain
traditional modes of service -- i.e., in person or by telephone
-- for those who prefer them? How much access should customers
have to SSA personnel who make decisions that affect them? How
important is it to maintain community-based alternatives to
centralized service?

DETAILS FOR SPBMI3SI0N OP RBQOBSTS TO BB HBARD :

Requests to be heard at the hearing must be made by
telephone to Harriett Lawler, Diane Kirkland or Karen Ponzurick
[(202) 225-1721] no later than noon Monday, October 25, 1993.
The telephone request should be followed by a formal written
request addressed to Janice Mays, Chief Counsel and Staff
Director, Committee on Ways and Means, U.S. House of
Representatives, 1102 Longworth House Office Building,
Washington, D.C. 20515. The Subcommittee staff will notify by
telephone those scheduled to appear as soon as possible after the
filing deadline. Any questions concerning scheduled appearances
should be directed to the Subcommittee staff [(202) 225-9263].

In view of the limited time available to hear witnesses,
the Subcommittee may not be able to accommodate all requests to
be heard. Those persons and organizations not scheduled for an
oral appearance are encouraged to submit written statements for
the record of the hearing. All persons requesting to be heard,
whether they are scheduled for oral testimony or not, will be
notified as soon as possible after the filing deadline.

(MORE)



Witnesses scheduled to present oral testimony are required
to summarize briefly their written statements in no more than
minutes. THE FIVE MINUTE RULE WILL BE STRICTLY ENFORCED. The
Congressional Budget Office and similar U.S. Government agencies
may be granted an exception. The full written statement of each
witness will be included in the printed record.

In order to assure the most productive use of the limited
amount of time available to question witnesses, all witnesses
scheduled to appear before the Subcommittee are recruired to
submit 150 copies of their prepared statements to the
Subcommittee on Social Security office, room B-,316 Ravburn House
Office Building, at least 48 hours in advance of their scheduled
appearance. Failure to do so may result in the witness being
denied the opportunity to testify in person.

WRITTEN STATEMENTS IN LIEU OF PERSONAL APPEARANCE :

Any persons or organizations wishing to submit a written
statement for the printed record of the hearing should submit at
least six (6) copies of their statements by the close of
business, Thursday, November 11, 1993, to Janice Mays, Chief
Counsel and Staff Director, Committee on Ways and Means, U.S.
House of Representatives, 1102 Longworth House Office Building,
Washington, D.C. 20515. If those filing written statements wish
to have their statements distributed to the press and interested
public at the hearing, they may deliver 150 additional copies for
this purpose to the Subcommittee office, room B-316 Rayburn House
Office Building, before the hearing begins.

FORMATTING REQUIREMENTS :
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Chairman Jacobs. The Social Security Subcommittee will com-
mence its hearing, I guess in essence on the General Accounting
Ofifice's suggestions for greater efficiency at the Social Security Ad-
ministration. We are pleased to welcome the new Social Security
Commissioner, Dr. Shirley Chater, who follows neatly, I think, in

the footsteps of Gwen King for whom we had enormous—we still

do, don't we—respect and affection. We look forward to a pleasant
working relationship with you. Dr. Chater, so if you would like, you
can proceed in your own fashion.

[The prepared opening statements of Chairman Jacobs and Mr.
Bunning follow:]



statement by Chairman Andy Jacobs, Jr.

Today's Subcommittee hearing will examine the challenges
that the Social Security Administration (SSA) will face in
providing service to the public during the next 20 years.

To conduct this examination, we will review recommendations
from the National Performance Review on "reinventing" the Social
Security Administration and from a recent management review of
SSA conducted by the General Accounting Office.

In the course of a year, the Social Security Administration
will have an impact on the life of nearly every American. One in
four households receives a benefit check from SSA. In addition,
SSA records the yearly wages of each of the 135 million U.S.
workers. Because of the enormous public reliance on the
performance of the agency, it is imperative for SSA to have
stable leadership to deal with day-to-day and long-term
management decisions.

During the past 16 years, SSA -- once considered a model
Federal agency in its ability to provide top notch service to the
public -- has seen its performance slip dramatically. In this
time, SSA has had 12 commissioners, five of who have served only
as acting commissioner and six of whom have served less than 15
months. This instability as the highest level of the agency has
inhibited development of long-term goals. Since 1975, SSA has
undergone six reorganizations or "realignments" which have
displaced personnel at all levels, creating repeated changes in
responsibilities for program administration and policy
development. This repeated upheaval has made it difficult for
the agency to focus on its future operational needs as the baby
boom generation ages.

In the mid 1980' s, SSA did develop and implement a plan to
streamline the agency. Devised at the Central Office of the
Social Security Administration in Baltimore, the plan reduced the
size of SSA staff and assumed that lost staff would be replaced
with technology. Members of Congress concerned about the
significant budget cuts requested by the Reagan Administration
were assured that, when the plan was implemented, SSA could do
more work for less money. Today, nearly ten years later, the
anticipated technology is' not yet fully in place, and the agency
continues to reel from the effects of lost staff.

This downsizing plan is the single most significant reason
for the decline in the quality of service provided to the public
by SSA.

The impact of the plan has been devastating to both agency
personnel and the public. In the past few years, the Social

Security Administration has lacked the resources to perform a

wide array of tasks ranging from the simplest to the most

complex. Some taxpayers have been inconvenienced by SSA,

experiencing high busy signal rates, lost case files and long

waits in Social Security offices. Others have suffered severe

hardship, being forced on public assistance while waiting for

their benefits. In some cases, beneficiaries have died while

waiting for a final decision on their claims.

When Americans pay their Social Security taxes they expect

and deserve more than the consequent right to benefits -- and

they pay for more than that. They pay also for the necessary

personnel and equipment to deliver efficiently those benefits.

That's what the Social Security System is supposed to be about.



OPENING STATEMENT BY
THE HONORABLE JIM BUNNING

SOCIAL SECURITY SUBCOMMITTEE HEARING
OCTOBER 28, 1993

MR. CHAIRMAN, I AGREE WITH YOUR STATEMENT IN YOUR PRESS
RELEASE. "THE CHALLENGE OF REINVENTING GOVERNMENT AT SSA
IS A SUBSTANTIAL ONE."

I WELCOME THE WITNESSES WHO WILL BE COMMENTING ON THE
NATIONAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND THE GAO REPORT AND LOOK
FORWARD TO THIER TESTIMONY. OVERALL I SUPPORT THE EMPHASIS
ON OVERSIGHT ACTIVITIES, DEBT COLLECTION, CONTINUING
DISABILITY REVIEWS, AND IMPROVED CUSTOMER SERVICE. I

SHOULD POINT OUT, HOWEVER, THAT THESE ARE NOT ALL NEW
IDEAS. A NUMBER OF THESE HAVE BEEN TRIED IN THE PAST WITH
DISASTROUS CONSEQUENCES.

HONESTLY, I DON'T SEE HOW SSA CAN ABSORB ANY MAJOR
SHARE OF THE 250,000 PERSON REDUCTION IN THE GOVERNMENT
WORKFORCE AS ENVISIONED IN VICE PRESIDENT GORE'S REPORT,
AND IMPROVE CUSTOMER SERVICE OR THE BACKLOG OF CONTINUING
DISABILITY REVIEWS. SSA NEEDS AN INCREASE IN STAFF TO GET
THESE JOBS DONE. WITHOUT MORE STAFFING, IT WILL BE HARD TO
SEE ANY LIGHT AT THE END OF THE DISABILITY TUNNEL.

I HAVE SOME RESERVATIONS ABOUT THE PROPOSAL TO TRANSFER
THE ADMINISTRATION OF TIER I-- WHICH IS THE SOCIAL SECURITY
EQUIVALENT- - FROM MANAGEMENT BY THE RAILROAD RETIREMENT
BOARD TO THE SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION. UNLESS THE
PLAN ENVISIONS THE TRANSFERRING OF STAFF, I WOULD BE
CONCERNED ABOUT THE WORKLOAD THIS WOULD CREATE.

FURTHER, WHILE FIELD OFFICE RESTRUCTURING IS AN
ONGOING NECESSITY TO KEEP UP WITH DEMOGRAPHICS OF
POPULATION SHIFTS, I HAVE SOME CONCERN ABOUT BENEFICIARY
SERVICES, AND HOPE THAT IMPROVED PUBLIC SERVICE WILL BE
MADE THE OVERRIDING GOAL.

MR. CHAIRMAN, FRANKLY, I AM DISAPPOINTED MORE BY WHAT
WAS LEFT OUT OF THE PACKAGE OF REFORMS THAN BY WHAT WAS
INCLUDED. PARTICULARLY IN VIEW OF THE CRISIS IN THE
DISABILITY PROGRAM, WHICH HAPPENED UNDER HHS OVERSIGHT, I

REGRET THAT THE VICE PRESIDENT DID NOT ENDORSE THE CONCEPT
OF SOCIAL SECURITY AS AN INDEPENDENT AGENCY. THE SPECTER
OF HEALTH CARE REFORM MAKES IT EVEN LESS LIKELY THAT HHS
WILL HAVE THE TIME AND ENERGY NEEDED TO REENGINEER SOCIAL
SECURITY

.

FINALLY, I WOULD HOPE THAT IN THE CONTEXT OF REFORM,
THE ADMINISTRATION WILL CONSIDER SUPPORTING PROPOSALS THAT
HAVE BEEN ADDRESSED BY THIS SUBCOMMTTEB, SUCH AS OUR BILL
H.R. 3265, WHICH CREATES A SOCIAL SECURITY COURT OF
APPEALS- -OR CONGRESSMEN ARCHER'S PROPOSAL TO ELIMINATE THE
CURRENT APPEAL STAGE OF THE DISABILITY DETERMINATION
PROCESS SO THAT CLAIMANTS ARE NO LONGER CAUGHT IN THE
PIPELINE OF TRYING TO GET TO COURT. IN SHORT, THERE ARE
THINGS THAT CONGRESS CAN BE DO TO HELP THE SOCIAL SECURITY
ADMINISTRATION.

OVERTIME WITNESSES HAVE MADE GOOD SUGGESTIONS TO US
FOR IMPROVING THE ADMINISTRATION OF SSA. I AM SURE THAT
TODAY'S WITNESSES WILL DO THE SAME AND I HOPE THE
ADMINISTRATION WILL BE RECEPTIVE. CLEARLY, THERE IS MUCH
WORK FOR US ALL.
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STATEMENT OF HON. SHIRLEY S. CHATER, PH.D., COMMIS-
SIONER, SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION, ACCOM-
PANIED BY LAWRENCE H. THOMPSON, PRINCIPAL DEPUTY
COMMISSIONER
Ms. Chater. Thank you, Mr. Jacobs. Mr. Jefferson, although I

have not had the pleasure of meeting you personally, I look forward
to a time to talk with you later. I want to tell you that I am
pleased to be here today. I am also pleased to be with our principal

deputy commissioner. Dr. Larry Thompson, who has joined me at
the table.

You know, of course, that this is my first opportunity to appear
before this subcommittee and the first of what I hope will be many
productive dialogs among all of us. I have had the opportunity to

meet individually with some of the members of the committee, and
because it is certainly a priority of mine to know you and to be re-

sponsive to your concerns, I will make certain that I meet with
each member of the committee as time goes on.

I am delighted that my first congressional hearing as Commis-
sioner of Social Security concerns the reinventing of the Social Se-
curity Administration. It gives me the opportunity to share with
you my vision of some of the management priorities for Social

Security.

Now, coming in as I have as a new person to the largest agency
in Federal Government, it is difficult at best to understand all of

the issues and the complexities of this enormous challenge. We
know, for example, that the expanding demands for the Social

Security Administration services during this time of budgetary
restraints requires a commitment to long-term planning and very
attentive management.
We will, I want you to know, use the GAO report as a framework

against which to reinvent the Social Security Administration. We
will also use the present strategic plan, part of which is a service

delivery plan. We will also be utilizing the National Performance
Review as well as Secretary Shalala's plan for continuous improve-
ment in the short term.
We will be using all of these ideas to put together a framework

against which to reinvent the Social Security Administration. We
are certainly conscious, Mr. Chairman, of your desire for a very
concise presentation and, therefore, because the management chal-

lenges at SSA are both numerous and complex, I would like to sub-

mit for the record my full written testimony, which describes in

some detail the challenges we face

Chairman Jacobs. Without objection.

Ms. Chater [continuing]. And some specific ways in which we
propose to deal with these challenges. I would like to use my time
this morning, then, to briefly discuss my thoughts on service deliv-

ery to our customers and specifically two important issues: one,

telephone service, and two, the disability program.
Let me begin by commending the General Accounting Office for

its report entitled, "Social Security: Sustained Effort Needed To
Improve Management And Prepare For The Future." We concur

with most of the recommendations in that report, and I am pleased

to tell you that we are already implementing most of them. Our



goal is nothing less than to ensure world class service to the mil-

lions of people who come to SSA for assistance.

The first step in meeting that goal, a step that we are currently
taking, is to establish a comprehensive service delivery plan, and
in order to make the plan an effective one, we must begin as GAO
recommended, by finding out what kind of service the American
people want. We will gain that knowledge in different ways.
One way is the use of focus groups. We will have 12 of them

throughout the country made up of current Social Security and
supplemental security income beneficiaries, as well as the general
public. The responses of these groups to the service delivery ideas
we place before them will help us learn what the public expects in

terms of service delivery.

At the same time, we will be discussing these issues and ideas
with various audiences, including but not limited to Congress, ad-
vocacy groups, the States, as well as SSA employees. We want to

talk to those who are stakeholders in the Social Security Program.
The information we receive will enable us to develop a formal serv-

ice delivery plan, and as we work to bring our service quality up
to a higher level, there are two areas that I want to discuss that
will receive considerable emphasis, as I said—telephone service

and the disability program. So first, telephone service.

As this committee well knows, we need to do a better job of an-
swering our telephones both in the local field offices and our 800
number. We are now developing strategies to achieve this objective.

I appreciate your concerns regarding accessible telephone service to

local offices. I know that you are mindful that additional phone
lines alone will not raise the quality of SSA's service in those of-

fices to our traditional levels. We need to ensure that those lines,

once installed, will be answered promptly and efficiently.

If our callers wish to speak to a person as opposed to an auto-
mated program, we certainly wish to oblige them, and we are de-

veloping different approaches to help us do just that. I want you
to know, Mr. Chairman, that I appreciate your offer to help us to

get the resources that we need to improve that telephone access.

I look forward to working with you on this issue.

In regard to the 800 number, we are considering a number of dif-

ferent options for improvement. Among them is offering all callers

an immediate choice of using an automated script for simple ac-

tions. We are going to be training staff with special programs so

they can learn to handle the 800 number requests. We will be uti-

lizing some additional backup staff for peak hours during our busy
times, and we want to put in place a program that would educate
our clients so that they might call at nonpeak times and therefore

receive better service. We are also considering testing additional

800 numbers that could provide services in languages other than
English.

I would like to turn now to the disability issue. The challenges
facing the disability program are enormous. We all know that the
unprecedented workload increases in both the disability insurance
and the SSI programs and the resulting strain on resources have
been the agency's most challenging problem.
SSA has received valuable support from Congress and from

Secretary Shalala in securing additional funds for disability proc-
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essing and for investment in a state-of-the-art computing network
that will allow us to streamline the disability claims process, but
even with these additional dollars, Mr. Chairman, we will still be
fighting a losing battle unless significant changes are made in the
way we administer the disability program. That is why we have
undertaken an effort to reengineer the way we do business at SSA,
to review and to modernize practices that are based on conditions
and capabilities that existed when the agency began over 50 years
ago.

Our objective in reengineering the disability process is to rethink
our processes from start to finish and to ask the question how
would we do it better if we were starting all over today. I want to

modernize the process in a way that will make it easier for people
to file for benefits and that will ensure that eligible beneficiaries
receive their benefits promptly and efficiently and that will mini-
mize the number of appeals in the system.
Through this process, Mr. Chairman, I pledge our best efforts,

and I asK for this subcommittee's help. It will not be easy, but in

the end we will have an agency able to provide rapid, efficient, ac-

curate and responsive service to the American people. That is our
goal, and we look forward to working with each of you to make this

a reality. I will be pleased to answer your questions and so will Dr.
Thompson.

[The prepared statement and attachment follow:]
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TESTIMONY OF SHIRLEY S. CHATER
COMMISSIONER OF SOCIAL SECURITY

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

Thank you for inviting me to discuss plans to "reinvent" the
Social Security Administration (SSA) by revitalizing and
streamlini'^g its operations. I am delighted that this is the
topic of my first Congressional hearing as Commissioner of Social
Security, because it gives me an opportunity to share my vision
of management priorities at SSA.

Consistent with the announced purpose of this hearing, my
discussion will specifically address the difficulties SSA is

experiencing in the administration of the disability program, and
the need to redefine performance goals in terms of customer needs
and preferences and to anticipate future customer needs. As you
requested, I will also discuss the recommendations of both the
Vice-President's National Performance Review (NPR) and the August
1993 General Accounting Office (GAO) report. Social Security:
Sustained Efforts Needed to Improve Management and Prepare for
the Future . I will begin by discussing our service delivery
vision

.

Achieving Our Service Delivery Vision- -The Need for Public Input

Mr. Chairman, let me begin by saying that our goal is to
provide world-class service, as well as "service equity," so
that, whether living in Indianapolis, Indiana or Southgate,
Kentucky, a person receives equally responsive, swift, and
accurate service

.

As you point out in your press release, Mr. Chairman, an
essential step toward achieving world-class public service, and
one that cannot be emphasized enough, is to find out what kind of
service people want. Do people want to deal with SSA in person,
by telephone, by mail, or by fax or personal computer? We need
to learn how people want to be served, so that we will be
prepared to provide services in ways the public finds to be
convenient. This need for public input was also recognized by
the GAO and the NPR team.

We are now preparing to obtain input from the general public
about their service delivery preferences. We plan to do this at

every step of the process: in developing, testing, and
implementing new service delivery mechanisms, beginning with
focus group tests of a vision of service delivery. These tests
are crucial to our having a clear understanding of what the
public expects in terms of methods of service delivery and the
level of service they expect

.

We will begin by obtaining input from up to 12 of these
focus groups throughout the country. Participants in the groups
will represent a cross-section of current Social Security and
Supplemental Security Income (SSI) beneficiaries and the general
public. Each focus group will be composed of 10 to 12 people
from different geographic locations and different age, race, sex,

and income populations. Two of the groups will consist entirely
of non-English speaking participants. Later, we plan to expand
the number of non-English speaking groups, and add at least one
group of native Americans.

At the same time we are conducting focus groups, we will
also be discussing these issues with various audiences, including
--but not limited to--the Congress, advocacy groups, and the
States- -the people who are stakeholders in the Social Security
program. We will also make a special effort to involve groups
representing SSA employees in our various planning processes. We

know that SSA employees are our most important resource, and
their commitment to SSA's goals is essential for the success of

our endeavors

.

The purpose of these discussions with various audiences will

be to share our service delivery ideas and our approach to

testing, get individual input on all phases of our activities.
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and identify problems that require resolution. I am pleased that
our plans address the concerns expressed in your letter of
invitation, and are consistent with the recommendation in the GAO
report- -which I will discuss later in my statement- -to involve
external groups in our planning process. I cannot agree with
that recommendation more strongly.

Input from those in our focus groups and our discussions
with our other stakeholders will enable us to develop a formal
service delivery plan. Since we are still at the very beginning
of the planning process, I cannot tell you with any degree of
certainty what the plan will include, nor can I promise you that
we can complete the kinds of major changes we may need to make
within a couple of years. I would like to discuss, however, some
of the specific objectives and ideas which we are considering as
major service improvements for the future.

Telephone Service

Mr. Chairman, let me begin with telephone service. To state
our goal simply, we want our telephone service to be as good as
the best in the private sector, with every telephone call
answered on the first try. We want service to be available in
most languages, and our goal is- -for those who wish to use the
telephone- -to handle most business, including claims and
postentitlement actions, in a single telephone call.

As this committee well knows, we need to do a better job of
answering our telephones- -both in our local field offices and on
our 800 number service. We are now developing strategies to
achieve this objective.

As a start, we are considering a number of local office
demonstration projects. These projects would be designed to
improve local office service by handling selected customer
requests to completion on the first telephone call. People with
relatively easy transactions would be able to complete them
quickly and easily, while those who want or need to talk to an
SSA employee would have that option.

One demonstration project would test the use of a feature
called "automated attendant" call answering service. This
feature would greet the caller with a menu of call handling
options. The caller would select an option by pressing a touch
tone key. Provisions for callers with rotary telephones would be
included. This service could handle requests for Social Security
numbers, forms, and pamphlets, and provide and receive messages.

A second demonstration project would be similar to the first
in that the automated attendant feature would be used to offer
the caller the choice of speaking to an employee or the automated
voice mail service. However, if all lines to the local office
were busy, the call would be routed to the 800 number if the
customer so desired.

A third demonstration project would test the use of voice
mail without the automated attendant feature. This would allow
the field office to provide messages to callers and record and
store their messages. It would be used to capture information
for Social Security number requests and other simple workloads.
This would give the caller the option of doing business with the
local office after business hours.

With regard to the 800 number service, some of the options
for improvement we are considering are:

o Offering all callers an immediate choice of using an
automated script for simple act ions- -basically , this would
be a recorded message which presents the caller with a menu
of options;



13

o Training staff who do not routinely handle public inquiries
to answer calls during peak calling hours; and

o Testing additional 800 numbers which will provide services
in languages other than English.

Mr. Chairman, your letter raises one very important point
about telephone service: SSA has a responsibility to provide the
kind of service that the public prefers. I want to make it very
clear that- -although SSA is looking at a number of ways in which
technology may be used to improve our telephone service --we
recognize that some people will prefer to talk to one of our
employees. We realize, therefore, that, in addition to our
improvements in automation, we need to make more employees
available to answer calls from people who do not want to use an
automated system.

Face-to-Face Service

As with telephone service, I want our face-to-face service
to be comparable with the best in private industry. Our
customers should receive world-class service regardless of
whether they choose to do their business face-to-face or on the
telephone. Again, the service improvements I will mention are
only examples of the kinds of ideas we are looking at, not firm
decisions or promises we can make at this time.

When customers enter our offices, they will be able to see
our service objectives prominently posted, as recommended in the
NPR, and know the level of service we expect to provide. Our
goal is to ensure that waiting times for interviews are minimal,
whether the office is in an urban, suburban, or rural area, and
that service will be available in commonly used languages.
Moreover, the customer should be able to conduct most business
with us with only one contact. Just as with telephone calls, our
goal is to have one visit take care of everything the customer
needs

.

Reenqineerinq Our Business Processes

In order to achieve world-class service delivery, SSA must
"reengineer" its current business practices, which are based, in
large part, on procedures begun 50 years ago. It is unrealistic
to believe that merely hiring additional staff would allow SSA to
keep up with growing workloads if they are managed under our
existing practices. And, given current budget realities, it is
also unrealistic to expect any significant increase in SSA
resources. Clearly, then, SSA must reengineer its way of
operating

.

Our reengineering program is the culmination of a very
rigorous investigation by SSA of the reengineering efforts of
private companies, public organizations, academic institutions,
and consulting firms with the most "hands on" experience in this
area. Our reengineering methodology will combine a strong
customer focus with classic management analysis techniques and
computer modeling and simulation.

We will examine our key business processes and ask the
question, "How would we do this if we were starting over?" Our
current business processes have gradually evolved over more than
50 years, and tend to reflect small, incremental changes designed
to address various pieces of our overall process. The objective
of a reengineering review is to fundamentally rethink and
radically redesign our business processes as a whole, from start
to finish, so that they become many times more efficient and, as
a result, significantly improve SSA's service to the public.
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Reenqineerinq Disability

As you are aware, despite the outstanding efforts of our
employees and the State Disability Determination Services (DDS)
throughout the country, SSA continues to have difficulty
providing a satisfactory level of service to claimants for
disability benefits, and improvement is urgently needed.

Mr. Chairman, as you know, in recent years the disability
insurance (DI) and SSI claims workload has been SSA's most
challenging problem. SSA has been faced with unprecedented
workload increases in both the DI and SSI programs which have
severely strained its resources. Thanks to the contingency
funding received earlier this year and large amounts of overtime
worked by dedicated Federal anci State personnel, processing times
for initial claims have somewhat leveled off at about 100 days.
While I am pleased to see that the processing times have
stabilized a bit, a claimant should not have a long wait to
receive a determination on a disability claim. The American
people expect more, and I am convinced that we can and must do
better.

That is why I plan to continue efforts begun last year to
process disability cases faster. Our plans include refinements
to case development and documentation procedures, increased use
of overtime, continuation of the teamwork undertaken by SSA and
the State DDSs, and acceleration of automation efforts.

In addition, by working with other senior Administration
officials. Secretary Shalala was instrumental in seeing that the
President's budget requested additional resources for SSA in the
fiscal year (FY) 1993 and FY 1994 budgets. The appropriations
bill signed by the President on October 21, 1993 provides SSA
with $320 million to invest in disability processing, as well as
another $300 million for an automation investment fund.

The $320 million will help us to maintain the capacity to
deal with both initial claims and appeals workloads. Of course,
the funds appropriated for automation will help SSA to create a
uniform, state-of-the-art computing network throughout SSA and
the DDSs. When complete, I believe the automated disability
process will help SSA to further reduce the time required to
process disability claims.

It is clear, however, that these incremental improvements
SSA is making will not be sufficient to achieve the level of
service which will make a substantial difference to our
customers. For that reason, our initial reengineering effort is
focusing on the disability process.

The disability reengineering review began in early October
when a special project team composed of 18 Federal and State
employees assembled at SSA headquarters in Baltimore. Throughout
the fall and early winter, members of the team will make fact-
finding visits to numerous SSA and DDS offices, and to public and
private organizations throughout the country which have an
interest in working with SSA to improve the disability process.

We will be open to ideas from any source to make sure that
our reengineered process will give the public the kind of service
it wants. The team will be assisted from time to time by outside
experts, possibly including business officials who have
participated in successful reengineering projects in their own
companies.

Obviously, not all groups who have an interest in the
process can be personally visited, so we are developing a program
to communicate in other ways with interested parties, solicit
their ideas, and keep them informed of significant developments.
Concurrent with our reengineering efforts, SSA, together with the
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Department, is undertaking an aggressive disability research
program designed to expand our knowledge about unanticipated
increases in applications resulting in workload backlogs and
trust fund deficits.

I want to emphasize that the object of reengineering is not
to change the disability program , but rather our disability
process . Although reengineering the disability process is
certain to involve significant administrative change, our effort
will not change the statutory definition of disability or affect
in any way the amount of disability benefits for which
individuals are eligible. We hope to change the process in a way
that will make it easier for individuals to file for and, if
eligible, receive disability benefits promptly and efficiently,
and minimize the need for appeals. By the end of March 1994, the
team will develop one or more design proposals for a reengineered
disability process.

The GAP Report and SSA Goals

Mr. Chairman, let me now turn to a brief discussion of the
August 1993 GAO report. First, I would like to commend GAO for.
its report. I agree with GAO's assertion that expanding demands
for SSA services during a time of budgetary restraints requires a
commitment to long-term planning and attentive management. GAO's
report provides us with a baseline review of some of our
management processes and could not have come at a better time.
I concur with most of GAO's recommendations. We are already
implementing some of them, including the one which was mentioned
in your letter of invitation- -and which I briefly
described a moment ago- -to ensure that our service delivery plan
is developed with input from customer groups. Also, as GAO's
report recommends, we are developing a human resources plan.

GAO notes that the dual impact of growing workloads and
budget constraints place "...increased pressure on SSA's
management to provide high quality public service at minimum
cost." Mr. Chairman, I view this pressure as a challenge.
Indeed, as I stated at my confirmation hearing before the Senate
Finance Committee last month, restoring public confidence in the
program and providing "world-class" service are two of my top
goals for the agency. I believe accomplishing these goals is
critical if the Social Security program is to continue to fulfill
its mission and remain a vital part of American society.

Although the first goal--restoring public confidence- -is not
specifically included in the GAO report, I mention it now because
I believe that we cannot successfully administer the program or
plan for its future without public confidence and support. As
you may be aware, a recent survey by the American Council of Life
Insurance found that fifty-six percent of the respondents
expressed a lack of confidence in the Social Security program.
Likewise, data from a survey conducted by the 1991 Advisory
Council on Social Security indicated that over two-thirds of the
respondents with a college degree did not believe that Social
Security would have money to pay them when they retire.

Clearly, doubts about the future of the program have taken
root in the public psyche and must be addressed. Therefore, I

intend to put special emphasis on informing workers- -especially
young workers --about the value of Social Security programs and
the value of the income security protection we provide. I

believe one of the best ways of accomplishing this is by
automatically sending workers a Personal Earnings and Benefit
Estimate Statement, as we will begin doing in 1995.

I personally intend to be an active, ardent, and forceful
voice in informing the American public as to the value of Social
Security protection to individuals and families, and to make the
65,000 Social Security employees public educators as well. We
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are also exploring innovations for providing accurate information
about Social Security to every citizen. For example, SSA is
about to pilot-test a video question-and-answer kiosk that can
provide a wide range of general information about Social Security
earnings and benefits. If this particular approach proves cost-
effective, it can be replicated in community centers, shopping
malls, and other public places.

These initiatives will help ensure that the program has the
kind of public support that is essential for long-term planning.
And that brings me to a discussion of SSA's long-term management
and planning effort.

SSA's Strategic Planning Process

Before closing, Mr. Chairman, let me take a moment to give
an overview of the strategic planning process itself, which was
the focus of the GAO report

.

The centerpiece of SSA's planning process is the long-range
Agency Strategic Plan (ASP) --a customer-oriented plan which
recognizes the resource and workload challenges SSA is facing.
The ASP includes projections of the workloads we will face in
10 years, and a variety of commitments to the public we serve and
to our employees. It also includes a vision of how and where we
will deliver service in the future, establishes our five
strategic priorities, and includes specific key service delivery
goals and objectives such as paying benefits correctly, paying
benefits when due, and providing prompt and courteous service.
Following publication of the ASP, we developed a transition
guidance document that specifies initiatives and sub- initiatives
to help us address the five priorities. We are now moving
forward with many of these initiatives. We are committed to
making sure the strategic plan is a living document to guide SSA
to excellence.

While the ASP defines the overall planning approach for the
Agency, there are also a number of more specific plans under
development to support the ASP. For instance, we are developing
a separate Service Delivery Plan (SDP) , dealing with the way SSA
will improve service to the public. We have also devoted
considerable effort toward the preparation of a human resources
plan, following steps similar to GAO's model. The plan we are
formulating will provide the framework for continuous
improvements in recruitment and staffing, a supportive work
environment, and appropriate employee training and development.
We have already published an information systems plan that
supports the Agency Strategic Plan, and a facilities plan will be
developed in the future.

The NPR also provides a vision for improving service
government -wide , along with several specific recommendations
applicable to SSA. In general, these recommendations are
consistent with the vision and priorities already articulated in
the ASP. I have attached a list of all the recommendations
specifically applicable to SSA.

Conclusion

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity to
be here today, and I commend both this Subcommittee and the GAO
for focusing attention on the need for thoughtful, long-term
planning of the Social Security programs. This includes
developing a vision of the future, which anticipates the
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retirement of the "baby-boomers, " the potential geographic
shifting of workloads, changes in technologies and customer
needs, and other factors.

It is clear that, to meet future challenges as well as to
improve public service in the current era of rapidly and
dramatically increasing workloads and resource constraints, we
will have to make fundamental changes in the way SSA does
business. It is equally clear that this will not be easy. There
will be some hard choices to make, and some difficult adjustments
ahead

.

We want to make visible improvements in public service very
soon, but the completion of all the initiatives I have mentioned
today will stretch over a period of years. We also realize that,
with current fiscal constraints, we will not be able to
accomplish everything at once, but will have to implement some
changes in steps, as resources permit.

Mr. Chairman, SSA will need the support of you and all of
the concerned Members of this Subcommittee to help guide the
Agency--and the country- -through the journey ahead. For it is a
journey we must make; SSA simply cannot go on operating in a
fashion begun more than 50 years ago, before today's world of
technological advances, constrained resources, and growing
workloads

.

Through it all, Mr. Chairman, I ask your help, and I pledge
my best effort. As I said at my confirmation hearing last month,
SSA does more than just write and mail checks. It enriches lives
and gives people a sense of security. It provides the basic
support people need to become independent and lead self-
fulfilling lives. I also pledge to you--and to the American
public- -that SSA will never lose sight of that reality.

Attachment
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National Performance Review (NPR' Recommendations That Directly
Affect SSA

Improve SSA Disability Claims Processing to Better Serve
People with Disabilities and Safeguard Trust Fund Assets

Protect Social Security, Disability and Medicare Trust Funds
Assets by Removing Barriers to Funding Productive Oversight
Activities

Coordinate Collection and Dissemination of SSA Death
Information to Protect Federal Program Assets

Take More Aggressive Actions to Collect Outstanding Debts
Owed to the Social Security Trust Fund

Redesign SSA Service Delivery and Make Better Use of

Technology to Provide Improved Access and Services to
Customers

Review the Field and Regional Office Structure of the HKS
and Develop a Plan for Shifting Resources to Match Workload
Demands

Improve SSA Customer Service Performance Standards

Restructure the Management of the Railroad Industry Benefit
Programs
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Chairman Jacobs. Thank you, Dr. Chater.
Mr. Bunning.
Mr. BuhfNiNG. I have no questions.
Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Jefferson.

Mr. Jefferson. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The question I have
pertains to one of the issues raised in the GAO report. You address
it somewhat in your presentation.

In the GAO report there is a statement that the administration
has developed service objectives and priorities internally without
involving the public interest groups or congressional committees.
You said that you were going to organize focus groups around the

country, and in that way test what the public expects of the admin-
istration.

Is that the agency's response to this criticism? I also note that
you said you were going to ask the Congress what it thought and
involve it, so I am not saying that is the extent of what you said,

but I am talking about the public input.

Is that the way you expect to exact public input and to meet that
objection by GAO as to how the administration has formulated poli-

cies in the past?
Ms. Chater. I can't speak exactly to how the administration for-

mulated policies in the past, but I can tell you that our notion of

focus groups is one of several ways that we wish to work with the
public. To put together the focus groups and get very specific data
from a particular region and a particular group of people will form
for us an important database against which to then measure the
extent to which we can provide the service they want.

I think there are other ways. For example, as I have met with
some of the committee members I have also talked with some of
your caseworkers, and they, too, have told me stories about the
needs of their customers. So there are other ways beside just the
focus groups, but certainly it is a key way to do so.

Mr. Jefferson. In this asking the customer area, there are a lot

of customer complaints that you are probably aware of The biggest
one is that it is very hard to get claims resolved in the disability

area particularly. People wait inordinate lengths of time to get re-

lief, and frankly, it isn't of much use to them. Some of the people
are old and they need the immediate attention of the agency.
How do you see your agency getting at this problem of delays in

getting claims processed? I know you said just then that we want
to make it easier to file. You want the beneficiaries to receive bene-
fits more promptly and you want to limit appeals. Could you be
more specific about how you plan to get after each one of those
objectives?

Ms. Chater. I would like to reemphasize the reengineering proc-

ess that we are engaged in right at the moment. We have a com-
mittee of very capable people within the agency who are really ex-

amining the question, how would we do the disability processing
anew if we were starting all over again, without trying to remodel
the processes we have.
The reengineering concept is literally to wipe the slate clean and

see how we could do it more efficiently and effectively. For exam-
ple, there are many changes in medical evidence now, better tests

to determine disabilities, better tests for the examination of clients.
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We have to program all of that into our process to make it better.

The reengineering concept is one of let's see what we can do from
the beginning instead of remodeling what we have. Let's start over
and see if we can put into place a process that would make it easi-

er to file claims and certainly one that is a great deal shorter to

benefit the clients who receive the disability payments.
Mr. Jefferson. The appeals limitations issue that you raise,

how do you see getting at that question?
Ms. Chater. I am sorry?

Mr. Jefferson. One of the obiectives that you said you have in

mind is to limit appeals. What do you mean by that? How do you
see that being done?
Mr. Thompson. I am not sure that we said we were going to

limit appeals.
Mr. Jefferson. She said to make filing easier, to receive benefits

more promptly, and, I suppose, to limit appeals, I guess to limit the
need for appeals by doing the first two of those things?

Mr. Thompson. Yes. As we do our reengineering, one of the
things we want to keep is the right at some point for beneficiaries

who feel they have not gotten justice to have a bridge before they
have to go into the Federal Court—some sort of an independent ap-
peal process. But at the moment our feeling is that there are too

many people who have to go to appeals and that the appeals are
taking too long and are very labor intensive. So one of the things
we would like to look into is how to make better decisions quicker
for everybody.

Let me give you another example. We have analyzed the process.

The process we have works, but it was designed many years ago
before we had a lot of electronic transfers of information. It is not
uncommon that 40 different people are involved in touching a case
file before it gets paid in the disability program, and every time it

goes from person one to person two to person three, it goes into an
in-basket and sits for a few days and then gets taken care of. One
of the reasons it takes so long is that there are so many people
involved.

What we need to do is work out a way that fewer people are in-

volved, the decision makers ideally get to see the individual early

on, and therefore can make a more accurate decision and a quicker
decision. It is an easy thing for us to say. It is not so easy to do.

We have a very talented team trying to figure out exactly how to

do this.

Mr. Jefferson. How long do you estimate this reinventing proc-

ess that you are going to undertake will take from beginning to

end?
Ms. Chater. The committee has been charged to bring to us a

report by March 1994, so we are talking about a few months.
Mr. Jefferson. In the Department of Justice and EEOC they

use a kind of duty system where they had local employees from
time to time answer the phone on a kind of duty basis, rotating

basis to gauge how the public was responding to them and how the

office was responding to the public.

Have you considered that sort of alternative to some of the other

ideas you discussed about getting public input and being able to as-
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sess how the pubhc is relating to the office? Are you familiar with
what I am talking about?
Ms. Chater. No.
Mr, Jefferson. Then I will

Ms. Chater. But I would be happy to visit with you, Mr. Jeffer-
son, and discuss it with you. I am anxious to have all ideas that
would help us.

Mr. Jefferson. Mr. Chairman, I will relinquish the microphone
now. If you have a chance to get back to me, let me know.
Chairman Jacobs. Thank you, Mr. Jefferson.
Mr. Bunning and I both ask unanimous consent to include our

opening statements in the record.

Mr. Houghton.
Mr. Houghton. Good to see you here this morning. First, I want

to say something. One of my real heroes is sitting over here,
Arthur Flemming, who has a book written many years ago called,

"The Wise Men." I consider him one of the wise men of our country.
We are honored to be here in his presence. It is great to see you.

I would like to take a little different tack. Clearly some things
that are wrong, I mean you are worried about the telephone serv-
ice, you are worried about disability, you are worried about strate-

gic plans. Rather than going to the negatives, what could you do
better in terms of the things you do very well now? Because you
have got so many positives in the administration, what are those
things, not the voids, but the pluses that you really can concentrate
on as you look over the hill of the next 10 years, what are those
strengths and what can we do to help you in giving them more
push?
Ms. Chater. Thank you very much for acknowledging the

strengths of the agency. I am pleased to have you note that. We
do get caught up in some of the negative criticisms and forget
about all the wonderful things we do.

In my visits to field offices, visits to places where employees
work, I can tell you that one of the things that we do well is an-
swering the telephone and giving accurate answers to clients.

I had the opportunity to listen to some of the telephone calls and
to watch our employees answer questions that were raised about
Social Security. I was very much impressed with the personal at-

tention given to the telephone calls. Some of the callers asked ques-
tions that Social Security employees would have no experience or

training to answer, but out of the kindnesses of their hearts, gave
answers to the best of their ability to help these people.
That leads me to say that one of the things we do well is the edu-

cational program for employees, moving employees around so they
sample the larger perspective of the agency and have a broader
base from which to make decisions. We want to continue doing
that. We have plans for training, for educational programs, for em-
ployees, for supervisors and for administrators within the depart-
ment. That is one example.
Mr. Houghton. All right. Let me just continue that a moment

because what you are talking about as far as good, thoughtful tele-

phone service and education involves people, and there are rumors
flying around here that we have got to take another cut in the ex-

penses. If I understand it, your administrative expenses as a per-
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cent of your revenue, your administrative expenses are something
like 1 percent. You send out, I don't know, 30 million checks a
month. It is really an extraordinary number, but it involves people.

It involves caring people. It involves educated people.

Are you going to be able to keep up technologically as the pres-

sures come to reduce our costs here :n the government to do the

things which you have to do in terms of giving the service to the

American people?
Ms. Chater. Are we going to be able to keep up? We must keep

up. We simply must keep this program on track. Our objective here

is to do more, better and smarter. I know for certain that we can't

keep doing it the way we have been doing it, but we are looking

for ways; we are trying to rethink how we can do our processes and
procedures more expediently.

Part of that is the use of technology where it works, while at the

same time valuing the personal service that some of our clients

prefer. It is hard. It is an enormous challenge, but we must keep
up; we must find ways to do it.

Mr. Houghton. So where there is a will there is a way?
Ms. Chater. There has to be.

Mr. Houghton. All right. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Brewster.
Mr. Brewster. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Kind of to continue

that line a little bit, it is my understanding that you are attempt-
ing to move more toward telephone service, high-tech service and
maybe away from face-to-face personal service-type situations. I

view that with some concern, and I wondered do you feel that you
can provide as good a service on that kind of basis as has been
handled in the past?
Ms. Chater. I don't want to have you think that we are going

to full automated services that would eliminate opportunities for

people to have a personal contact with the Social Security Adminis-
tration. I don't want us to do that because we have clients who
don't feel that computers are the way to enter into a dialog with

the Social Security Administration.
I do think, however, that the baby boomers coming on track are

computer literate. They are accustomed to using a Touch-Tone tele-

phone to get information from banks, from retirement programs, et

cetera, so I think we have to provide both. We have to use these

methods of touching base with our customers to know exactly

where and who our client groups are in order to know what kind
of service to provide.

Mr. Brewster. Well, as one who represents a large rural, rel-

atively uneducated district of a lot of elderly people, it is going to

be very difficult for most of those people to understand how to han-
dle that, and I am curious, do you plan to kind of tailor your serv-

ice to the area that you are serving?

Ms. Chater. I think with the National Performance Review call-

ing for decentralization of services, the personalization of services

based on area, client group, yes, we want to personalize service.

That will happen, I think, in terms of place, geographic location,

the age of our clients, and the reason that they are in touch with

Social Security in the first place.
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Mr. Brewster. I noticed, too, in some information given us last

week that our area of the country on disabihties had the lowest
successful completion rate of any area of the Nation, that is the

Dallas district. I serve southeastern Oklahoma.
For many years it seemed like regardless of the disability that

a person went in with, they were turned down initially, and
through the appeals process you usually got eventually approved.
That looks very time consuming to me.

I know as a pharmacist I have known many of these patients for

many years. Many go in with primary care physicians records, sur-

geons records, they are 55 years old—52 years old maybe, have a
leg cutoff in an accident and they are told to go get a desk job and
they have an eighth grade education, when their own doctors are

saying this person cannot continue working in this line of work
they have been doing.

Is there any thought to tailoring the situation more to individual

circumstances rather than trying to do a cookie-cutter-type ap-

proach? We have had some physicians working for Social Security,

who I don't think ever approved anyone.
Ms. Chater. Well, I would like to think that our reengineering

process would address some of these specific cases.

Mr. Brewster. I would hope so. Thank you.
Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Reynolds.
Mr. Reynolds. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Often in my congres-

sional district in our office we get calls about service and people not

getting the service that they feel that they should get. One has to

always take that into consideration that there are a lot of people

who are getting adequate service, but we still have to look into

those kinds of things. It is a question of field offices.

Do you know how many field offices that we currently have in

Social Security and do you think that it is an adequate number?
Ms. Chater. We have 10 regional offices, and 1,300 district of-

fices, and I don't know if that is the right number.
Mr. Reynolds. Do you have an idea what might be the optimum

number for service?

Ms. Chater. Not in 2 weeks I don't, Mr. Reynolds.
Mr. Reynolds. OK Well, I would like for you to sort of give me

some idea in the future if you could.

Ms. Chater. I will be happy to.

Mr. Reynolds. Earlier on this committee there was a discussion

on telephone numbers being listed locally. Has that problem been
corrected?
Ms. Chater. We are in the process of adding telephone lines to

certain offices, and what we would like to do is work very hard to

provide the people to answer the telephone lines when the phones
ring.

Mr. Reynolds. Well, there was a question of adding the lines,

but it was also a question of making the lines local numbers so peo-

ple could call local instead of having to call into some vast 1-800
system. Have we done that now?
Ms. Chater. Yes, they are in the phone books.
Mr. Reynolds. OK Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Bunning.
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Mr. BUNNING. Thank you. Glad to see you again, Doctor. Both
you and the GAO report agree that involving the public you serve
in designing future public service is critical; in other words, getting
input rrom your constituents. But aren't the results of such con-

sultations likely to conflict with your mandate to reduce personnel
and probably even the number of neld offices?

In other words, isn't the results cf your consultation going to say
you need more people and more service and the mandate from the
administration is that we are going to have to reduce people and
field offices? How is that conflict going to be resolved unless we put
more dollars in the administration of Social Security?
Ms. Chater. Well, that is exactly the challenge of this position.

I am well aware of the fiscal constraints, and, yes, I think you are
absolutely right. We will certainly in the end come up with cus-

tomer requests that we are unable to meet, but I feel that we have
an additional responsibility to our customers, and that is not just

to ask but to share, to share ideas and have them understand how
best that they can help us improve the service to them.

Let me give you an example. Most of our telephone calls come
at the beginning of the month because that is when people receive

their checks. If we can persuade our clients to call us on the 5th,

6th and 7th instead of the 3rd of the month, it will reduce our peak
workload so that we can give better service when they do call.

I consider part of our responsibility an educational one, educat-
ing the clients we serve to how best we can serve them.
Mr. BuNNlNG. That is fine, but if their check didn't show up on

the 1st, 2nd or 3rd, they are going to be madder than the devil be-

cause it didn't show up, so to defer to the 6th, 7th or 8th may not
be something they want to do. They want service when they call.

We have 75 Social Security recipients monthly call our office

with a problem with the svstem. I don't know how many of my col-

leagues sitting at this desk would have the same amount that call,

but they want service. It is something that the Social Security Ad-
ministration is having a problem with. Or their check is not right

or thev are having a problem getting approval or they are having
a disaoility problem.
The range, as you well know, can be very varied. I suspect with

each Member of Congress averages about 50 to 75 Social Security
calls at their district offices. Your ability to handle that is going to

be directly related to your ability to put on new personnel and to

have additional money rather than less money to handle the
problem.
Ms. Chater. Well, I would like to have additional resources, I

have to tell you that.

Mr. BUNNING. According to what I hear, you are not going to get

any. In fact, you are going to have to make some reductions.

Ms. Chater. As I said earlier in my testimony, I think there are

a number of things that we can do. For example, we have already

in place the ability to take people from one particular function

within an office and move them to a teleservice center during those
peak hours.

If we go to automation, we will be able to take care of some of

the simple requests with electronic voice mail perhaps, a simple
change of address and that sort of thing.
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Mr. Running. Doctor, those suggestions have been around an
awful long time. For you to have that ability additional resources
are needed, and unless we come up with some miraculous way of

funding those things, you are not going to get those additional re-

sources to do all those wonderful things.

We tried to automate Social Security in 1987. There was a very
strong thrust to do that, and so far only part of it has been done.
It is the same with phone calls, the 800 numbers, the local num-
bers, the ability to handle all those things. In reinventing the So-
cial Security Administration and its ability to deal with people, it

seems to me that you are going to have to come to the Congress
and say, instead of less people I am going to need more people, and
I wonder how you are going to make that case to the Congress.
Ms. Chater. I will do my best, Mr. Bunning.
Mr. Bunning. Well, then, you will have the same result as the

other Social Security Commissioners. The best hasn't been good
enough so far because we still have the problem of 75 calls to my
office and to other Member offices. In order to reinvent Social

Security, in my opinion, we are going to have to figure out a way
that we can use some of the Social Security tax to handle the ad-
ministration of the system. Thank you.
Chairman Jacobs. Dr. Chater and Mr. Bunning, let me suggest

this. All we really need to figure out is a way to talk one adminis-
tration after another out of using the Social Security surplus as a
subterfuge to hide what the Federal funds budget situation really
is. You have plenty of money to do your job if the law would allow
you to use your own money to do it. When a citizen of the United
States pays his or her Social Security taxes, that citizen pays not
only for the right to benefits, but something equally important, the
delivery of the right.

A right without execution is something you can hang on the wall
or talk about at dinner. However, if you pay your taxes and you
provide a surplus, enough to put the nest egg aside for the baby
boomers when they retire, which was the reason in 1983 that the
bailout was undertaken, it should not come out of current services.
Nobody in 1983 said it was their plan to do that.

You have already testified that yours is the most frugal overhead
of any program that anybody can imagine, government or non-
government. You certainly beat private insurance companies by a
country mile. So it seems to me that the problem is partly with the
management and budget people and partly with the Congress
itself

Now, the administration opposes the proposal for an independent
Social Security agency, and therefore you must oppose it also. You
are part of the administration, but Mr. Bunning and I and several
other members of the committee do not oppose it. We think that
it is a giant step toward allowing the Social Security system to

mind its own business and requiring the rest of the Federal
Government to mind its own business.
A mandate from 0MB that everybody is going to be cut a certain

amount is rather like saying all cottage cheese is made in cottages.
You are an entirely different animal. You are supposed to be sepa-
rate. You have your own funding and you have your own obliga-
tions, and skimping on those obligations won't cause the Federal
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Government to borrow one nickel less. I think the challenge is for

the Congress and for the President to recognize that simple fact.

Lord knows the people who pay the taxes and are entitled to the
benefits don't find that concept complicated at all.

Sometimes the political process's main goal is to complicate the
uncomplicated and therefore unobscure the realities. I think there
are a lot of members of this committee who aren't interested in

doing that. There was one item in the GAO
Mr. Houghton. Will the gentleman yield just a minute?
Chairman Jacobs. Of course, absolutely. We need somebody to

run the system.
Mr. Houghton. No, no, I would just like to add a concern here

because I would agree with you and Mr. Bunning. I think the con-

cept of having an individual Social Security agency is very, very
important, but it doesn't mean anything unless the funds go with
it. If you could isolate the funds with it and not just have a mana-
gerial change, that is the critical issue.

Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Houghton, the funds are already isolated.

We have already done that. The Social Security Trust Funds are
already off the budget. They are their own budget. What I am say-
ing is that moving the mind set of 0MB and the Appropriations
Committee here from either a fantasy or a calculated subterfuge,
whichever it might be, in any case, can be partly advanced by re-

emphasizing this is a separate operation of the government. I

might add it is a separate operation of the government that will

not follow the example of the Postal Service.

If you want to know what a cowboy will do when he gets drunk,
you find out what he did the last time he got drunk. This one has
traditionally been frugal and been efficient. I don't know, maybe I

should put that a different way. If you want to find out what a cow-
boy did the last time he was sober
Mr. Bunning. Mr. Chairman, are you sure you want that on tele-

vision

Chairman JACOBS. Yes, I like cowboys. They operate better when
they are happy.
Mr. Bunning. If you would yield, I would suggest all members

of our subcommittee sign on to our independent agency bill. I

would appreciate that very much.
Chairman Jacobs. That would be great. I should add that I am

quoting Senator Mike Monroney who said that at a speech in

Indianapolis, I think, in 1956. It sort of caught in my mind. He also

said that Texas had always considered Oklahoma as sort of an out-

lying province, but that is impossible because nobody can outlie

Texas.
How is that for television? Safe enough if you are from Indiana,

I guess.
Mr. Brewster. Mr. Chairman, I think you are getting deeper in

trouble.

Chairman Jacobs. Could be. Could be. The GAO report asserts

that when it comes to disability determination, automation is like

tanks in Korea, not too relevant to the job. In other words, that it

is labor intensive, so do you agree with that portion of the report?

Ms. Chater. It is labor intensive, yes.
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Chairman Jacobs. So we don't really just have a "take-a-pill-

and-call-me-tomorrow" situation. That is an infantry job. You have
got to slug it out with Nick and Charlie. So with that, are there
any further questions or observations?
You have done beautifully on your maiden voyage here, Dr.

Chater. Thank you very much for coming to us today.
Ms. Chater. Mr. Jacobs, thank you very much, members of the

committee.
Chairman Jacobs. Our next witness is, in fact, the Greneral

Accounting Office represented by Jane Ross.
Ms. Ross, please proceed in your own fashion.

STATEMENT OF JANE L. ROSS, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, INCOME
SECURITY ISSUES, HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION, U.S. GEN-
ERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE, ACCOMPANIED BY LEONARD
BAPTISTE, JR., ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FOR INFORMATION
RESOURCES MANAGEMENT ISSUES, ACCOUNTING INFORMA-
TION AND MANAGEMENT DIVISION

Ms. Ross. Thank you. I have with me Bob Rosensteel and Len
Baptiste who were instrumental in developing this GAO manage-
ment report, and I would like to submit my full statement for the
record and just summarize.
Chairman Jacobs. Without objection.

Ms. Ross. I am pleased to be here today to testify on our current
review of the management of the Social Security Administration.
We are suggesting actions that SSA should take in order to provide
the world class service to its beneficiaries that Dr. Chater talked
about.

If the agency fails to make major changes in the way it conducts
business, it risks serious degradation of its service levels. Dr.
Chater certainly has a daunting task ahead of her, but she has laid

out an ambitious program that is worthy of our attention.
We are happy to note that she has demonstrated a commitment

to the SSA planning process that should assure it continued mo-
mentum. As of now, however, the agency is experiencing severe
strains and good public service is in jeopardy. Disability work loads
are rising dramatically because more people are applying for bene-
fits today than ever have before.

The growth in these workloads has so stressed the local offices

that there are terrifically long delays in making decisions. An ap-
plicant now waits a hundred days at least for an initial claim to

be processed and over a year if tne decision is appealed. Also SSA
has reduced the number of reviews of continuing eligibility for dis-

ability in order to take care of its backlog.
That decision costs the trust fund hundreds of millions of dollars

yearly and certainly jeopardizes public confidence in the progpram.
Further, on the topic of telephones, people that call the local office

encounter busy signals over half of the time, and callers to the 800
number find the phone lines busy about a quarter of the time.

As if the current situation isn't sufficiently dire, SSA will face

even greater challenges in the future. By 2005 there will be almost
5 million more people age 65 and older than there were in 1990.

In addition, changes in the demographics will have more of the
aged population moving South and West while there are large
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numbers of the SSI, the aged and disabled poor concentrated in

metropolitan areas in the North and East. That will require some
readjustment of services.

Also as a result of immigration, SSA expects greater numbers of

non-English-speaking people as clients. While tney are experienc-
ing this tremendous increase in their case load, they will be experi-

encing major staffing changes as well. Roughly 75 percent of the
current supervisory staff at SSA will be eligible for retirement
within the next 10 years. Maybe they ought to try getting through
on the telephone, right?

The scope of these changes and the increased pressure to reduce
the costs of government, as Mr. Bunning said, suggests that SSA
will have a terrifically difficult job, but will certainly have to pru-
dently and innovatively manage if they are going to have less re-

sources and more requirements.
SSA's vision of how to meet its public service challenges is con-

tained in their strategic plan. However, as has been mentioned al-

ready, the plan's objectives for how fast and accurately SSA will

serve the public were developed without any consultation with cli-

ents or anyone else outside the agency. If they really are going to

be responsive to clients, they will have to ask beneficiaries,

Congress, and interest groups what services they want and need.
That could also help prioritize, so they spend most of their re-

sources on more important things.

SSA next needs to determine the mix of face-to-face and tele-

phone services they will provide, the numbers of field offices they
will need, the skills they should recruit for and the number and
types of computers they will purchase. In other words, they need
to develop not just this vision in the strategic plan but a real blue-
print for how they are going to do business. Without the clear blue-
print of how and where the agency should operate in the future,

SSA is risking billions of dollars on computer system solutions that
may fall short of supporting their operational needs and improving
public service.

Clearly SSA must also streamline its work processes if it is to

achieve the maximum quality and productivity from its substantial

investment in new systems technology. As we have heard already,

SSA has already begun to reengineer the disability process. This is

certainly an excellent end we think just exactly the right first step.

We encourage them to continue that and to look at reengineering
all of their key processes.
While they have made significant improvements over the course

of our financial management—I am sorry, over our management
reviews, we are concerned about one thing in the area of financial

management. They need to complete their debt management infor-

mation system and centralize responsibility for that function.
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If SSA fails to meet these management challenges, there may be
drastic consequences. SSA provides benefits for about 47 million
people today. It will provide benefits for many more people in the
future. If they can't establish necessary long-range olans and then
efficiently manage computer systems modernization, address their

work force needs and control their finances, it risks significant de-

terioration of its future ability to serve the public.

This concludes my statement. I will be very happy to answer
your questions.

[The prepared statement follows:]

76-832 0-94-2
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TESTIMONY OF JANE L. ROSS
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, INCOME SECURITY ISSUES, HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

I am pleased to be here today to testify on our current review of
the management of the Social Security Administration (SSA) . We are
suggesting actions that SSA should take to provide world-class
service to its beneficiaries. If the agency fails to make major
changes in the way it conducts business, it risks serious
degradation of its ability to provide high-quality public service.

We reviewed SSA's management in 1987 and again in 1989 and made
many recommendations for improving long-range planning and the
management of computer systems, personnel, and finances. During
our current review, we evaluated SSA's progress in making
improvements in these areas and in preparing for the service
delivery challenges of the future. Many of the actions we
suggested that SSA undertake are echoed in the report of the
National Performance Review (NPR)

.

The challenges facing SSA include major changes in its work loads,
and its automated and human resources. The aging of the baby-boom
generation will dramatically increase SSA's work loads. By 2005,
there will be 4.8 million more persons aged 65 and over than there
were in 1990. For those who are 65, life expectancy will be an
additional 15.8 years for men and 19.7 years for women. This will
result in a significant increase in the number of beneficiaries and
a corresponding increase in the demand for claims processing and
maintenance of payment accounts and wage records.

SSA's work loads also will increase beginning in 1995 when it is
required to send personal-earnings and benefit-estimate statements
to all 60 to 65 year old individuals not receiving benefits.
Beginning in 1999, all workers will receive these statements. SSA
estimates that several thousand additional work years will be
needed to process these work loads.

Disability work loads have already risen dramatically because today
more persons are applying for and receiving disability benefits
than ever before. The rapid growth in these work loads has
resulted in unacceptably long delays in making disability
decisions. It now takes on average about 100 days to have a claim
processed without appeals and over a year including appeals.

In addition, changes in beneficiaries' demographics could alter
where and how SSA does business. In the future, a higher
percentage of the population will live in the South and West, while
large numbers of SSI beneficiaries will be concentrated in the
metropolitan areas of the North and East. Decisions about where
and how to provide service may involve redeploying staff and
redesigning work processes to accommodate these situations.

As a result of a steady increase in immigration, SSA expects
greater numbers of non-English-speaking clients. This will require
SSA to develop or hire staff who are multi-lingual. SSA also
expects to serve both an increasing number of computer-literate
clients who want to do business through automated means as well as
a significant segment of the client population who lack the ability
to function in an automated environment. This will require SSA to
provide a variety of service options to fully meet client needs.

At the same time, SSA will experience major staffing changes due to
the aging of its work force and the exodus of a large number of
managers. The size and nature of all these changes and the
increased pressure to reduce the costs of government suggest that
SSA will have to prudently and innovatively manage its resources to
continue to provide quality public service.

LONG-RANGE PLANNING

In 1987, SSA lacked a vision for how to conducu business and had no
systematic way to surface or resolve long-standing problems such as
computer systems modernization and the disability program. Since
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then, SSA has made considerable progress in establishing a process
to set agencywide goals and guide budget decisions. However,
additional improvements are needed.

The foundation of SSA's management strategy is the agency's
strategic plan. The plan describes SSA's future direction and
provides a framework for its planning efforts. However, the plan's
objectives for how fast and accurately SSA will serve the public,
for example, providing access to an SSA representative through
SSA's 800 number within 24 hours of the client's first call, were
developed without consulting clients or otherwise involving anyone
outside the agency. Had SSA asked its clients and others, SSA may
have changed or refocused some of its service objectives. SSA
needs to involve beneficiaries, the Congress, and interest groups
in its planning to develop a clearer understanding of the levels
and types of service SSA beneficiaries will want and need in the
future and to help prioritize its efforts to meet service
objectives. Several NPR recommendations likewise focus on actions
SSA should take to better reflect customer needs and emphasize
customer service.

In this regard, we have begun holding beneficiary focus groups in
Atlanta and Boston to test the feasibility of soliciting customer
input for planning purposes. We understand that SSA is planning to
conduct focus groups for this purpose beginning in January 1994.

The next step in long-range planning should be the development of a

service delivery plan or business process plan, but SSA has not yet
completed this step. The plan should give specific information on
where and how beneficiaries will be served in the future. In
developing this plan, SSA needs to determine the number and type of
field offices needed, the number and type of personnel needed
(including their required skills and abilities), and desired
processing times and accuracy rates for its critical work loads.
Such a plan should also spell out computer needs, including how
many and what types of computers are needed and how and where data
should be transmitted and stored.

That SSA needs to determine the appropriate number of its field
offices is consistent with the NPR's conclusions. NPR recommended
that the Department of Health and Human Services review its field
office structure to emphasize customer service and increased
accountability.

Without a clear vision of how the agency should operate in the
future, SSA is risking billions of dollars on computer-system
solutions that may fall short of adequately supporting operational
needs and improving public service. For these reasons, SSA needs
to reexamine its systems modernization plan to be certain that the
plan fits with SSA's vision of how it plans to conduct business in
the future.

In addition to planning effectively, SSA's management needs to know
whether the actions that it takes to improve operations and
ultimately public service achieve their intended results. To do
this, SSA should establish a systematic evaluation process. This
will allow SSA to determine which initiatives are succeeding and
why, to terminate or adjust those initiatives that are not
succeeding, and to effectively target its resources in subsequent
budgets .

COMPUTER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT

The quality of SSA's service to the public depends largely on how
well its computer-systems support operations. SSA is currently
planning a major redesign of its computer systems that could cost
between 5 and 10 billion dollars through fiscal year 2005. SSA
hopes that the new system will handle the anticipated growth in the
beneficiary population and decrease long processing times for
disability decisions while improving public service and
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productivity. However, given SSA's long-standing problems in
managing its computer systems effectively, additional steps are
needed.

We have already discussed integrating the computer-systems plan
with the business process or service delivery plan. SSA must also
streamline its work processes if it is to achieve the maximum
quality and productivity improvements from its substantial
investment in new systems technology. Already, SSA has begun to
reengineer the disability program, and we encourage SSA to
reengineer all of its key processes.

In addition, SSA needs to identify the costs and benefits of its
systems modernization initiatives. We have reported on problems in
this area since 1987 and, in our view, SSA continues to make key
systems decisions without sufficient justification. For example,
SSA is planning to acquire 80,000 computers and 2,800 local area
networks through fiscal year 1998. However, SSA has neither fully
justified the need for all this hardware nor shown the extent to
which the hardware will increase productivity and improve service.
Substantial productivity and service gains could possibly be
achieved with less computer hardware than SSA purchased and placed
in the offices where it is conducting its pilot tests.

HUMAN RESOURCES ISSUES

SSA needs a human resource plan to provide direction on the number
and type of personnel needed to provide effective public service.
A human resource plan would also coordinate the various initiatives
to improve management training, succession planning, career
advancement, and the quality of SSA's work environment.

Developing a well-trained and motivated work force should be one of
SSA's primary concerns. However, many of the supervisors we spoke
with said that they are not receiving the training that SSA
requires after promotion to leadership positions. In addition,
many lower-level SSA employees told us that they lack the training
necessary to apply agency policy and fully use computer systems.
SSA also needs a formal program to develop and train potential
supervisors and managers. Roughly 75 percent of current
supervisory staff will be eligible for retirement within the next
10 years.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

While SSA has made significant improvements to its financial
management systems over the years, we would like to underscore a
continuing problem. Debts owed SSA at the end of 1992 totaled
about $3.6 billion. The information needed to manage this debt is
woefully inadequate and the automated system to generate the
information has been under development for 10 years and likely will
not be completed until 1995 at the earliest. We believe that SSA
needs to create a debt-management organization with a single
manager responsible for all aspects of debt management, similar to
the model used in many private businesses. This would provide
greater focus on this process in SSA and promote a single point of
authority and accountability for improving debt-management
techniques, processes, and results. To date, SSA has been
unwilling to make this change. NPR has made several
recommendations to help improve financial management at SSA,
including enhancements to improve the collection of debt and
removal of ineligible beneficiaries from the benefit rolls. We
support these recommendations and believe that they would help
improve SSA's financial operations.

CONCLUSIONS

Failure to meet SSA's management challenges could have serious
consequences. SSA provides benefits to about 47 million people
today. It will have to provide benefits and services to many more
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people in the future. If SSA cannot establish the necessary long-
range plans, efficiently manage computer-systems modernization,
address work-force needs, and control its finances, it risks
significant deterioration of its future ability to serve the public
in an efficient and effective manner.

Moreover, budgetary constraints and the downsizing of government
suggest that SSA can no longer afford to conduct business as usual.
SSA has to do more with less.

This concludes my statement. I will be happy to answer ar\y
questions

.
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Chairman Jacobs. Thank you, Ms. Ross.

Mr. Bunning.
Mr. Bunning. First of all, I would like to compliment the GAO

for such a comprehensive report. I am sure you have given the new
commissioner an awful lot of worries and a lot of food for thought.

In my view, your report makes an excellent case for a Social

Security Administration as an independent agency again. Would
you say that would be true, Ms. Ross?
Ms. Ross. One of the most important things we need at Social

Security is leadership commitment and probably continuous leader-

ship. I am not sure that you can get more committed leadership or

leadership that lasts a longer period of time in an independent
agency or an agency within HHS.
GAO in the past hasn't taken a position nor are we today.

Mr. Bunning. I understand the problem, but the fact of the

matter is that the problem has continued administration after ad-

ministration, after administration, so if it were pulled out of an ad-
ministration, out of HHS the possibility of having continuous man-
agement over a period of time would be greater than it is presently;

is that true?
Ms. Ross. It may be possible, but our concern is that whatever

leadership there is that it is committed to these important actions

that need to be taken, and I am not sure that commitment is syn-

onymous with continuity. We are very concerned about the commit-
ment of the leadership of the organization.

I would say Dr. Chater today signaled that she was committed
to making changes.
Mr. Bunning. But in the bill that we introduced there is a defi-

nite term of office for the people that are involved in the manage-
ment of Social Security. Repeatedly you have made the point that

SSA's planning efforts are set back when either the administration
or, more commonly, the commissioner changes.
Short of placing more responsibility and accountability directly

on SSA, how would you suggest Congress or SSA address the chaos
created by turnovers. If it wouldn't be by an independent agency,
how would you suggest that it would be done?
Ms. Ross. One of the things that we would suggest is that sub-

committees like yours exercise the kind of oversight you are doing
now and that we continue to do our overseeing management re-

views so that we select a set of goals for the agency and then we
all monitor them.
We can monitor them on your behalf, that we actually look from

the outside and hold their feet to the fire.

Mr. Bunning. That is kind of an ivory tower look from the top,

not a bottom-up review from out in the field. The good doctor sug-

gested that they are going to have these hearings and all the con-

sultation with the constituents.

What if the constituents come back and say we want smaller

field offices, we want more of them, and we want face-to-face meet-
ings on SSI or whatever it might be. They really would like face-

to-face meetings on all these things. Obviously we can't do that,

can we?
We don't have the money to do it unless we got an independent

agency to take care of it, so—go right ahead.
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Ms. Ross. It is risky to ask people what they want because they
may tell you. It seems to me that one of the things the beneficiaries

and others can tell SSA is how to set their priorities, how to spend
some of their time and resources on what is more important and
some other on what is less important. But let me make another
point, too, and that is that I think you are right that when you ask
beneficiaries or Congress, they will want to know how you can add
to the front line face-to-face service with beneficiaries.

One of the things that SSA has to be doing at the same time is

figuring out how all of its processes are more efficient so perhaps
there are more people to put right on the front line. That is where
I think reengineering comes in. They have to figure out how to im-
prove the processes which are now very time consuming and very
labor intensive.

By improving the efficiency of how work is done, there will be
more people who can deal with the public and fewer who will be
doing the back room kinds of things.

Mr. BUNNING. But isn't it true that as you said in your report,

there is going to be how many more millions of people involved by
the year 2005, and we can't handle what we have now. How are
we going to handle 10 million more by the year 2005? What are we
going to do to take care of that? I don't think the man-hours can
be cut down by automation or by screening, by whatever process

you would like to speak about that would make handling that
many more people possible unless there is more personnel put into

the administrative part of it.

Ms. Ross. You may well be right. One of the things we haven't
done, but we think needs to be done is that SSA look at its staffing

imbalances. There are offices where people wait hours and hours
for service. There are other places where you zip in and out. I think
that needs to be looked at.

I also think that we might—we would like to see some workload
analysis done to figure out where there could be some productivity
gains achieved within the organization. Those are the kinds of

things we think SSA ought to be about.

Mr. Bu^fNING. Thank you very much.
Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Jefferson.

Mr. Jefferson. To clarify what Mr. Bunning was asking, do you
think the Congress made a mistake some years ago when it decided
to streamline the agency, if you will, by cutting employees and de-

pending upon automation or technology to create greater effi-

ciencies and make up for the service gap that might otherwise be
thought to exist because employees were dropped? Was that a mis-
take? And if it was, what should we do to correct it now?
There is no point in talking about reinventing government if we

aren't facing the realities of what people want and what they need
out there, and all of the niceties about how we will make it work,
somehow it will work out, really doesn't get us anywhere. If we are
going to reinvent it, we might as well reinvent it so it works.
Ms. Ross. I would agree with that. I think the approach that was

taken in the 1980s where the people went away and then you fig-

ured out how to do things better with those people missing wasn't
necessarily the way I would recommend doing it.
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I think if you are going to try and figure out how to have a more
efficient operation, you do things hke reengineering. Now, we have
all talked about it so much already this morning you probably
think we believe it is a panacea. It no doubt isn't, but I do think
you have to start and look at work processes and figure out how
to do them more efficiently, and that is how you figure out how
many people you need. And then when you figure that out, I would
hope somebody would allow SSA to have that many.
Mr. Jefferson. So the cutting or streamlining of the staff was

done on the hope that the efficiencies would produce acceptable re-

sults, but no one had taken any steps to really test that out or to

be in a position to test it in advance.
Now, with the benefit of experience, though, looking back over it,

my question is, if it is considered a mistake, how do we fix it now?
Do we fix it now with the study you are talking about in this

reengineering business and all the rest?

What I am concerned about is all the calls. We are getting all

the other things that have been discussed here this morning, and
how do we handle all these people who have real problems out
there. All of this talking around the issue, we really need to once
and for all resolve it for them. After all, the Chairman is saying

they are paying for it, at least they think they are anyhow, and I

guess they are, but we aren't delivering for them.
Ms. Ross. You are certainly correct that most of the stuff people

have talked about this morning in terms of reengineering and com-
puter systems may be an aid in the longer term, maybe 5 years,

3 years from now, some of those things will start to kick in. I am
worried, as you are, about what the next couple of years look like.

We don't have anything particular to tell you as a magic answer
to that. You already have a disability program with terrific back-

logs, and with people working large number of hours of overtime.

I don't know how things can get better. Well, I can think of one
way, and I bet you can, too, of how things could be made a little

better in the short term.
Maybe GAO certainly doesn't subscribe to asking for more staff,

but it doesn't appear that the long-term solutions are going to kick

in for a while, and I don't know whether overtime can make it in

the short term. You have a couple of years that you still have to

grapple with.

Mr. Jefferson. And the only answer to that couple of years is

more staff, isn't it?

Ms. Ross. If I were sitting where you are, I think that would
occur to me.
Mr. Jefferson. I don't have any further questions.

Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Houghton.
Mr. Houghton. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Two specific ques-

tions; one, about the continuing disability reviews. I guess the

Social Security Administration plans to do this through a question-

naire rather than a person-to-person approach. It just doesn't seem
right to me to be able to do that proper review on a piece of paper
rather than across the table or on an individual basis.

How do you feel about that? Then, I have another question I

would like to ask you.
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Ms. Ross. OK We have certainly encouraged SSA to try to see
if they can be more efficient in the way they do their continuing
disabihty reviews and see if they couldn't do some profiling in ad-
vance of selecting the people who will be reviewed, and they have
done that. I think they ought to continue to see how you could fine

tune this selection process so that you are only asking people to get
medical reviews where you understand a little better the prob-
ability that they really have are covered.
We ourselves have some reservations about the role that this

mailer will play in the process. People self-reporting their medical
condition. We are doing a job for this committee, a piece of work
for this committee to respond to that concern that you have and
that we share. In a couple of weeks we will be briefing staff here
to tell them what we found out, at least at first blush because
Social Security has just started to use this system.
There is a lot of concern about the self-reported mailing part, I

agpree.

Mr. Houghton. OK. Now, the next question is a little more gen-
eral. I have the sense that we are sort of reviewing each other all

the time. I mean, you did a great report and you are interested in
helping the SSA. We are reviewing that with you. Other people are
reviewing you over at the Government Operations Committee.
Ms. Ross. Yes, they are.

Mr. Houghton. Everybody is reviewing one another. I wonder
whether we are really getting at the critical issues.

Here you say that if Social Security can't develop necessary long-
range plans—well, why won't they? If they can't manage the com-
puter system modernization, why won't they? If they don't address
work force needs, and control finances? I mean, if they don't, clear-

ly we are in trouble, but what makes you think in terms of the im-
petus and the motivation and the drive of that agency that they
won't do those things?

It seems to me that one of the things that we have lacked is suf-

ficient funds for the Social Security system really to do its job. I

don't mean necessarily people funds, but capital funds. There is no
ability to take massive moves such as private industry does and
really reinvent a computer system because it all has to be expense.
There is no sort of a natural evolution in terms of a capital pro-
gram. Would you like to make some comment about tliat?

Ms. Ross. I think trying to do some of those things, long-term
planning and doing the systems modernization, are very com-
plicated in the government because of all the people who get to say
no to either the number of staff you want or the budget and so on.

I want to go back to a different point which has less to do with
money and has to do with committed leadership. We think that if

you have a very committed leadership at SSA, that a lot of the
long-term planning, a lot of the redesigning and reengineering can
happen and that some of those things really aren't very costly, at
least in the first instance.

I am not saying that you will be able to do this, all these things
with no expenditures—that is preposterous—but what we were
concerned about as we did the management review was seeing con-
tinually that things slipped away or dropped off the table because



38

the senior management just didn't push them enough, so we would
want to make a big point of that.

Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Brewster.
Mr. Brewster. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I notice here it has

that SSA's disabihty backlogs are clearly a source of customer dis-

satisfaction. I think we would all be agreeable on that. Does GAO
believe that these backlogs can be handled through streamlining
the agency as is suggested by National Performance Review or do
you believe additional resources will be required?
Ms. Ross. I think that we will have to hear what the report in

March 1994 says about how you would reengineer the process be-

fore I would be able to judge whether you would need more or

fewer resources.

Mr. Brewster. I noticed, too, that I believe Congress gave Social

Security something like $1.2 billion back about 1987 or 1988 to

start modernizing equipment. How has that gone? What has
been—has the money been utilized? Is some of it still to be spent?
Do you have any idea on that?
Ms. Ross. If you are asking just about the dollars, I really don't

know exactly where they are in the dollars. I am not sure if you
do.

Mr. Baptiste. The 1987 modernization really was to bring in the
tap terminals that they use today in the offices. That gets into the
reengineering area. What they did is they brought in equipment to

automate their current processes. There aren't really any effi-

ciencies in that. In their new modernization, going out and asking
for what they call intelligent work stations and local area net-

works, we are concerned that they don't make the same mistake.
That is why they have initiated this reengineering effort, which we
think is very positive.

Mr. Brewster. So the money spent in 1987 to get new equip-

ment, that equipment won't be used in the new modernization?
Mr. Baptiste. Their plan is to change over to a completely dif-

ferent system, yes.

Mr. Brewster. So how much was spent on that system, any
idea?
Mr. Baptiste. I don't have those figures, but we can get that for

you if you like.

Mr. Brewster. I saw some figures that indicated total mod-
ernization was going to be upward of $20 billion.

Mr. Baptiste. We have seen estimates anywhere from $5 billion

to $15 billion. This includes the software to support the mainframe
systems they have today, which will interact with the intelligent

work stations that they are planning to put in place. That is why
we are concerned that before you make such a commitment, you
identify how you are going to do business in the future so that the

computer systems can support the new way of doing business and
not the old way, like Dr. Chater had said, which has evolved over

50 years and is very labor intensive and very inefficient.

Mr. Brewster. I agree, it certainly makes sense. Thank you.

Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Pickle.

Mr. Pickle. Mr. Chairman, I will reserve my questions. I want
to hear some of the panel. Thank you.
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Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Jefferson brings up a point that I think
ought to be emphasized. During the 1980s, if I recall correctly, the
RIF was something on the magnitude of 17,000 people. Is that cor-

rect, for the Social Security Administration? And the theory was
that all 17,000 would be replaced by automation. During the 1980s
there were several false starts, as I recall, on what the automation
would be. Different commissioners thought that the buttons on the
computers should be different colors or something like that, but
they kept starting over again rather like trying to build a bridge

across the river, every morning picking another button and some-
place else on the river to get across. However, the reduction in

force continued precisely on schedule as the automation fell back,
and thereby created the gap in personnel and the diminution in

adequate administration of the benefits.

I should add that up until yesterday around 3 p.m., I had always
heard the figure to be about 6,000 personnel lag right now; that is

to say that automation had covered about 11,000 of the 17,000 who
were let go, and there was still a gap of 6,000 in order to have any
hope of providing decent and adequate service and administration
of the benefits.

At 3 o'clock yesterday aflemoon I read your report and maybe I

was tired already, but I thought I saw a figure like 17,000 needed
between now and the turn of the century. Did I read that right, or

did I dream that up?
Ms. Ross. We said that—I believe we were quoting people within

SSA who said if you looked at the workloads that were coming up
and if you continued to do work in the same way it is done now,
this would be the—this might be the outcome.

Clearly you can see why they are busying themselves about
things like reengineering. Nobody expects them to get 17,000 peo-
ple. Might I just say, I wasn't in a position to say this officially for

the 1980s, but my recollection is there wasn't a RIF, there was a
freeze. I just don't want you to think that people were
Chairman Jacobs. Freeze, RIF, 17,000 went some way or other,

up the flue, down the tubes, down the drain, some way or other

they were beamed out. Disappeared, just like that. You don't want
to take a position on the independent agency, do you, Ms. Ross?
You are not authorized to take a position? You would have to tell

us at lunch?
Ms. Ross. I guess in terms of the things that we are talking

about today, I am not sure that an independent agency solves the

concerns that we have about leadership commitment.
Chairman Jacobs. Do you take into account the second-stage

thinking that I suggested, the psychological effect on the shakers
and movers at 0MB and the Appropriations Committee, the psy-

chological effect with the public generally that if it were an inde-

pendent agency they would stop swallowing this myth that the So-

cial Security surplus is somehow part of the Federal funds budget.
That is really the question.
Ms. Ross. I don't know what role the SSA
Chairman Jacobs. They say where there is no brain there is no

pain. All that happens up here in perceptions in politics, they ani-

mate action. That was my point, and I think that is Mr. Bunning's
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point as well. I want to make it plain enough so that even people
at 0MB can understand.
Ms. Ross. I see.

Chairman Jacobs. I know that is another ambitious program,
but
Ms. Ross. Well, if you—the thing that we have seen is evidence

that there are a lot of—a large proportion of the public that doesn't

have very much confidence in the fact that there will be funds
there to pay their benefits when they get older. If you think that

this moves in the direction of public confidence, then it might seem
appropriate.
Chairman Jacobs. You mean an independent agency?
Ms. Ross. Yes.
Chairman Jacobs. Great. You are dismissed. You can go.

Mr. Pickle, are you germinating a thought there?

Mr. Pickle. No.
Chairman Jacobs. We thank you for your testimony, especially

the end of it.

Our next witness is the Honorable, some ways venerable, Arthur
S. Flemming. A great hunk of history visits us again today from
the Save Our Security organization. Dr. Flemming, we are pleased
and honored that you are here. Please proceed in your own fashion.

STATEMENT OF HON. ARTHUR S. FLEMMING, CHAHl, SAVE
OUR SECURITY. AND FORMER SECRETARY, U.S. DEPART-
MENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION AND WELFARE
Mr. Flemming. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity of

appearing before you. I have listened to the discussion that has oc-

curred so far in this hearing with great interest. I am going to ask
that my testimony be inserted in the record as prepared.
Chairman Jacobs. Without objection.

Mr. Flemming. I will use some of the testimony, but I would like

to precede it by relating to some of the discussion you have just

had.
First of all, may I say that I have had the opportunity of coming

to know the new Commissioner of Social Security, and I, of course,

have known over the years the Deputy Commissioner. I think it is

an excellent team, and I think we can look forward to the future

with real anticipation.

I have listened to the discussion about finances as far as Social

Security Administration is concerned. This is a subject on which I

have real feeling. I would like to start with your observation about
the trust fund and the utilization of money in the trust fund in

order to render service to the people who have put the money
there.

I agree with you completely, and I agree with you that we have
got to bring about some change, basic change in the attitude of the

Bureau of the Budget in order to accomplisn that. Of course, there

is pending a bill that would also take the administrative budget off

the general budget.
I know many of you feel that you have already done that, but

nevertheless the Bureau of the Budget ruled that you hadn't done
it and therefore there is a bill pending that would bring that about.

I have watched with great interest the evolution of the institution
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of the Bureau of the Budget. I happened to have the opportunity

of deahng with them in the Roosevelt administration. I have had
the opportunity of deahng with them ever since then.

Something really has to be done to bring about a halt to the

present evolution of the Bureau of the Budget if we are going to

accomplish some of these obiectives. There is no doubt about it.

I have listened to your observations relative to an independent
agency. I testified a few weeks ago in the Senate Finance Commit-
tee in support, in behalf of SOS in support of an independent agen-

cy, and in support of a bipartisan board to head that agency, but,

you know, even an independent agency would have difficulties with

the present attitude of the Bureau of the Budget. Let me illustrate.

During the Roosevelt administration Harold Smith was Director

of the Budget, and I happen to know that one day he sent for

Secretary Ickes, Harold Ickes, who was Secretary of the Interior,

to have lunch. While they were having lunch he said you don't

seem to understand what objectives the President desires to accom-
plish with a particular program. Ickes bristled because he felt he
was pretty close to the President and felt he understood what the

President wanted. He said, "Why do you say that?" He said, if you
had—"If you really understood what the President wants to

achieve, you would have asked for more money."
Now, I maintain that is an historic conversation between a cabi-

net officer and the Director of the Budget. That doesn't occur very

often today, but it seems to me that it must occur between
Commissioner of Social Security or the head of an independent So-

cial Security agency if we are really to accomplish something here,

and that is what brings me to the report of the National Perform-

ance Review.
I have been very much impressed with that report because it

deals with the functions of government. Now, I served on both of

the Hoover Commissions. I served on President Eisenhower's three-

man committee on the organization of the government, but here is

a group that has really come to grips with the functions of govern-

ment, and I think that they are making some changes which—or

recommendations which, if put into effect, would provide a revolu-

tion as far as this form of government is concerned.

Many of the recommendations, for example, have just one objec-

tive in mind—to empower a Federal official in the field to act on

the spot when he is confronted with a need that the Federal

Government has committed itself to meet.

Today he can't act on the spot. He is confronted with some rule

or regulation that tells him he can't act, whereas he knows that he
should act in order to meet a human need. I have some optimism
relative to this report because the President has already signed

seven executive orders and six presidential memoranda directing

that some of the recommendations be put into effect. The report

places major emphasis on the reform of the agencies whose activi-

ties affect all parts of the government.
It desires to see these agencies become primarily service agen-

cies, facilitating the operation of Government rather than control

agencies impeding the swift and effective operation of Grovernment.

For example, the report would reduce the activities of the Bureau
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of the Budget, activities that many have complained about for

years and yet we haven't seen anything done about them.
The recommendation of the President should direct 0MB and

agency heads to stop setting FTE ceilings. In fiscal year 1995 it

would relieve SSA, for example, of an unnecessary and burdensome
task. As the report states, instead of controlling the size of the
Federal work force by employment ceilings, which cause inefficien-

cies and distortion in managers, personnel and resource allocation
decisions, the new system will control the Federal work force by
dollars available in operating funds. That is the way the work force
should be controlled, and all this ritual relative to FTE should be
abolished.

Chairman Jacobs. Dr. Flemming, we have sort of run out of your
allotted time, but maybe we can develop the rest of your thoughts
with questions.
Mr. Flemming. If I might just take a couple points because it is

relevant to the issues that you have raised here.

The proposal that the President issue an order, which he has al-

ready done, instructing 0MB to review only significant regula-
tions—not as under the present process all regulations—is excel-

lent. This is a step in the direction of restoring to an operating
agency such as SSA the responsibility of deciding on the regula-
tions it feels are needed in order to carry out its operation.

Far too many SSA regulations have not been issued or have been
unduly delayed because 0MB, which is far removed from day-to-

day operations, has endeavored to substitute its judgment for SSA
whose regulations grow out of the day-by-day operation with which
it is acquainted.

I am sorry to take just, a little time, but I really feel—I would
like to draw on my experience and just say the proposal to delegate
approval of the voluntary customer survey to departments with the
ability to comply with the law instead of 0MB ensure that they
create rapid approval processes is an excellent one. But this delega-
tion has already been made by 0MB. For example, you have talked
about SSA determining what the customer needs.
Today if an SSA official in the field determines that he wants to

prepare an instrument that would reveal what his customers feel

about a particular matter in the field, that instrument has to go
all the way up to 0MB before it can be put into effect. That makes
no sense, and that is being eliminated. The Vice President report
states that the Office of Personnel Management would deregulate
personnel policy by phasing out the 10,000-page Federal Personnel
Manual and all agency implementation regulations.

I greet that with great enthusiasm. I served for 9 years as a
member of the United States Civil Service Commission. I know
how some of these regulations have been prepared. I have got fur-

ther comments on that which you can read in the record, but the
implementation of this portion of the recommendation will be
greatly facilitated by the establishment of a National Partnership
Council which the President has already moved to establish which
will foster labor management relations. That is a revolutionary rec-

ommendation, but that recommendation has a real impact on the
workload of SSA.
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If that recommendation were effected, many SSA employees
would be relieved in order to render service to the SSA. The report

recognizes that many of its recommendations will lead to elimi-

nation of positions, but the report also concludes that SSA needs
additional positions. It says these positions are needed if the proc-

ess is to be adequately carried out for periodically reviewing per-

sons on the disability role to see if they recovered to the point

where they no longer need disability benefits.

The report also finds that using present management practices,

the staff lacks the capacity to provide benefits to legitimate claim-

ants. This situation has been partially met by the 1994 budget in

providing SSA with 2,400 positions and also providing the State

units that work on initial claims with an additional $200 million.

SSA, however, needs to make sure that these new positions are ac-

tually authorized to be filled promptly and not held up as they are

now being held up by existing budgetary procedures.

All I am saying, I feel that we nave some forces at work at the

present time that make me hopeful as far as our form of govern-

ment is concerned. Today it is true that person after person has
said that they have lost confidence in the way our government op-

erates. I believe that some of these proposals that are now pending
that are now being put into operation will have a direct impact on

the ability of the SSA to render the services it should render, as

well as the rest of the government.
I am sorry for taking some of your time, but I had—I just felt

that I had to say that to you because of the issues.

[The prepared statement follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF ARTHUR S. FLEMMING
FORMER SECRETARY OF HEALTH, EDUCATION AND WELFARE

I. Introduction

A. I appreciate the opportunity of appearing before this Subcommittee to

discuss some of the service-wide recommendations of the National

Performance Review and their Impact, if adopted on the operation of the

Social Security system.

B. I believe that, after sixty years of debate, the outstanding leadership

being provided by the President and Mrs. Clinton, assures us that there

will be a national health plan, a plan that will round out the Social

Security system as originally conceived by President Roosevelt's task

force.

C. I believe that, as a result of President Clinton's commitment, many of

the recommendations in Vice President Gore's report will be put in

effect.

1. It is an outstanding document.

2. Its recommendations, when implemented, will have a

revolutionary impact on the way our government discharges

its responsibilities.

3. Many of the recommendations, for example, have just one

objective in mind: To empower a Federal official in the

field to act on the spot when he is confronted with a need

that the Federal government has committed Itself to meet.

D. In fact the President has signed already seven executive orders

and six presidential memoranda directing that some of the

recommendations be put into effect.

II. Body

A. The report places major emphasis on the reform of the agencies whose

activities affect all parts of the government.

1. It desires to see these agencies become primarily service

agencies, facilitating the operation of government rather

than control agencies Impeding the swift and effective operation

of government-
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2. It wants to eliminate many of the control regulations which

have the effect oftentimes of bringing the government to a

halt and to substitute for them a monitoring system to

guard against fraud, abuse, and waste.

B. The report would reduce the activities of the Bureau of the Budget

—

activities that many have complained about for years.

1. The recommendations that the President should direct 0MB and

agency heads to stop setting FTE ceilings In fiscal year 1995

would relieve SSA of an unnecessary and burdensome task.

a. As the report states, "Instead of controlling the size

of the Federal workforce by employment ceilings—which

cause inefficiencies and distortions in managers'

personnel and resource allocation decisions—the new

system will control the federal workforce by dollars

available in operating funds."

b. That is the way the workforce should be controlled.

2. The proposal that the President issue an order, which he has

already done, instructing 0MB to review only significant

regulations, not, as under the current process, all regulations,

is excellent.

a. This is a step in the direction of restoring to an

operating agency, such as SSA the responsibility of

deciding on the regulations it feels are needed in order

to carry out its opera tions.

b. Far too many SSA regulations have not been issued or

have been unduly delayed because 0MB—which is far removed

f-om day-to-day operations—has endeavored to substitute

its judgment for SSA whose regulations grow out of the

day-to-day operations with which it is acquainted.
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3. The proposal to delegate approval of voluntary customer surveys

to departments with the ability to comply with the law, instead

of 0MB, and ensure that they create rapid approval processes

is an excellent one.

a. This delegation has already been made by 0MB.

b. It has made no sense to require such surveys to be

submitted all the way up to 0MB.

C. The Vice President's report states that "The Office of Personnel

Management will deregulate personnel policy by phasing out the 10,000

page Federal Personnel Manual and all agency implementing regulations."

1. The report states that "0PM will then replace the Federal Personnel

Manual and agency directives with manuals tailored to user needs,

automated personnel processes, and electronic decision support

systems."

2. This recommendation assumes that SSA managers, for example, have

the ability and the desire to see to it that these new personnel

standards, including the standard on equal employment opportunity

are carried out—an assumption which I know from recent

experiences is justified.

3. The primary purpose of the Office of Personnel Management and the

SSA personnel offices will be to assist the persons who have

management authority to carry out their duties and to monitor

activities to help ensure that standards are met—they will take

the place of agencies that have as their primary purpose the

Issuance of thousands of detailed regulations which have the result

of impeding the operations of government.
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4. SSA will be relieved of the responsibility of trying to obey

regulations that deprive managers of the authority they need to

carry out one of their most important functions, namely, to get

a well-qualified person on the Job in the shortest possible

period of time.

5. The implementation of this portion of the recommendations will be

greatly facilitated by the establishment of a Na tLonal Partnership

Council, which the President has already moved to establish, which

fill foster labor-management partnership.

D. The report recognizes that many of its recommendations will lead to

an elimination of positions.

E. The report also concludes that SSA needs additional positions.

1. It says that these positions are needed if the process is to

be adequately carried out for periodically reviewing persons

on the disability rolls to see if they have recovered to the

point where they no longer need disability benefits.

2. The report also finds that using present management practices the

staff lacks the capacity to provide benefits to legitimate

claimants.

3. This situation has been partially met by the 1994 budget in providing

SSA with 2,400 positions and In also providing the State units

that work on initial claims with an additional $200,000,000.

4. SSA, however, needs to make sure that these new positions are

actually authorized to be filled promptly and not held up by

existing budgetary procedures.
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III. Conclusion

A. I believe that the Social Security Administration, one of the largest

domestic agencies in our government, faces a new day if the

recommendations in this report are carried out—they will be able to

spend their time on what the customer needs and then do everything

possible to meet the needs the national community has committed

itself to meet.

B. The President is determined to exercise his authority to this end,

C. I feel sure that the Congress will do the same.
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Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Jefferson.

Mr. Jefferson. No questions.

Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Pickle.

Mr. Pickle. No questions.

Chairman Jacobs. Well, since you went a little longer I guess
there aren't any questions. How could anybody ask a question after

that?
Thank you, Dr. Flemming, very much for your testimony.
Mr. FiJCMMlNG. I appreciate tne opportunity, and I look forward

to some progress on this perennial SSA question, particularly with
the disability workload. Thank you very, very much.
Chairman Jacobs. Thank you.
Our first panel includes the American Association of Retired

Persons, Robert Shreve; National Senior Citizens Law Center, Ms.
Ethel Zelenske; and the National Council of Social Security
Management Associations, Mary Chatel.

Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Shreve, please, you are all familiar with
the New York athletics rules. Come out of the corner, 5 minutes
each, and so forth; go to a neutral comer in case of a knockdown.
Mr. Shreve, you are on.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT SHREVE, MEMBER, BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED PERSONS
Mr. Shreve. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Robert Shreve, a

member of the board of directors of the American Association of

Retired Persons. AARP appreciates the opportunity to present its

views on reinventing the Social Security Administration. Stream-
lining government is a legitimate and desirable goal, particularly

in times of fiscal restraint. However, efforts to improve SSA must
be consistent with the agency's central purpose of providing quality

service to beneficiaries and workers whose trust fund dollars have
contributed toward that service. You, Mr. Chairman, have noted
this in your comments to Dr. Chater earlier this morning.
The National Performance Review report contains many worth-

while recommendations for consolidating overlapping functions,

reforming government hiring and procurement practices, and elimi-

nating bureaucratic regulations. Such recommendations will im-
prove the government's ability to get its job done.
SSA currently experiences serious service delivery problems. This

is largely due to turnovers in SSA leadership, a poorly designed
and poorly implemented computerization plan, the lack of system-
atic long-range planning, and the impact of an over 20 percent re-

duction of staff.

The problems are particularly acute in the processing of disabil-

ity applications and in services provided by local offices. The
association urges Congress and SSA to move cautiously in imple-

menting proposals to reinvent SSA that might worsen the current
situation.

Backlogged applications are one part of SSA's disability crises.

The other is the virtual abandonment of continuing disability re-

views. If CDRs were resumed, the Social Security Trust Funds
would be saved $1.4 billion over 5 years. However, 1 million over-

due CDRs cannot be conducted or the disability backlog reduced
until SSA receives adequate funding.
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NPR recommends that each Federal agency and department
assess public opinion about its service and then restructure its

operations accordingly. In addition, the General Accounting Office

believes that SSA should involve the public, interest groups, and
congressional committees in its planning efforts, and we certainly

agree with that. Indeed, a sui^ey that we conducted last year for

AARP found that customer satisfaction with SSA service varies sig-

nificantly according to the nature of the contact and who is asking
for assistance.

Finally, the committee is rightfully concerned about SSA's ability

to keep pace with its future workload. SSA must develop systems
that can better process large numbers of benefits. Given the criti-

cism of SSA's automation initiatives, the association urges the
agency to undertake technological upgrades only after a com-
prehensive analysis of needs and proof that new acquisitions will

serve the test of time.

Even with automation the agency must maintain traditional

modes of public access. Beneficiaries and applicants who lack the
education, the confidence or the mental capacity to conduct busi-

ness in a highly technolo^cal environment need special attention
and at convenient local offices that are properly staffed.

When and how SSA reinvents itself will be a lengthy process.

However, the following interim steps can and should be taken to

improve the agency's service. First, make SSA an independent
agency, as the Chairman and Mr. Running have called for again.

Second, remove the administrative expenses of running the Old
Age Survivors and Disability Insurance programs from the discre-

tionary cap established under OBRA 1990. And finally, monitor
SSA's efforts to improve its corrective service delivery problems
and infuse the agency with additional funding.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Jacobs. Thank you, Mr. Shreve.
[The prepared statement and attachment follow:]
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TESTIMONY OF ROBERT SHREVE
AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED PERSONS

The American Association or Retired Persons (AARP). acpreciates the opportunity to present

its views on revamping the Social Secunty Administration (SSA) as part oi the

Administration's proposals to "reinvent" government. We commend the committee tor

holding this hearing on an issue in which all of us have a stake.

Streamlining government is a legitimate and desirable goal, panicularly in times ot fiscal

restraint. However, eiforts to "improve " government must be consistent with the central

mission ol' providing quality service to Social Secunty benei'icianes and workers whose trust

I'und dollars have contributed towards that service. Because SSA is one ot' the tew I'ederai

agencies with which virtually all Amencans have contact, and because the agency's personnel

and resources already have been cut back, AARP urges Congress to move cautiously in

implementing changes that may further strain Social Secunty's ability to deliver quality

I. BACKGRGLTS'D

A. The Report of the National Performance Review (NPR)

After a six month analysis of the federal government's operations, the Report of the National

Performance Review was released on September 7. Commonly referred to as "reinventing

government," the report contains many worthwhile recommendations for consolidating

overlapping functions, reforming government hiring and procurement practices, and

eliminating bureaucratic regulations that bog down the government's abilitv to get its job

done. AARP urges Congress to examine the report thoroughly and implement those

proposals that will genuinely improve the way the government does business.

The NPR recommendations are divided into four general categories: 1) cutting red tape, 2)

putting customers tlrst, 3) empowering employees to get results, and 4) cutting back to

basics. While the report contains an agency by agency breakdown, it is very general and,

with a few notable exceptions, does not specifically apply to SSA. Furthermore, details on

how individual agencies plan to implement the generalized suggestions were unavailable

when the report was released. However, AARP is concerned about one possible application;

the possibility that SSA might consolidate some local offices as a way to "reinvent" SSA.

B, The Problems at SSA

Almost everyone has contact with SSA at some point in their lives, and to some it is the

government. The agency provides monthly checks to about 42 million Social Secunty

beneficiaries and over 5 million Supplemental Security Income (SSI) recipients, maintains

wage records for 135 million workers, issues new and replacement Social Secunty cards,

processes millions of claims, and responds to countless information and assistance requests.

Besides its Baltimore headquarters, it has 1300 local offices and 10 regional offices

nationwide.

While SSA was once known for its service to the public, serious service delivery problems

have emerged over the last decade. Some of these problems arose because of turnovers in

agency leadership, a poorly designed and poorly implemented computerization plan, and the

lack of systematic long-range planning. However, the largest factor leading to detenorating

service is the over twenty percent staff reduction that took place from 1985 through 1990.

Accomplished through attrition, the downsizing had a particularly devastating impact on the

processing of disability applications and on services provided by the network of local offices.

While these staff reductions were being implemented, the agency was assigned additional

responsibilities resulting from federal legislation and coun-mandated changes in the SSI

disability process. This further strained SSA's resources.

During the 5-year staff reduction, SSA put into place a toll free 800 telephone number.

Intended to relieve pressure on the local offices, the 800 number has been plagued by its own
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problems. Too many callers receive busy signals, especially at peak hours, and some people

receive incomplete and inaccurate advice. The agency cannot expect applicants and

benellcianes to use a system that limits access and dispenses inaccurate or madequate

information.

II. AVERTLNG A CRISIS LN THE DISABILITY PROGRAM

The delays that disability applicants currently face are a matter of concern and. in fact, are

mentioned in the NPR report. Despite some SSA initiatives to relieve the disability

application backlog, applicants still wait an average of three months before being notified

whether they will receive benefits. Those who appeal an initial denial must wait another

year and a half or more before they know the outcome. Receipt of back benefits offers onlv

modest consolation to those who have endured two years of financial hardship.

The NPR also notes that SSA has virtually abandoned Continuing Disability Reviews (CDR)

and recommends their resumption in order to save the Social Security trust funds SI. 4 billion

over 5 years. However, the agency cannot conduct the one million overdue CDRs or reduce

its disability application backlog until it receives adequate funding for both administration and

additional personnel.

.Although Congress has provided SSA with additional funding in Fiscal Year 1994 to relieve

the casework backlog and for an automation initiative, delays in processing, and overdue

CDRs cannot be eliminated unless SSA and the state-run Disability Determination Services

have a sufficient number of staff who are familiar with the disability evaluation process.

Moreover, technology can expedite some of the initial paper processing, but experience has

shown that some problems in evaluating a disability are best eliminated with a face-to-face

assessment.

The Association also wishes to remind this committee that the NPR report calls for a

reduction in the federal work force. It is presumed that the downsizing can be achieved

through attrition and early retirements. Given SSA's problems because of the previous

downsizing, the Association believes that Congress must monitor this process to ensure that

SSA staffing is sufficient to meet aU of its responsibilities. We do not believe it is

appropriate to consider further staff cuts at SSA.

III. CUSTOMER SERVICE

Customer satisfaction is a key element of the National Performance Review. If a

government review had taken place 20 years earlier, SSA might have been touted in the

report for its service to the public. However, AARP has found that customer satisfaction

with SSA service vanes according to the nature of the contact and who is asking for

assistance.

In May and June of 1992, ICR Survey Research group conducted a study for AARP to leam

more about the public's experience with SSA. Although previous agency-initiated surveys

showed the public regarded SSA's service as "excellent" or "good." AARP members

reported difficulty reaching the agency, getting correct information, or resolving problems.

A total of 4,021 people were surveyed about the nature of their contact, if any. with SSA
and the quality of service received. The survey was conducted in four waves.

The results of the survey were first presented to this committee in our March 25, 1993

testimony on President Clinton's stimulus and investment proposals affecting SSA. (A

summary is enclosed for today's heanng.) We would like to point out some survey

highlights that pertain to today's heanng.
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1. Almost 7 in 10 respondents rated SSA's service as "excellent" (32 percent) or "good"

(37 percent). That means the remaining 31 percent viewed service as "fair" or

"poor".

2. Black respondents reported a higher level of dissatisfaction with service (26 percent

rate it "poor") -- a dissatisfaction which apf)ears to cut across all educational levels.

3. Ratings of "poor" were higher in the South and West where office waits tended to be

longer. (Poor ratings were higher among those who had to wait a long time in the

local office for assistance.)

4. Favorable ratings dropped significantly for those with non-routine problems. (One in

eight respondents contacted SSA to discuss a problem.)

5. The major reasons for contacting SSA are to obtain information (42 percent), to file

for benefits (28 percent), to change information (23 percent), to discuss a problem (12

percent), or to get a Social Security card (11 percent).

6. Respondents are as likely to use the 800 telephone number as the local office

telephone number. Slightly more than half the respondents (51 percent) got through

the first time on the 800 number. However, almost one in four (23 percent) used

both numbers.

The NPR report recommends that each federal agency and department assess public opinion

about its service and then restructure its operations accordingly. The General Accounting

Office (GAO) has criticized SSA ("Health and Human Services Issues". December 1992) for

ignoring "a fundamental tenet of effective planning: that meeting the public's expectations--

not internal needs—is the measure of service quality. SSA proceeded without involving the

public, interest groups or congressional committees, leaving the agency without the assurance

that Its objectives and priorities corresponded with the public's expectations, .-^s a result,

SSA may spend its scarce resources on service objectives that it thinks are important but the

public does not." (page 13)

Surveys such as the one conducted for AARP do provide helpful information, especially

when the questions are customer-oriented. Many previous SSA customer surveys included

individuals with telephones and/or those who respond to mailed questionnaires. Both

approaches exclude most who cannot afford a telephone and those who are uncomfortable

about responding to mailed surveys. Yet, this is the population whose needs may go unmet

but whose input would be particulariy valuable to SSA in developing possible alternative

service delivery models.

It also would be useful to have an outside contractor survey SSA staff to gather the opinions

of those SSA employees who work directly with the public to determine whether they think

the public is being served well and what improvements could be made. By obtaining as

much information about service delivery and by involving representatives of affected groups

in the planning process, the agency will avert past problems and go a long way towards

achieving the NPR goal of quality customer service.

IV. AiNTICIPATING FUTURE NEEDS

SSA's workload will continue to increase as the population ages and the work force expands.

To accommodate this growing workload and to return to a higher quality of sen'ice to

beneficiaries, SSA must function in a stable environment that is conducive to undertaking and

implementing long-range programs and policies.

Yet, the GAO has consistently criticized SSA's inability to correct significant, long-standing

problems in management and service delivery, to provide a clear and consistent sense of

direction to its components, to adequately control its systems modernization efforts, and to

focus on personnel management. If these problems go uncorrected, then SSA will have

difficulty meeting the challenges presented when well over 70 million Baby Boomers begin to

retire in the next century.
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SSA's el'fons to modernize as automated data processing (ADP) system exemplify these

problems. In December 1992, the GAO again reported that:

"...much remains to be done to fully justify SSA's systems modernization

plans, which could cost from $5 billion to $10 billion over the next five years.

Specifically, SSA has not completed its operations service delivery plan on

how it will conduct work in the future, including the identification of

alternative work processes. In addition, SSA has not fully justified the costs

and benefits of proposed systems enhancements. Until it takes these actions,

SSA could be acquiring new technologies to automate old processes, rather

than developing new, cost-effective information systems based on more

efficient work processes."

G.AO's concern about SSA's systems modernization plans prompted the House

Appropriations Subcommittee on Labor, Health and Human Services and [Education to

request an Office of Technology Assessment review of the automation initiative. In view of

the ongoing criticism of current SSA automation initiatives, the Association urges the agency

to undertake technological upgrades, now and in the future, only after a comprehensive

analysis of the agency's needs and proof that new acquisitions will serve the test of time.

Even with technological improvements in place, the agency must maintain some of its

traditional modes of access. Some future beneficianes and applicants will lack the education,

the confidence, or the mental capacity to conduct business in a highly technological

environment. For them and all others who need the special attention that can best be

provided in an in-person environment, convenient local offices with the necessary staff levels

must be available.

V. INTERIM STEPS

When and how SSA "reinvents" itself will be a lengthy process. However, there are a

number of interim steps that can be taken that could improve the agency's service. In

particular. Congress should:

Remove the administrative expenses of the Old Age, Survivors and Disability

Insurance programs from the discretionary cap established under the Omnibus

Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990.

Make SSA an independent agency. This would ensure that the agency is run

from a Social Secunty-based agenda and promote public confidence among

today's workers (tomorrow's beneficiaries).

Closely monitor SSA's efforts to improve its service delivery problems and be

prepared to infuse the agency with additional funding.

V. CONCLUSION

SSA faces challenges now and in the future. If the NPR report stimulates a healthy

discussion of how the agency can best serve the public, then it will have made a meaningful

contribution. In the meantime, a number of interim steps that ensure the independence and

adequate administration of SSA should be taken. The Association looks forward to continued

work with this subcommittee to ensure etTicient and quality service to all Social Security

beneficiaries, both now and in the future.
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AARP

Social Security Administration Services:

How the Public Rates Them

f\ nationwide survey of Americans 18 years and older was conducted for AARP's Federal

Affairs Department in May-June, 1992. ICR Research Group of Media, Pennsylvania, sur-

veyed 4,021 persons to find out about the incidence of and their satisfaction with recent

contarts they had with the Social Security Administration.

Contacts with the Social

Security Administration

« A total of 1,050 respondents (11% of

the sample) reported at least one
recent contact with the Social

Security Administration. Some
reported having two and three con-

tacts, with different reasons for dif-

ferent contacts.

Most likely to have had
a contact with the

Social Security

Administration were

those aged 55-64, with

21% reporting contact.

types of contact (37% and 38%).

Only 21% of contacts were made in

writing.

Men (53%) were more likely than

women (44%) to seek in-person con-

tacts, while women (52%) were

much likelier to phone than men
(37%).

Weighted total=9,313.

RESEARCH DIVISION

Sampling

OP., Dy Age 6l uc

Percent

Among this age group

(55-64), 26% of the

women had a contart,

compared with only

15% of the men.

Least likely to have had

a contact are younger

males between the ages

of 18 and 34, with only

7% reporting a contact.

Phone calls and in-per-
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Percent

Reasons for Contact

• The reasons reported for contact were as follows:

To get information (42%)

To file for benefits (28<X.)

To change information (23%)

To discuss a problem (12%)

To get a Social Security card or number (11%).

-, ^nr\:]\ S?runt\-

Percent

File for Get CHdisytr Di»cuii

Benefits Information InfoTnalion Problem
Oet ii
Card

HI Percent of Those Who Had Contact

A.ARP Survey Design and Aralyiiv. November 1992

R.

f ik- sor Get (

Senetiti intoirnation loli.

IB Excellent/Good

• Firs! contact only. N-1050.

AARP Survey Oe«gn and Analviii, ^Jovember '992

Ratings of Service

rVspondents were

asked to rate the efficien-

cy and quality of the ser-

vice they received upon

contact as excellent,

good, fair, or poor. The

findings indicate:

• A high level of over-

all satisfaction, with

32% rating the ser-

vice as excellent, 37%
as good, 18% as fair,

and 11% as poor.
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Percent

• Difficulties encoun-

tered in discussing a

problem most often

evoked a rating of

poor service; 53%
gave a fair or poor

rating of the service

they received in this

situation. Other

services receiving

fair/poor ratings

- getting a Social

Security number
(38%)

- getting informatior

(28%)
- filing for benefits

(27%)
- changing informa-

tion (26%)
- getting a Social

Security card (10%)

• More frequent ratings of poor service

were found in the South (16%) and
West (18%) than in the Northeast

(6%) and North Central (3%)

regions.

Si

30 i»s..-

r.
North tast

HI Excellent _ C"od

• Black respondents were significantly

more likely than whites to rate the

service they received as poor: 26%
percent of blacks but only 9% of

whites rated it as pom. Moreover,

blacks were more likely than whites

to rate service as poor in all geo-

graphical regions of the country.

Percent
00

80



58

Phone Calls and Visits

Amonji respondents who had con-

tacted Social Security by telephone,

nearly equal numbers said they used

the local number and the toll-free

800 number (35% and 36%, respec-

tively). Twenty-three percent report-

ed calling both numbers.

For those calling the 800 number,

only 51% reported reaching a Social

Security employee who assisted them
on the first call. Fourteen percent

said that it took two calls, and 24%
said that it took three calls or more.

• The mean number of calls that all

800 callers placed before getting

assistance was 2.6 calls.

• Eighty-one percent of those calling

the 800 number rated the service as

excellent or good, compared with

only 68% for the local callers. The
highest poor ratings came from those

who said they called both numbers,

probably reflecting difficults' reach-

ing someone to assist them.

• Respondents who visited a Social

Security office in-person reported the

following waiting times:

61% waited 15 minutes or less;

23% waited 15-30 minutes;

9% waited 30 minutes to an hour;

3% waited more than an hour.

• Interestingly, those respondents who
did not have an appointment tended

to have shorter waiting times than

those who had appointments.

Sixty-five percent of those without

appointments waited 15 minutes or

less, compared with 53% of those

with appointments. Six percent of

those with appointments waited over

an hour, compared with only 2% of

those without appointments. This

may indicate that those who visit a

local office without an appointment

do so for routine reasons (e.g., to pick

up a form or ask a question) that do

not require counseling or other time-

consuming procedures.

Summary

• While overall service ratings were

high for routine kinds of interactions

with Social Security, the favorable

ratings dropped significantly when
people had a non-routine problem to

resolve. This may indicate a limited

capacit)' to handle and resolve prob-

lems beyond routine ones like filing

for benefits or getting a Social

Security number.

• One in eight respondents reported a

contart to discuss a problem. If this

rate is extrapolated to the national

level, over 1.3 million potential

"problems" exist across the country.

Further study of this particular sub-

group with problems may be war-

ranted to shed light on the specific

difficulties that they are encounter-

ing.

• A certain regional unevenness in sat-

isfaction with services persists, with

individuals in the South and West

reporting more problems than those

in the Northeast and North Central

regions. Further research exploring

the specific sources of dissatisfaction

might help to clarify' this uneven-

ness.

• Independent of geographic region,

blacks report much higher rates of

dissatisfaction with service. In addi-

tion, this racial differential appears to

be maintained at every education

level except the very lowest (less

than high school), where whites and
blacks give similar poor ratings.

Why this differential exists is unclear

and may be another area for further

research.

For a copy of the full report, contact: Mildred

DePallo or Ruhert Prisiila, Research Division,

American Association of Retired Persons, 601

E Street N.W., Washirixton D.C. 20049.

Phone: (202) 434-6290
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Chairman Jacobs. Ms. Zelenske.

STATEMENT OF ETHEL ZELENSKE, STAFF ATTORNEY,
NATIONAL SENIOR CITIZENS LAW CEN1T:R

Ms. Zelenske. Good morning. Thank you for inviting me to tes-

tify this morning. I think I will come in under 5 minutes, so I bet-
ter start talking. Legal services advocates represent tens of thou-
sands of individuals all over the country in every State every year
before the Social Security Administration. They handle every type
of title II and SSI case and they represent individuals at every ad-
ministrative and judicial level, and I feel that we are uniquely
qualified to know what problems consumers face and to offer rec-

ommended solutions to improve the system.
Last January a group of 35 legal services advocates with exten-

sive experience in Social Security and SSI issues met to discuss
priorities and strategies in dealing with SSA under the Clinton ad-
ministration. This meeting produced a collection of position papers,
and my written statement includes four which address the focus of

today's hearing.
I am not going to go into those in detail. They speak for them-

selves. However, there are several common themes that run
through them. One is that there is a need to increase the avenues
of communication between SSA and the public; two, the process
needs to be streamlined; and, three, the needs of the consumers
must be better served.

In my testimony, I would like to focus on the need to establish
avenues of communication with the public. I believe that improving
access to SSA and working with the administration is one of our
very highest priorities. There are, however, some recent examples
that SSA is undertaking major changes without public participa-
tion.

I must say I was particularly surprised when I read the Vice
President's National Performance Review and found that SSA had
developed 34 customer objectives. I understand now that no cus-
tomers participating in establishing those objectives, and I think
we all know how hard it is to change something once it has been
committed to writing, and I think it is very important that people
be involved in the predraft situation.

Second, we have heard about the process reengineering program.
There needs to be a guarantee of real and meaningful input from
the public. And finally, there appears to be a move afoot to close

some district offices or there is discussion about it. The impact on
the public of such an act must be an integral part of formulating
any plan. SSA and the public are still reeling from personnel cuts
and office closures which took place over the last decade and which
have undermined the real strength of the Social Security Adminis-
tration, which is its network of field offices. These offices allow the
public to obtain personal face-to-face service for which phones and
computers will never be a substitute.

The importance of including the public and outside advocacy
groups in projects are crucial to their success. In the past when
SSA and the public have worked together, problems have been
successfully resolved and have been much more acceptable and
reasonable.
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I remember an example last year which is a particularly good ex-

ample of what happens when you don't involve the public. I was
invited to a meeting whose purpose was to obtain so-called public

input regarding a change in one of the listing of impairments in

the disability process. It involved neurological impairments. The
agency came in with a draft which had involved no public input,

and there were a group of advocates in there.

A gentleman who is with one of the national cerebral palsv asso-

ciations very eloquently used his sign board to tell the chief medi-
cal officer of SSA that the draft proposal did not reflect the kinds
of functional impairments that people with cerebral palsy endure
and that it was very important for the public to be involved in

these kinds of decisions.

What was of concern to me was that the response was basically

what I felt was lip service: Send us your written comments on what
we have given you today. Thus I think when SSA acts unilaterally

its proposals are much less subject to public approval.
I have several suggestions for improving access to SSA and es-

tablishing avenues of communication. One, the commissioner needs
to establish regular meetings with the public. Two, there also needs
to be linkage established with other components of SSA that have
significant dealings with the public such as disability, SSI, and the

Office of Hearings and Appeals. Three, there needs to be better ac-

cess at regional levels and with State DDSs; and, four there needs
to be a meaningful prelitigation procedure established, where
somebody is identified to receive complaints from advocates and
whose job it is to investigate the issue and to determine whether
the matter can be resolved and thus obviating the need for

litigation.

Tnank you.
[The prepared statement follows:]
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STATEMENT OF ETHEL ZELENSKE, STAFF AHORNEY,
NATIONAL SENIOR CITIZENS LAW CENTER

HEARING ON REINVENTING THE SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

OCTOBER 28, 1993

The National Senior Citizens Law Center (NSCLC) provides national advocacy on behalf of

poor persons with specific emphasis on representing the interests of the lowest income elderly persons,

particularly women and racial and ethnic minonties. NSCLC also provides support to legal services.

pro bono, and seniors' advocates who represent elderly poor people. One of NSCLC's prionty areas is

increasing income security for low-income elderly persons, which includes the programs administered

by the Social Security Administration.

Legal services advocates, located in every state and county, annually represent tens of

thousands of low income clients in Titie II and SSI cases. These advocates have extensive dealings

with all levels of the administi'ative and judicial process as well as with local Social Secunty offices.

As a result of the breadth and wealth of experience, they are uniquely qualified to address the issues

facing their clients, as well as to ma)<e recommendations about improving the system.

In January 1993, a group of thirty-five legal services advocates with extensive experience in

Social Secunty and Supplemental Security Income (SSI) issues met in Washington, DC. Participants

represented all regions of the country. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss priorities and

sti-ategies in dealing with the Social Security Administration on behalf of our clients.

The meeting produced a collection of Position Papers, 'A BLUEPRINT FOR IMPROVING THE

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION; A Legal Services Perspective." These Papers discuss

prionty Social Security and SSI issues affecting low income elderly and disabled individuals that the

Clinton Administi'ation should address and offer recommendations for these problems. Three common

themes run through all of the Papers: (1) Increase avenues of communication between the public and

SSA; (2) Streamline the process; and (3) Better serve the needs of the customers.

The Papers most relevant to this heanng are attached and include;

A. IMPROVING ADVOCATES' ACCESS TO SSA

B. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESS

C. DISABILITY

1. Disability Determination Services

2. General Disability Issues

3. Mental Impaimnents

D. SERVICE ISSUES

IMPROVING ADVOCATES' ACCESS TO SSA

Over the last twelve years, the Social Secunty Administration has not maintained any channels

of communication with advocates for poor elderiy and disabled persons. Agency officials at SSA's

central and regional offices held virtually no meetings with members of the advocacy community.

Letters from advocates raising policy issues frequently went unanswered. As a result, SSA became

increasingly isolated and removed from the community that it serves. It became apparent to advocates

that the only way of getting the attention of SSA administrators was to commence litigation.

This reliance on litigation as the only means of contact meant that all contacts between

advocates and SSA officials were conducted in a hostile, adversarial context in which the atmosphere

was charactenzed by mutual distrust and suspicion. Because of this lack of communication, both sides

became convinced that the other side was pursuing their own secret agenda. In particular, SSA

seldom provided coherent explanations for its actions to advocates. Unaware of SSA's reasoning,

advocates could not wori< cooperatively with the agency.

It is noteworthy, however, that there was a two-year period in the mid-1 980's when advocates

did wori< successfully with SSA to resolve problems. As a result of the open and regular

communication, the agency and advocacy community worthed together to implement legislative and

policy reforms.
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A senes of suggestions are described below which seek to establish the avenues of

communication between the advocacy community and SSA at a variety of different levels. The overall

goal of these proposals is to reverse the climate of mutual mistrust, so that real dialogue can occur to

better benefit our client populations. Such a dialogue would obviate the need for many lawsuits, as

advocates will be able to work with SSA to solve problems and to improve the programs that SSA
administers. In that way, when litigation does occur, at least both sides will know that It was

unavoidable

1. Establish regular meetings with the Commissioner.

The new Commissioner should schedule regular meetings with representatives of advocacy

groups, either through a formal advisory committee or other selection process.

At these meetings, advocates would be able to raise issues with the Commissioner who would

then be able to investigate the problem and report back to the group. Agenda items woukj be

submitted in advance which allows the Commissioner to consult with appropriate personnel in advance

of the meeting and, if necessary, have them present. This process is beneficial in that it raises a

problem at an early point in time, provides an opportunity for face-to-face discussion, and gives the

agency an opportunity to rectify it first. Advocates have successfully used this model in with many

state and local agencies.

2. Establish linkage to SSA components.

Some form of access, similar to that descnbed above, should be established with Associate

Commissioners of SSA components with whom advocates have regular dealings, such as the Office of

Disability, the Office of Supplemental Secunty Income, and the Office of Hearings and Appeals.

While problems could be raised at these meetings, we also see them as an opportunity for the

Associate Commissioners to obtain input from advocates when planning to take significant actions and

regarding draft regulations and POMS.

3. Improve access at regional and state levels.

First, access to SSA Regional Commissioners and Regional Chief Administrative Law Judges

should be established for those issues properly within the jurisdiction of regional offices. In particular,

an individual in the regional office should be designated as a "trouble-shooter" who is able to solve

problems, primarily service issues, brought to his or her attention. This model has been successfully

implemented in the past in certain regions and for specific issues.

Second, DDS Advisory Councils- should be established in each state. Those states which

cun-ently have councils have found them to be useful tools for dealing with and solving local DDS
problems, especially procedural issues. Public access to DDSs is improved by including, as members,

representatives of advocates groups, claimants and public citizens. The (vlassachusetts DDS Advisory

Council, in effect since 1983, has been a particularly successful model. This is described in more

detail in our "Disability" paper.

4. Litigation

Prior to filing litigation, legal services attomeys send a notice letter to the Secretary of Health

and Human Services regarding the issues in the case and the relief sought. When these letters are

sent, no one is made available to receive a copy and investigate the complaint. As a result, ttiere is

usually no senous discussion between parties to resolve the dispute before the case is filed.

We recommend that a person is made available to whom advocates can send demand letters

(or a copy of the letter) and whose job it would be to investigate the issue to see if (a) the complaint

has merit and (2) if the matter can be resolved through negotiation.

In general, SSA has conducted settlement negotiations through the regional U.S. Attorneys

offices. While it is appropriate that negotiatons be conducted through counsel, SSA has generally

resisted requests by advocates to meet with program personnel or staff from SSA's litigation office,

even with the presence of counsel. As a result, settlement negotiations have tended to be

extraordinarily protracted because advocates only receive responses to proposals that are filtered

through several layers of counsel. In addition, advocates are rarely informed of the reasoning behind

SSA proposals or its responses. This lack of communication both delays settlement and prevents the

partes from worthing together to overcome obstacles

In a small number of exceptional cases, however, SSA has permitted face to face negotiations

with a team that includes program personnel as well as counsel. In these cases, the negotiations

proceeded far more smoothly, as SSA positions were explained to advocates and the parties could
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work together to reach agreement The recent settlement in the Stieberqer cases in New York

provides an example of such an approach.

SSA should offer and respond to settlement proposals more quickly and should explain its

reasoning, so that the parties can work to reach agreement Toward this end, SSA should agree to

face to face meetings in which agency program personnel who work on the issues involved are

present

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESS

I. REOPENING: Improve claimants' ability to reopen applications and limit the Appeals

Council's ability to reopen claims

Claimants are generally unsophisticated about their appeal rights. As SSA has acknowledged,

70% of all SSI recipients have "maximum functional literacy skills at between a sixth and seventti

grade level.'' Many claimants file new applications when they are denied benefits, without

understanding that they are losing valuable nghts by not appealing. While poorly drafted denial notices

are part of the problem, a basic inability to comprehend appeal rights will continue to deny benefits to

disaibled claimants unless their nght to reopen past applications is sti'engthened.

RECOMMENDATION: The application forms should specifically ask claimants to state whether

they are requesting reopening of any prior applications. When a claimant requests reopening, SSA

should follow its existing POMS instiuctions by making a written decision on the request with reasons

given, and should explicitly consider (1) the mental ability of the claimant and (2) any misinformatwn

from SSA on which the claimant may have relied in not appealing the prior denial.

RECOMMENDATION: The "good cause* standard for reopening at a claimanrs request should

not be limited by two year (SSI) or four year (Title II) time limits. "Good cause' regulations should be

amended to include such factors as mental ability and misinformation.

RECOMMENDATION: Because the claimant should have a right to appeal without jeopardy,

the Appeals Council's should end its practice of reviewing favorable portions of partially favorable ALJ

decisions. Reopenings by the agency which have not been requested by claimants should continue to

be subject to the time limits in cun-ent regulations.

II. ELIMINATE RECONSIDERATION AND INSTITUTE A FACE-TO-FACE INTERVIEW BEFORE THE

INITIAL DENIAL.

Many advocates support elimination of the reconsideration level of review for disability claims, a

recommendation which was also made by the SSI Modernization Project For the most part

advocates view reconsideration as a "rubber-stamp" of the initial determination. Elimination of

reconsideration would altow concenti-ation of limited resources to increase the quality of initial claims,

including more extensive initial interviews and more thorough attempts to obtain infomiation from

treating sources and third parties.

RECOMMENDATION: Eliminate the reconsideration level of the administi-ative appeals

process. Provide face-to-face review at the initial level before deniaj. A model similar to the GDR
procedure should be used.

III. ESTABLISH A 90-DAY TIME LIMIT FOR THE APPEALS COUNCIL TO ACT ON APPEALS.

As discussed in the 'Service' Paper, delays at the Appeals Council have worsened, consistent

with the sharp increase in the number of disability applications. The latest statistics available show

that the average processing time at the Appeals Council was 254 days, with many cases taking one

year before a decision is received. When added to the delays at other administi'ative levels, it is not

at all unusual for a claim to take two to three years to complete the administi'ative process.

RECOMMENDATION: Establish a ninety day time limit for the Appeals Council to act on

claimant's appeals. If it fails to act within the time limit the claimant may file an appeal in federal

disti'ict court. This procedure is similar to that employed in EEOC complaints.

46 Fed. Reg 42338 (Aug. 20. 1981).



64

IV. ESTABLISH AN ADEQUATE PROCEDURE TO DEAL WITH ALLEGATIONS OF
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE BIAS.

Allegations of unfairness within ttie ALJ system have been raised by evidence tfiat decisions of

some ALJs who hear hundreds of disability cases each year may be tainted by bias. Tfie bias make

be based on race, gender, ethnic origin, economic status or specific impairments, such as mental

illness or AIDS. These ALJs ignore medical evidence and expert testimony and engage in other

unlawful practices in order to deny claims, including verbal abuse of claimants at fieanngs. Despite

these allegations, there is no adequate process in place to deal with claims of bias and misconduct

among ALJs. SSA has ignored bias allegations or, when it has acted, no consistent, satisfactory

method of considering complaints has been emptoyed.

RECOMMENDATION: An independent commission should be established by regulation or

legislation to review, investigate and determine allegations of general bias on the part of ALJs or

unlawful practices by ALJs that otherwise deprive disability claimants of their right to a tiearing before

a fair and impartial adjudicator. SSA sfiould provide for meaningful participation by advocates for

claimants in the design of these procedures. The key elements of the process include the foltowing:

(a) A procedure for filing complaints with the commission.

(b) A standard for determining when claimants have been denied their right to fair hearings.

(c) The composition of the commission should ensure independence from the agency and

impartial review of tfie complaints brought before it.

(d) A procedure to ensure thorough investigations of complaints.

(e) A procedure for heanngs on complaints.

(f) If the commission finds that claimants have in fact been affected by ALJ bias or unlawful

practices, it should have the authority to require SSA to: (i) provide new heanngs before

different ALJs; (ii) reopen and redetermine the claims; (iii) review and monitor future deciswns

of the ALJ before such decisions are issued to claimants; and/or (iv) provide training and/or

counselling for the ALJ. In addition, the commission should have tfie autfiority to require that

specific disciplinary action against the ALJ, including suspension, be pursued by the Secretary

before the Merit Systems Protection Board.

DISABILITY

The Disability Paper is divided into three sections: I. Disability Determination Servces;

II. General Disability Issues; III Mental Impaimients.

I. DISABILITY DETERMINATION SERVICES

Disability applicants and their representatives have experienced increasing faistration in recent

years with the quality of decisionmaking by the State Disability Determination Sen/ices (DDS). Delays

in processing times have grown increasingly worse and the quality of decisions made by DDSs has

deteriorated. Claimants' and advocates' dissatisfaction is well-founded since SSA's own statistics show

that when cases are appealed to the ALJ level, tiie reversal rate is over 70%.

An overhaul of the DDS system is needed. Many legal services advocates throughout the

country are involved in efforts to correct problems identified in the DDS decisionmaking process,

including class action litigation and administi^ative advocacy. The problems and recommendations

identified betow are based on the experience of these advocates.

A. Improve the Evaluation of Residual Functional Capacity (RFC).

The greatest weakness in DDS decisionmaking is in determining the claimant's RFC. Studies

have shown that the huge differences in ttie RFC assessments of DDSs and ALJs account for most of

the high reversal rate. The following recommendations would make RFC determinations more

accurate.

1. Correct the narrow medical policy at SSA. Change policy to require that medical

evaluation guidelines be in writing, avajlable to the public, and re-evaluated by panels of medical and

rehabilitation specialists to ensure that they reflect current knowledge.
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2. Increase Ihe use ol treating source evidence, (a) Require DDSs to request the treating

physician's funcbonal assessment, utilizing a clear and effective nationally standardized form wtiich

includes an explanation of tenns. Specific instructions should be given regarding the information

necessary for adjudication (b) Require the same follow-up to obtain the treating physician's functional

assessment required for other types of medical evidence, (c) Require DDSs to purchase 'consulting

examinations" and tesflng from the treating physician when necessary and the physician is willing.

3. SSA should develop standardized forms to compile information relating to activities

of daily living. A claimant's ability to perfomi activities of daily living is important evidence, especially

in mental impairment cases. DDSs have developed different fonms, and are inconsistent in attempts to

obtain the infomiation and in weight given to the information.

4. Medical professionals should determine RFC. In September 1991, SSA adopted a

policy allowing DOS examiners to complete RFC reports for a DDS physician's signature. This allows

non-physicians to make medical |udgments and reduces participation of medical experts in determining

RFC. SSA should withdraw the September 1991 POMS and return to its fomier policy requiring

independent physician review.

5. Improve the guallty of vocational assessments.

A realistic functional assessment is a prerequisite to a realistic vocational assessment;

however, this does not occur in many cases. Improper denials based on vocational factors result from

identification of jobs which the claimant is clearly unable to perlomi or by improper application of the

medical-vocational guidelines for individuals with nonexertional limitations. SSA should issue POMS
and other insti'uctions improving vocational assessments.

B. Revise the Quality Assurance (QA) Program to Review a Statistically Random Sampling of

Both Approvals and Denials. The review process should be changed by issuing POMS or

insCuctions to regional offices to require that a larger sample of denials be reviewed by SSA. This

change would result in a more accurate picture of the quality of decisions issuing from DDSs while

allowing SSA to assure a high level of accuracy in those decisions.

C. ESTABLISH A NATIONAL DDS TASK FORCE.

SSA should create a national DDS Task Force which includes claimant representatives,

members of the advocacy community, and members of the medical profession to address DDS
decisionmaking issues

D. DDS ADVISORY COUNCILS SHOULD BE ESTABLISHED IN ALL STATES

DDS personnel have littie or no face-to-face contact with claimants. Despite the availability of

federal funding, few state agencies have advisory panels or panels which include interested individuals

from outside DDS. Those states which have such panels have found them to be exti'emely valuable in

identifying problems with existing procedures or standards and in evaluating proposed changes. The

Massachusetts advisory council is a particularly successful model.

RECOMMENDATION: Require each state DDS to have an advisory council which includes

disabled persons, medical and service providers, advocates, and claimants' representatives. The

councils should be required to meet at least on a quarteriy basis.

E. ELIMINATE RECONSIDERATION

Many advocates support elimination of the reconsideration level of review, a recommendation

which was also made by the SSI Modernization Project. For the most part, advocates view

reconsideration as a 'rubber-stamp' of the initial determination. In light of greatly increasing numbers

of applications and the limited budget available for processing claims, elimination of reconsideration

would allow DDSs to concentrate instead on increasing the quality and number of DDS staff. It would

also allow examiners to conduct more extensive initial reviews, including more thorough attempts to

obtain informatbn from ti'eating sources and third parties.

RECOMMENDATION: Eliminate the reconsideration level of the administi'ative appeals

process. Provide face-to-face review at the initial level before denial.

76-832 0-94-4
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II. GENERAL DISABILITY ISSUES

A. THE PROPOSED ADULT FUNCTIONAL TESTS MUST BE REVISED.

The current mental disorders listing in Section 12.00 and the HIV infection listing of the Listing

of Impaimients are the only adult listings that include a functional limitation test requirement However,

SSA has announced plans to issue a notice of proposed njlemaking that will extend to adult claimants

the functional equivalence policy that was devetoped for children following the Zebley deasion.^

1. Change definition of "marlted."

Where a degree of functional limitation must be "mar1<ed,' the proposed test imposes an

unreasonable and rigid "most of the time' requirement. This definition is inconsistent with the purpose

of the Social Secunty Act since it imposes a standard of institutional level severity, rather than one

which addresses the ability to wor1<.

2. Change requirements for "episodes of decompensation."

The proposed functional test also imposes an overly rigid requirement that 'episodes of

decompensation' occur three times a year and last for at least two weeks.

3. Make functional test relevant to evaluation of physical disorders.

Three of the four areas of functioning in the proposed test (social functioning, concentration,

and episodes of decompensation) are useful in evaluating mental disorders but not physical disorders.

Because the test requires that at least two of the four areas be met, claimants whose impairments are

physical rather than psychiatnc are put at a severe disadvantage. A functional test must take different

areas of functioning into account if it is to apply to claimants with physical impairments.

4. Require only one "marked" limitation to meet the listings.

It is not necessary to require a claimant to meet two areas of the functional test when either

marked limitation of activities of daily living or marked limitation of concenti'ation alone would result in

the inability to perlonn substantial gainful activity. This has been included in the new HIV listing.

B. SSA SHOULD CONSULT WITH CONSUMERS AND ADVOCACY GROUPS BEFORE

PUBLISHING MAJOR PROPOSED REVISIONS TO DISABILITY REGULATIONS.

In the past, SSA has consult^ with representatives of advocacy groups to design the post-

Zebley rules and the cunent mental disorders listings. By seeking advice from experts in legal and

policy issues who are independent, SSA can add significantly to the discussions, ensure accuracy and

help secure community acceptance for the outcome. However, SSA has recently revised listings by

using panels, generally limiting non-agency membership to medical experts, pnmarily with an academic

background. As a result, many of the proposed listings (e.g., mental disorders, HIV infection) have

been roundly cnticized by medical and advocacy groups.

RECOMMENDATION: SSA should rehjrn to the policy of including the advxacy community in

the panel process of revising and updating major disability regulations.

C. SSA SHOULD MAKE SUBSTANTIAL CHANGES IN PROPOSED LISTINGS FOR HIV

INFECTION. ADULT MENTAL DISORDERS AND CARDIOVASCULAR SYSTEMS.

Foltowing publication, the proposed listings for HIV infection. Adult Ivlental Disorders and

Cardiovascular Systems, serious problems were raised in the public comments and the proposed

listings require substantial revision before publication in final fomi.

1. Mental Disorders Listings: 56 Fed. Reg. 33130 (July 18, 1991)

The proposed (Cental Disorders Listings have several serious problems: (1) They set forth a

functional test in the 'B" criteria which is more restrictive than that used in the cun-ent listings. See

discussion in Section A (2) The role of psychological testing is denigrated. For example, use of

personality measures which are used frequently by psychotogists to assist in diagnosis, such as the

MM. P. I, and the Milton Multiaxial Clinical Inventory, are given littie weight. This makes it more difficult

to prove disability. (3) The proposed listings permit DOS examiners to assist in completing the

56 Fed Reg, 5534, 5536 (Feb, 11, 1991)
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Psychiatric Review Technique Form. DDS examiners do not have medical expertise and should not be

given this responsibility. See discussion in section on Disability Determination Serk^ices.

2. Proposed Cardiovascular Systems Listing: 56 Fed. Reg. 31266 (July 9. 1991)

The proposed listing requires the use of treadmill tests for all individuals who allege disability

based on ischemic heart disease However, false assessments of ischemia often occur because

treadmill tests do not consider the full range of stresses and exertions that arise in the wo(1< place.

Sole reliance on the treadmill test to the exclusion of other available relevant evidence clearly violates

the Social Secunty Act requirement of 'individualized' determinations. See State of New York v.

Sullivan , 906 F2d 910 (2d Cir. 1990), affg. 655 F. Supp. 136 (S.DN.Y. 1987).

D. ADDRESS PROBLEMS IN IMPLEMENTING REGULATIONS DEALING WITH TREATING

PHYSICIAN AND OTHER MEDICAL EVIDENCE

The regulations dealing with the weight to give medical evidence, including treating physician

opinions, 56 Fed. Reg 36932 (August 1, 1991) raise problems that SSA should address. Issues to be

addressed include:

1

.

Expand definition of "treating source" and 'acceptable source"

2. Revise POMS to require more follow-up, particularly with treating source statements regarding

functional limitations

3. Encourage use of treating physicians to perform consultative examinations and eliminate POMS
requirement that treating source respond to survey in order to perform CE
4. Improve quality of consultative examinations by implementing requirement that background

information is sent and giving specific instructions regarding the information necessary for adjudication.

5. Revise POMS to provide examples of disabling impairments, in addition to nondisabling cases.

E. ADOPT DISABILITY RECOMMENDATIONS IN THE SSI MODERNIZATION PROJECT
REPORT [57 Fed Reg. 40732 (Sept. 4, 1992)]

1. Establish criteria for deciding whether children under the aqe o( 4 are disabled.

Where a confirmed diagnosis cannot be made because of a child's young age, SSA should

develop criteria for presuming disability at least under the age of 4, based on history or on recognized

symptomatology. When these criteria are met, the child should be allowed to continue to receive

payments until age 4, without creating an overpayment even if later testing and diagnosis result in a

finding of non-disability.

2. Alter the definition of "substantial gainful activity" to recognize that people

whose ability to work depends on substantial supportive services are not performing SGA either

in determining initial or continuing eligibility.

In order to encourage people to be self-supporting, the definition of SGA should be altered to

exclude from the definition of SGA work performed solely by virtue of substantial support sen/ices.

Such services would include, but are not limited to, on-tiie-job attendant care, use of a job coach in

sheltered or transitional employment, costly specialized transportation without which the individual could

not get to or from work or employer accommodations which create a highly specialized job

environment.

III. INDIVIDUALS WITH MENTAL IMPAIRMENTS

In addition to the problems discussed above, individuals with mental impairments face

additional obstacles in their dealings with SSA. Recommendations to improve the process for these

claimants is discussed below.

A. IMPROVE MEDICAL EVIDENCE DEVELOPMENT

1. Expand the definition of "acceptable source" to include other mental health

professionals actually providing treatment. Persons with mental impairments are increasingly

receiving treatment from providers other than physicians or psychologists, such as nurse practitioners,

psychiatric social workers, etc. This is especially tme for low income persons who obtain treatment
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from clinics. Because of tfie narrow definition, DDS purctiases a CE wfiere tfiere is no "acceptable

source," even wfiere credible and ottierwise adequate medical evidence exists.

2. Require development of third party evidence before a claim is denied. Accurate

evidence of an individual's ability to function in tfie workplace is vital but often difficult to obtain. Botti

ttie preface to the listings and SSRs 85-15 and 85-16 discuss tfie value and importance of ttiird party

or lay sources to fill in functional evidence gaps left by tfie medical evidence. Use of standardized

fomns should be explored.

3. Require and revise follow-up to evidence requests. Current requirements are

inadequate and should be revised to include at least two folbw-ups for medical evidence from

professional sources and one follow-up for lay sources. Rules should apply at all administrative levels.

4. Adopt policies to avoid denials for non-cooperation. Current policies for CEs

should be revised to include at least the following: (1) adequate advance notice of a scheduled CE
that includes the availability of transportation assistance and a name and telephone number of the

DDS person to contact for transportation assistance or rescheduling. (2) Require follow-up and

rescheduling where mental impairments or language or literacy problems are present or suspected. (3)

Identify persons needing special assistance and provide it. See discussion below.

5. Develop all mental impairment allegations before denial. Review cunrent policies

concerning when development of a mental impairment is required and revise to avoid penalizing

individuals with little insight into their problems or who have limited access to mental healtti treatment,

including poor persons and persons requiring bilingual providers. These persons may merely allege

"nerves" or "anxiety" or "sadness." The expenence of advocates is that these allegations are often

indications of mental impairments that are disabling themselves or in combination with other

impairments.

B. IDENTIFY AND ASSIST INDIVIDUALS WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE

A system to provide special assistance in SSA offices is described in the Service section of

this paper. The process must provide a way to identify individuals and, once they are in the SSA

office, a special process to help with completing fornis, meetings, examinations, etc. The use of

escorts and home visits should be explored. DDS must also develop a system to cover the situations

discussed in Section A.4 above.

C. DEVELOP A POLICY THAT ALLOWS NON-SSA PERSONS TO COMPLETE APPLICATIONS

Despite staff shortages, SSA discourages non-SSA persons from completing disability

applications and ancillary fomis. This policy works to the disadvantage of mentally impaired applicants

who may be embarrassed or afraid to disclose their impairments or who may lack the cognitive ability

to adequately describe their problems.

SSA should develop a policy to: (1) solicit and encourage individuals and groups with close

relationships to potential applicants to assist in completing applications and appeal fomis; and (2)

provide adequate training in SSA application and appeal procedures for non-SSA personnel who work

with the mentally disabled and who agree to assist claimants with their disability applications and

appeals.

D. EXPAND USE OF WORK INCENTIVE RULES
The SSI Modernization Report sb^ongly favors the expansion of the availability of work

incentives to botti add and subtract participants. These are discussed in more detail in the "SSI

Nondisability Issues" paper. Specifically, we urge extension of §1619 to Tide II recipients and

expansion of the use of PASS and IRWE.

SERVICE ISSUES

1. INCREASE STAFFING AT SSA FIELD OFFICES BY AT LEAST 6,000 EMPLOYEES BY

TAKING THE TITLE II ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS OFF-BUDGET.

RECOMMENDATION: Restore service and public confidence in SSA by increasing its

administirative budget and adding at least 6,000 positions from the 17,000 cut since 1984. This could
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most easily be accomplished by taking Title II administrative costs off-budget. While Title II benefit

expenditures have been excluded, it is our opinion that 0MB misinterpreted provisions of the Budget

Enforcement Act of 1990 to require inclusion of SSA's Title II administrative expenses within the

spending caps. The Clinton Administration should reverse the previous interpretation and exempt Title

II administrative costs from the spending cap. This misinterpretation could be corrected through a

policy change by the new Director of 0MB or legislatron.

2. IMPROVE ACCESS FOR NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING PERSONS
SSA's failure to provide bilingual services discourages many eligible persons from applying for

benefits, increases the difficulties of applicants proving disabilities, and delays determinations and

receipt of benefits. Cun-ent recipients may suffer benefit reductions, incur overpayments or lose all

benefits because they cannot understand and meet program requirements.

For more than a decade, this problem has been highlighted by government reports that

identified the lack of bilingual sea/ices provided by SSA. Until SSA devetops nationwide bilingual

policies, recruits and hires bilingual staff, and expands its translated written notices, non-English-

speaking poor, elderly, and disabled persons will continue to be wrongfully denied access to benefits.

RECOMMENDATION: SSA should take the following steps:

(a) Assess the language needs of non-English speaking persons by fieW offices, and collect

data concerning the language needs of callers to SSA's 800-number service, (b) Develop a

nationwide bilingual sen/ices policy which addresses recruitinnent, hiring, training, and retention of

bilingual staff, the use of interpreters where bilingual staff is insufficient, and the translation of written

notices, (c) Eliminate its cun-ent POMS provision that places the responsibility for finding an intefpreter

on the non-English speaking person, (d) Recruit and hire to attain proportional bilingual staff that

reflects the needs of the diverse communities it serves, (e) Hire interpreters where SSA has

insufficient bilingual staff to meet the demands for language assistance, (f) Greatly expand the

provisbn of translated written notices and other program information to respond to the demand from

many large language groups.

3. IMPROVE ACCESS FOR INDIVIDUALS WHO ARE BLIND. MENTALLY IMPAIRED, AND
HEARING IMPAIRED

RECOMMENDATIONS: To adequately address the needs of clients with special needs, SSA should

develop a system by which wor1<ers ask both orally and in writing if claimants and recipients need

special assistance in dealing with SSA and descrilje the types of special assistance available. If

recipients and claimants request special assistance, SSA must provide it.

SSA should also ensure that those persons who indicate that they need special assistance are

provided witfi appropriate assistance whenever they have dealings with SSA, in particular, for initial

eligibility determinations and ongoing financial eligibility reviews. Such assistance should include

assistance in completing fonms, attending inten^iews and examinations, use of escorts, and home visits.

In addition, wherever possible, individuals who need special assistance shoukl be assigned one SSA

claims representative who will handle that individual's dealings with his or her local SSA office.

As a model, SSA should consider procedures proposed in J.L. v. Sullivan ,
971 F.2d 260 (9tti

Gir. 1992). The procedures proposed in Ji, are based on a successful program in place for general

assistance recipients in Los Angeles, California.

For persons who are hearing impaired, SSA must ensure that all field offices and the 800-

number system have working TDD devices and that the TDD numbers are published. In addition, all

SSA field offices should have hearing interpreters on staff. For individuals who are blind, SSA should

ensure that notices are issued in Braille.

4. IMPROVE TELEPHONE ACCESS TO LOCAL SSA OFFICES

The 800-number has not proven to be a successful replacement for local office telephone

access. First, individuals have had exti-eme difficulty having their calls to the 800 number answered;

the number has extremely high busy signal rates. Second, even if individuals are successful in

getting through, they often received incon-ect infonnation or cannot have their questions answered.

RECOMMENDATIONS: (1) SSA shoukj reverse its policy of limiting telephone access to local Social

Security offices. To that end. SSA should voluntarily comply with ttie temns of the clarifying language

of the 1992 Urban Aid bill. (2) In addition, SSA should relist the numbers of all SSA offices, including

those "phase one" offices whk:h are primarily in metropolitan areas and serve 60% of the populatbn.

(3) SSA should provide adequate staff in all offices to respond to public inquiries. (4) Finally, should



70

SSA choose to continue with its use of the 800 number, it should carefully monitor its operation to

ensure that persons are both able to have their calls and questions answered.

5. ESTABLISH A TASK FORCE TO INVESTIGATE NOTICES USED BY SSA.

SSA notices often are confusing, misleading, lack information, or are othenwise difficult to

understand. As a result, many claimants and recipients do not understand the reasons for actions

taken by SSA, and more importantly, do not understand that the only way to challenge such actions is

to file timely appeals.

RECOMMENDATION: SSA should fomi a task force to be staffed by SSA personnel, and advocates

from outside SSA to look at notices used by SSA. Among the subjects that should be addressed are:

(a) Ensuring thai SSA has fully implemented the OBRA 1990 requirement that notices be clear and

understandable, (b) Investigating whether the cun-ent policies and practices respecting good cause

determinations in late filing cases due to unclear or inadequate notice are adequate and should be

liberalized, (c) Improving notices sent concerning benefit amounts and overpayments. Cun-ent SSA
notices do not adequately explain how benefit amount and overpayment amounts were determined, (d)

Ensuring that adequate notice is given to recipients conceming overpayment hardship and that

repayment agreements may last longer than three years, (e) Clarifying the right to apply or failure to

file a timely appeal based on incon^ect, incomplete or misleading information provided by SSA staff. (I)

Ensuring that overpaid Title II beneficiaries receive adequate notice of availability of reduced

withhoWing where the overpayment was not intentionally caused and repayment at a higher rate wouW
create hardship, (g) Ensuring that SSA notices are translated into proper languages for non-English

speaking persons.

6. IMPROVE IMPLEMENTATION OF REPRESENTATIVE PAYEE REFORMS.
Cun-entiy, about 5 million SSI recipients and Title II beneficiaries receive payment through

representative payees. Overall, implementation of the 1990 reforms have been inadequate. Since no

money was appropriated by Congress for implementation, SSA's chronic staffing shortage has

contributed to the failure to fully implement the changes.

RECOMMENDATION: SSA must continue to wori< to fully implement reforms to the representative

payee program contained in the Social Security Act. SSA should adopt the recommendation of the

SSI Modernization Project supporting development of legislation that woukJ mandate a specific program

of recruitment, training, and monitoring of representative payees and authorize the payment of funds to

implement the program. Specifically, the proposal should provide for

(a) reasonable compensation to nonrelative and noncustodial representative payees from

administrative funds rather' than from beneficianes' checks;

(b) contracting by SSA with agencies when suitable payees are not available;

(c) requiring periodk: documentation by payees to support annual accounting;

(d) recovery of misused funds from the monthly benefits of representative payees receiving

benefits in their own right; and

(e) prosecution of representative payees who misuse funds.

7. IMPLEMENT ADMINISTRATIVE REFORMS TO REDUCE DELAYS
The length of time individuals must wait for a decision on a disability claim has increased

drastically. The Administration's own statistics predict that the average time to process an initial

disability determination will be approximately 5 months in FY 1993, increasing to 6 months in FY 1994.

In some states, the delays are cun-entiy much tonger. These figures are a far cry from the

recommended processing time of 60 days. In addition, appeals to the Office of Hearings and Appeals

(OHA) have increased dramatically where the average processing time for a hearing is estimated to be

neariy nine months in FY 1 993. Added to this is the more than nine months it takes for the Appeals

Council to process a claim.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

a. Increase staffing by at least 6,000 by taking Title II administrative costs off-budget.

b. Eliminate reconsideration and institute a face-to-face interview before denial

c. Establish more efficient OHA practices.

Procedures shoukJ include; (i) faster transfer of files to OHA from district office, docketing at OHA and

organization of file at OHA; (ii) increased use of prehearing conferences; and (iii) more decisions on

the record.

d. Establish a ninety-day time limit for the Appeals Council to act on appeals.
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Chairman Jacobs. You made it,

Ms. Chatel.

STATEMENT OF MARY CHATEL, PRESmENT, NATIONAL
COUNCIL OF SOCIAL SECURITY MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATIONS

Ms. Chatel. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I am
Mary Chatel, president of the National Council of Social Security

Management Associations. First, I would like to say that we truly

appreciate this committee's efforts which we believe influenced a

more positive outcome for SSA's budget this year. Thank you.

Our members, the men and women who work in the field offices

and teleservice centers across America, enthusiastically support the

directives of the NPR to put the customer first, cut red tape, dele-

gate decisionmaking authority, streamline processes, and decen-

tralize. These are principles we have long advocated.

Our experience living and working in the community long side

our customers gives us a clear vision of what the public expects

from SSA. We can attain world class service if we focus on the his-

toric mission and values that have made SSA a premier public

service agency.
Public confidence in SSA was built largely through local acces-

sible community-based offices. We provided service unheard of in

government, personal and tailored to the client. We must build

upon that foundation as we reinvent SSA.
Our vision of the future is enhanced community-based field office

and collocated teleservice centers providing all of SSA's services to

the public. Only half of SSA's employees are now engaged in pro-

viding direct contact service to the public. We must invest in tech-

nology, training, and staff in the field to streamline processes and
provide effective personal service.

The IWS/LAN computer project will give us computer access and
the tools to complete most processes in field offices. Linked to our
State DDSs, we will process disability as well as every other work-
load more quickly. We can then reallocate staff from outdated proc-

essing centers to the field.

It makes economic sense to put more staff close to the public.

One additional person to do CDRs in each field office and a similar

investment in DDS staff could wipe out the CDR backlog in one
year. CDRs are labor intensive, but performing them nets savings

for the trust funds and preserves the integrity of the disabilities

rolls. It also makes economic sense to grant local management the

authority for budget, procurement, and personnel as promised in

the NPR.
Managers granted even a little authority have saved money bv

buying locally and using the savings for other pressing needs. Such
delegations would eliminate the need for regional and central office

shadow positions involved in budgeting. Those employees could be
redeployed to the field. Even in the absence of adequate staffing

and computers, our field teams work hard to reinvent within the

limited authority granted them.
We identify and draw upon the community resources every day.

For example, several California offices train community groups on
the application process. These people have appointments to come in

with claimants, with their medical records and all paperwork com-
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pleted. In my own office in Rhode Island, working with the commu-
nity and the State agency, we have reduced the average time a
claimant waits for a disability decision by 40 days, comparing
September 1992 to September 1993.

We ask the claimants to hand carry a request of their medical
records to doctors and hospitals. A DDS examiner in my office is

able to make some decisions the very day the claim is taken. Imag-
ine how much more we could do with fully staffed, fully automated
field offices and teleservice centers! And by making correct deci-

sions at the initial stage we minimize the use for the costly appeals
system.

If we are truly to restore public confidence in the program, it

must be through the SSA employees, Mr. and Ms. Social Security

in the community, talking to and listening to our customers. And
we are there when a crisis occurs.

During the recent floods in the Midwest and earlier during the
Rhode Island banking crisis, our presence in impacted communities
helped ensure timely receipt of Social Security benefits. Our rela-

tionships with local media, banks, post office and other agencies
means that service, even when disaster strikes, is coordinated and
effective. At these times we become the focal point for many types
of assistance. If we can show the American public that we really

do care and combine that attitude with technological advancements
that allow more to be done faster in field offices and localized

teleservice centers, with fewer steps in the process, we can provide
the world class service to which our customers are entitled. Thank
you.
Chairman Jacobs. Thank you, Ms. Chatel.

[The prepared statement follows:]
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REINVENTING THE SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

The National Council of Social Security
Management Associations (SSMA) is very excited
about the National Performance Review. We

enthusiastically agree with its directive to put
customers first and provide them with world class

service. Our members are men and women managing
Social Security field offices and teleservice
centers across the country. We have a clear
vision of what the American public everywhere
wants and needs from Social Security. We live,

work, raise our families, pay our taxes, and
participate in local events in communities
throughout the U.S. Many of us are neighbors,
friends and associates of our customers, the
people who visit our offices and telephone us.

Over the more than five decades of our

history Social Security has become the central
institution of American social policy. The

debate over how we should deliver our basic
services has absorbed SSA during the last several
years. Should those services be concentrated
into a smaller number of large processing sites

where almost all business is conducted by

telephone? Or should SSA maintain, or expand, its

network of 1300 field offices and teleservice
centers? And how best can we take full advantage

of modern technology?

Thank you for inviting us here today to

share with you the SSMA vision of service

delivery as SSA moves ahead in keeping with the

objectives of the National Performance Review.

We have advocated tirelessly for years many of

the reforms contained in the NPR:
- put the customer first
- cut unnecessary red tape and rules that

restrict innovation
- delegate the decision-making authority for

operations, budget, and personnel to the

managers who directly manage the people who

do the work
- streamline the budget process
- get rid of FTE ceilings
- decentralize

SSMA has long recommended that SSA ask the public what they

want, and we applaud NPR's directive to listen carefully to our

customers. SSMA is eager to work with SSA's leadership as they

develop survey forms, focus group questions, and strategies for how

and where to survey the public. This must be an ongoing effort --

the public must be asked frequently and often if we are to stay on

target with our service delivery. One main source of information

which should not be discounted are the SSA employees in the field

who speak to the public every day. We listen and learn firsthand

what the public is saying.
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We are facing a time when major changes will take place, and
SSMA wants to be an active partner in this endeavor. We look
forward to working with Commissioner Chater and Deputy Commissioner
Thompson to implement the tenets of the NPR and make "world class
service" a reality at SSA. We believe that such a goal is readily
attainable if we keep our focus on the historic mission and values
that have made SSA a special government agency. We must learn from
the past as we look toward the future.

SSA'S HISTORY OF COMMUNITY SERVICE AND PUBLIC SUPPORT

To chart SSA's future and how we can best serve the American
people, we need to understand SSA's history. How did SSA become
one of the most widely respected government agencies? How did
Social Security garner the most widespread support of any
government program? The answer lies in the personal, courteous,
efficient and effective service we have provided to the American
public.

Public confidence in SSA was built in large measure through
the local connection of its field offices to the community. We
were visible and accessible, and we provided the kind of service
unheard of in government: personal and tailored to the needs of the
client. We have been an agency that cares about its programs and
the public we serve. We served that public with respect,
convenience and compassion.

Over the years, as the programs administered by SSA grew, so did
the number of field offices. To provide enhanced service to the
public, SSA established a network of teleservice centers which
became an integral part of the field office structure. SSA's field
managers and supervisors rightfully could take pride in offering
responsive, effective service to all. Over time, greater decision-
making authority was given the widespread network of field offices
and teleservice centers. SSA became the premier public service
agency in government.

"DOWNSIZING"

Then, during the middle and late 1980's, SSA underwent a

drastic staff reduction of 20 percent agency-wide. Dis-
proportionately more field staff were lost, with some offices
diminished by as much' as 30 percent of their employees. These
staff cuts, predicated on efficiencies expected from increased
automation, proved to be premature. At the same time, the
beneficiary and claimant pool grew steadily.

We struggled to maintain our tradition of excellent public
service. Downsizing in the field resulted in an unrelenting
assault on personal service to the public. No longer could we take
as much time to talk to people, to conduct private interviews, to
help them fill out forms, to explain their rights as well as their
responsibilities and to refer them to additional sources for help.

Some in SSA's leadership began to believe that advances in

automation together with the loss of staff should lead SSA to
centralize service delivery. The SSA strategic plan issued by
Commissioner Hardy envisioned an SSA where "service to the public
is primarily by means other than face-to-face contact with an SSA
representative". This misguided push for centralization ignored
the lesson of more than fifty years -- that it was personal,
community based service by which SSA attained the support of the
American people.

The drive to centralize service delivery does not take into
account the nature and desires of the populations SSA serves. The
American public will live longer and grow older. The aging process
takes its toll on one's ability to take advantage of advanced
technology, and this is not likely to change. We are faced with
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worsening economic and social conditions where the gap between the
"haves" and the "have-nots" will continue to widen. The homeless,
poverty, crime, drug and alcohol abuse will not soon disappear.
Nor will the AIDS epidemic. Nor will the problem of functional
illiteracy. There will be an increase in minority and non-English
speaking populations. These growing segments of our society will
continue to need personal service at community based offices.
Others will choose to do business with us where they feel most
comfortable — in their local communities.

The recommendation of the NPR to reduce staffing levels by 12
percent government-wide must not touch SSA's field offices and
teleservice centers. We have already reduced to the point where
the loss of one additional person in an office means disaster, and
an increase by one person in an office could mean the difference
between success and failure in meeting the NPR challenge to put the
customer first.

TECHNOLOGY

Of course, there is now and will continue to be a substantial
number of people who can and want to use technology to deal with
us. Teleservice is a viable option for those who wish to use it.
But the same sophistication that will cause some people to want our
automated services will also lead them to prefer the option of
personal service. A recent study conducted by SSA shows that
people will want to access SSA in different ways for different
kinds of services. For example, while they will continue to want
to be served by their local field office when they apply for
benefits, they will use the convenience of SSA's 800 number to
report more routine events.

Rapid and continuing advances in technology will allow
virtually any action to be processed anywhere in SSA. While some
use this fact to buttress their argument in favor of centralization
of service, SSMA contends that these advances in technology, even
more than in the past, should make the field office the focal point
for most SSA operations. Almost every workload process could be
completed right in the field office.

The Intelligent Work Station/Local Area network (IWS/LAN)
computer project planned for field offices is critical to our ever
becoming able to deal with all of our service delivery workloads
effectively. Over 90 percent of our field offices are still run
with "dumb" computer terminals which every other agency abandoned
at least five years ago. We are hooked by computer to the
mainframe in Baltimore, so we can only access benefit records and
SSI records and make changes to those records. We cannot use the
terminals as personal computers to complete tasks. We cannot
install software for use by a wide network. We cannot access the
State Disability data to speed processing disability claims. In
those fewer than 10 percent of offices where IWS/LAN is up and
running, every process is quicker. Each employee has at his or her
command computer access and the tools needed to process a claim to
completion, to interact with other agencies and offices, to access
on-line SSA's program operation manual, and to compose a person-
alized letter to a beneficiary, a claimant, or a caller.

At her nomination hearing. Dr. Shirley Chater said that she
wanted to get SSA more involved with new technology. She said she
would strive not only for excellence in service, but for national
equity in service through quicker support for offices that get into
trouble because of unmanageable workloads. With IWS/LAN we will be
able to more efficiently coordinate these workloads among field
offices and between field offices and state DDS offices.

An agency the size of SSA with a beneficiary and claimant pool
the size of that we serve must have up-to-date technology in the
field to manage its work and solve current and future service
delivery problems. Without that, we must continue to manage by
crisis.
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INVESTING IN PEOPLE

Yet history has taught us an invaluable lesson. In the 1980s
automation was touted to save nearly 20,000 jobs in SSA. We
"downsized" to pay for automation. That serious inistake has cost
untold program dollars -- $1.4 billion over the last three years
by not doing Continuing Disability Reviews, to name just one. It
has also cost us untold service delivery problems. As the crisis
in disability grew and absorbed more staff time, we were forced to
neglect other workloads. We were not able to restore local
telephone access in the way the Congress directed. We could not
conduct comprehensive investigations of Representative Payees, the
persons designated to receive social security benefits for another.

SSA needs to place sufficient staff as well as technology in
field offices and teleservice centers across America if it is to
put the customer first and restore confidence in Social Security.
Recent staffing figures show that only half of SSA's employees are
engaged in providing direct contact service to the public. More
automation and the handling of all operations at the local level
will mean that SSA can eliminate overhead functions and reallocate
staff to the field where Social Security can give the public the
full measure of personal service they have paid for and rightfully
expect. In this way, SSA can answer the President's call for a new
customer service contract with the American people -- a guarantee
of effective, efficient and responsive government.

For too long we have emphasized the need for efficiency,
measured narrowly in terms of processing times of specific
workloads, at the expense of effectiveness. Now is the time to
restore a balance between the two. We need to restore and improve
the ability of our community based offices and teleservice centers
to handle all our duties responsively and responsibly.

In addition, no vision of SSA better serving the public today
and tomorrow will be achieved if we do not improve training for our
employees — "invest in people," in the President's words.

Social Security programs have become increasingly complex over
the years, yet training time for employees has been reduced.
Claims Representatives who received 13 weeks of training six years
ago now receive only about eight weeks in many regions. We have
supervisors who have not received the basic training mandated for
all government employees promoted into supervisory positions.
Although strides have been made by SSA in piloting a mid-level
management workshop, many managers have still not received this
basic training. Across-the-board government-wide budget cuts in

recent years have hit our training funds hard. Commissioner King
had to chose between funding travel to serve Americans in remote
locations and funding travel for training.

As new legislation, regulations, policies, and automation
necessitate training, supervisors in each field office and
teleservice center have to prepare and deliver their own training
when training travel funds were not available for offsite sessions.
One region is conducting an innovative and effective training
technique which could be expanded to others. Trainers come
together, prepare training and handouts, and then travel to the
offices closest to their homes to deliver the training. In this
way, supervisors share the burden of training, handouts are much
more effectively prepared, and a uniform message is disseminated.

There are many examples of labor-intensive but very important
work which cannot be significantly assisted by automation and must
be performed by trained employees. Continuing Disability Reviews
(CDRs) are the methods by which SSA is supposed to ensure that
individuals receiving these benefits remain entitled to them. We
have had to put these reviews aside simply because all of our
employees are working to keep the new disability claims moving.
CDR backlogs reached over one million cases this year.
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Program costs from not conducting CDRs are far greater than
what it would cost administratively to do them correctly. One
additional person in a field office could conduct at least 15 CDR
interviews each week. If each field office were staffed with one
additional person, the CDR backlog of one million cases could be
interviewed within a year. If a similar investment were made in
state DDS staff, we could eliminate the backlog and ensure that
backlogs do not recur. This is a case where a cost-saving
investment in people is needed to protect the trust funds from
misspending and preserve the integrity of the disability rolls.

SSHA's vision of the future has at its core enhanced community
based field offices and teleservice centers providing all of SSA's
services to the public. We must meet the challenge of the future
by combining the efficiency of automation with the effectiveness of
personal service in the community, where Americans want and need us
to be

.

POSITIVE CHANGE HAS ALREADY BEGUN IN THE FIELD

Vice President Gore introduced the NPR report with the
statement that it is about historic change in the way government
operates. There are myriad possibilities for change and
improvement built on the foundation of community-based service.

We have already mentioned here two overdue changes: moving
more well-trained people to the front lines to deal directly with
the public and bringing state-of-the-art technology to those front
line employees in order to perform every process more quickly and,
in most cases, to completion.

Yet even in the absence of adequate staff and up-to-date
computers, field office teams are pushing for positive changes by
reinventing and streamlining processes as much as possible within
the limited authority granted them. We are able to identify and
draw upon the community resources around us. We know our
communities and how they can help us serve them better. We enlist
their help every day.

In California, for example, several offices work so well with
community groups that the groups become an extension of the office.
One office trains community group members on the application
process as well as on basic eligibility issues. These people then
have standing appointment times and they come in with claimants,
their medical records, and all paper work fully and accurately
completed. While it would be better if we had enough staff to
handle this correctly, we see this as empowering the community -

steering rather than rowing.

Throughout the country, whenever allowed to do so, local
managers hire economically disadvantaged students from nearby
schools to work for SSA part-time during the school year and full-
time during vacations. In addition to easing the clerical burden in
the office, the program often makes it possible for these students
to continue their education. It is a WIN-WIN situation — for SSA,
for the Stay-in-School employee, and for the community.

Addressing the Disability Crisis:

As an agency, SSA began long before the NPR initiative to
search for a solution to the disability crisis. In an effort to
re-engineer our disability processes, SSA is running pilot
programs. SSMA is enthusiastic about these pilots — particularly
the disability specialist in the local field offices — and
eagerly awaits the results. It is apparent, however, that without
an infusion of staff, we will not be able to keep pace with the
rapidly rising disability backlogs. We cannot stand by and wait
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for new processes, automation, and staff to become available. In
local offices across the country, management teams are trying
different methods to both reach prospective disability claimants
and to process their claims more quickly with the present
resources.

Improving Disability Process

In Rhode Island, one office reduces the long time that a
claimant has to wait to receive a decision on their disability
claim by working in conjunction with the R.I. Disability
Determination Service (DDS) and the Regional Office to enlist the
claimant's help in obtaining the needed medical evidence for their
claim. The claimant is asked to hand carry a request for medical
records to their doctor/hospitals. About 80 percent of our
disability claimants choose to participate. An outstationed DDS
examiner in this office makes decisions on cases with sufficient
medical evidence at the time the claim is taken. Computer hook-ups
between the State DDS and the field office facilitate this pilot.
Despite an increase in total number of claims processed, the
average overall processing time for initial disability cases fell
40 days, from 114 in September of 1992 to 74 days in September of
1993. .

In Massachusetts, a field office developed an outstanding
relationship with Memorial Hospital and UMASS Medical Center, which
now sets up appointments for disability claims taken on site and
provides needed medical evidence.

A Seattle office has set up a liaison with the school district
for school resource teachers automatically to provide school
records for DDS medical decisions. DDS had been routinely sending
Functional Assessment Questionnaires to teachers to fill out. The
local office provided a supply of forms and worked out procedures
for the teachers to provide this information at the front-end of
the process, thus speeding up the disability decision, and saving
time for DDS.

Also in Seattle, one office works with the county Health Dept.
to facilitate claims processing for AIDS cases. The Health Dept.
assists in completing medical forms and applications to save the
person another contact. They also alert the field office to
terminally ill or presumptive disability applicants.

Improving Disability Outreach

In Indianapolis, the field office works with Marion County
Public Aid to get Children in Need of Services (CHINS) on the SSI
disability roles. A Claims Representative goes to the Public Aid
offices twice a week to work with the case workers to identify
potentially eligible children, enabling the county to do more for
these abandoned children.

In Minnesota, a "Low Birth Weight" procedure was established
with the neonatal clinic of a local hospital. The initial purpose
was to identify infants born weighing under 2 pounds and refer the
parents to SSA to discuss possibly filing for SSI. In fact, the
hospital is referring these infants as well as larger ones with
other disabilities, averaging about two referrals per week.

In Milwaukee, as part of the SSI Outreach program, special
arrangements are made for taking claims for children in Foster Care
programs in Milwaukee County. These children are in very
transitory situations, with little connection to traditional areas
(stable school environment, etc.) through which they would normally
be reached. Because they are children, they could easily miss out
on SSI eligibility because no individual adult is closely watching
out on their behalf. Normally, securing a safe place for them to
live is the only goal of social workers. However, now an SSA
claims representative is outstationed at the Milwaukee County
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Department of Social Services (DSS) to facilitate foster care file
reviews and contacts with foster parents to obtain all information
needed for a claim. Since 1991, the outstationed claims
representative has taken 700 applications, with over 500 children
in foster care subsequently becoming entitled to SSI benefits and
automatic health insurance coverage under Medicaid.

Imagine how much more we could do with fully automated, fully
staffed local field offices and teleservice centers: The
disability claimant arrives at his local Social Security office and
begins his claim for benefits. The claims representative inputs
the entitlement data into the computer. Corrections to work
history are made online and we proceed to the disability process.
The medical condition input generates a disease specific series of
questions. Upon completion of this series a vocational series of
questions is similarly generated. Finally, sources for medical
evidence are entered, and this in turn generates disease specific
and vocational specific requests for information. At the
conclusion of the interview, the medical requests are made
electronically to local hospitals and doctors. The response may
come back by FAX, Voice Mail or imaging for incorporation into the
record. A disability adjudicator (whether in the field office or
the state DDS) reviews the electronic screens and makes a
determination. And, if the claimant brings his medical records the
day he files, a decision can be reached that day. By making
correct decisions early, at the initial interview, we can avoid the
costly appeals system and reduce the load on the state DDS at the
same time.

LOCAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

We applaud the NPR's push to delegate authority for budget,
personnel, and procurement to the managers who manage the employees
on the front lines. SSMA has been requesting this authority, which
we call Local Resource Management (LRM) for years. Traditionally,
these types of decisions at SSA have been made many miles away from
the local office. SSA now has an LRM pilot program which began in
the Boston and Philadelphia regions, was expanded to four more
regions, and soon will be in all ten regions.

Those managers who have so far received LRM authority under
the pilot program report very positive results. The local manager
is given a budget and the authority to reprogram dollars from one
category to another to meet the needs of the office and get the
most value for dollars spent. Here are some examples of what field
offices have been able to do when given even a little flexibility
under LRM:

A manager purchased better quality photocopy paper for less
than one half of the price demanded by the usual government supply
process. The money saved was used to train office employees in
life-saving cardio-pulmonary resuscitation techniques.

By reprogramming a few dollars from the limited budget
categories, a manager was able to send 8 employees to a one day
Customer Excellence seminar held by Indiana University. This
course stressed the need to always keep our customers in the
forefront of goals.

- A manager was able to purchase high quality office furniture at
25 percent of its actual value from a local business which was
liquidating its assets.

- Management teams have been able to budget overtime hours to
ensure that we work when the need is greatest, not just when
overtime money is made available.

- A manager was able to reprogram money from "supplies" to a

depleted travel budget to allow employees to man a booth at a
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native American Indian Health Fair/POW WOW in order to build trust
with this native American population.

Under LRM, local managers are constantly aware of every dollar
spent. We are prepared to make difficult decisions every day,
knowing that in a tight budget time such as this, these decisions
have to be made at the local level if SSA is to continue its
service with reduced resources. We understand and take very
seriously our position as stewards of the public trust and public
money. We look for the time that restrictions on procurement can be
lifted so that we can make even better use of these funds.

And if LRM was fully implemented, unnecessary restrictions
lifted, and authority delegated, SSA could eliminate "shadow"
functions — many positions at the Regional and Central Office
level which are involved in budgeting and expenditures when budget
decisions are made centrally. Those employees could then be
redeployed to field offices and teleservice centers where staffing
shortages are most critical.

Another positive aspect of LRM is that the money is spent in
the local community which the field office serves, saving money
while stimulating the local economy.

Local Resource Management, in tandem with an end to FTE
ceilings, as the NPR calls for, would give us the flexibility to
budget our money and be held accountable locally. We are aware that
we need better tools, financial management systems, to help us in
our accounting. Several such software programs have already been
invented and more efforts must be channeled in \.his area.

Reducing procurement, personnel, and leasing requirements
which stifle rather than stimulate effective governm.ent and
granting additional delegations of authority necessary to allow
managers tc make the full range of decisions on hiring, staffing
mix, overtime, furniture/equipment, and automation tools would
result in better government and much more efficient use of funds.

TEAMS

We applaud the NPR's move to decentralize government into
small work teams. Local' field offices and teleservice centers are
the closest to that vision. SSA's experience has shown repeatedly
that our smallest offices are regularly our most productive.
Community based offices have a flexibility that cannot be gained in
large centralized units. It is precisely because we are located in
and a part of the community that we can work with the community to
deliver the service they need.

Teleservice centers are an important part of the community-
based team. A community-based 800 number program would mean calls
answered close to where the public calls from and a close working
relationship between field offices and local teleservice centers
(TSCs) . SSMA would like to see as many co-located TSCs with field
offices as possible. This would facilitate "geographic
accountability." The local 800 number employee would have more
knowledge of the local community, local government (such as state
supplements for SSI) , and the unique problems and characteristics
of the community. They could be given more authority to handle
issues to completion. When the call must be referred, such as when
a claim needs to be taken immediately, the call could be referred
quickly to a claims representative in the co-located field office.

SSMA's definition of world class telephone service is more
than having your call answered by a machine that either routes you
through an electronic menu or refers you to voice mail. World
class service would be to have your calls answered by a courteous
and knowledgeable person who can either complete your action or
refer you to someone else on the field team who can complete it.
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COMMUMITY EDUCATION

Part of our "service" at SSA is that of educating the public
and building their knowledge of, and confidence in, Social
Security. In hundreds of locations throughout the nation, local
managers or field representatives are known as "Mr. /Ms. Social
Security." They are the people who still — even in the face of
growing workloads and decreasing resources -- make the time to
write the column for the local paper, do the radio shows in the
service area, give the speeches at the pre-retirement meetings,
represent SSA/DHHS and the federal government on special committees
and projects, show up at the town meetings of the areas'
Congressional representative to help answer Social Security
questions, stop-in at the workshops for the disabled, introduce
students to SSNs and FICA and other "adult" topics. They translate
the law and relate it to people in understandable ways. They make
it interesting and sometimes even fun. They educate, they inform,
they inspire, and they build confidence in Social Security's future— all because they are visible and active in their service area
communities.

In these years of downsizing, the degree to which we have been
able to deliver this message has been reduced. SSA employees
themselves, L.uch less the taxpaying public, are no longer educated
about the value of a social contributory insurance program. At a
time when the public is asking more questions and needs more of our
time, we are unable to spend time describing for them what they get
for their tax dollars. Field representatives, who traditionally
were out in the community, must now work in our offices to process
disability claims. This reduction in our community presence
contributes to the loss of public confidence in the program.

SSi-iA encorses the SSA-initiated Personal Earnings and Benefit
Estimate Stateruent (PEBES) program and believes that such
information going out tc the public is a positive step. However,
if we are to truly restore public confidence in the program, it
must be through the community based SSA employees. Last month a
field management team visited an island in their service area which
had not been visited in many years due to lack of time and travel
money. After addressing a senior citizens group, the team gave an
address to a group of school teachers on the island. The teachers
were impressed with the many benefits besides retirement that SSA
administers. They mentioned that they had been about to take
action to try to get out of paying FICA taxes because they had been
told by an insurance salesman that they were throwing their money
away. Follow-up work has been done by the office with that group,
and they now have a much better understanding of SSA programs.

We need to be there in the community, to talk to AND to listen
to our customers if we are to restore public confidence in our
programs

.

CONCLUSION

SSA needs to respond to the changing needs of our customers.
As our customers move, SSA may need to move existing offices. We
want to be where the people need us. Even for those who want to
dial us up on their home computers, we will be in their community,
waiting to handle the transaction. And we'll also be there to guide
the person who cannot read words (never mind computer language) to
a positive resolution of his or her needs. We can do it all. Let's
build on our record of success.

SSA's presence in the community and our familiarity with the
people who live there produces a type and level of service
unattainable by larger, remote, centralized processing centers.
Examples arise on a daily basis in our 1300 field offices.
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When a banking crisis resulted in credit union closings in
Rhode Island, local offices throughout the state were able to
ensure that benefit checks were paid just a day or so late even
though they were to have been directly deposited to the closed
credit unions — because local managers had contacts at the local
banks, the local welfare offices, and with state government
representatives. Although it was months (even years in some cases)
before the credit unions reopened, SSA/SSI beneficiaries/recipients
did not suffer because we, as an ongoing presence in the community,
were able to respond quickly. And we were able to respond to the
governor's request to run an emergency payment program in the local
SSA office for anyone in dire need. State social workers, state
police, and SSA employees worked side-by-side to provide this
relief.

When several midwest states were severely impacted by the
"Great Flood of 1993," SSA's presence in communities impacted by
the flooding was instrumental in insuring the continued timely
receipt of thousands of Social Security checks and direct deposit
actions. Our knowledge of and relationships with local financial
institutions. Post Offices, media, and other social service
organizations helped to insure that service, even in a disaster
area, was coordinated and effective. Local managers participated
in community forums and FEMA centers. Local staff insured that
callers and visitors were referred to additional agencies who could
assist. One office reported that their parking lot was used by
Congressional Office staff on a weekly basis to identify and assist
individuals impacted by the flood "because SSA was the focal point
for the federal government" in the eyes of local citizens.

Even though SSA is a nationwide program, the "melting pot"
nature of our country and economic/occupational differences from
region to region lead to unique situations and needs which can only
be effectively met via local offices. Unique languages, unique
issues involved in dealing with the homeless or impoverished or un-
educated, unique business structures or vocations (farming, mining,
etc.), unique relationships with state, local or non-profit
entities all require a presence in the community in order to
understand the issues, the questions and the problems as well as to
identify and implement solutions.

Someone in Idaho will not be able to communicate effectively
with a significant pocket of Hmong speaking population in
Wisconsin. Someone in New York City will not be able to respond
knowledgeably to an Iowa farmer's question about payment-in-kind
commodity distributions. Someone in Texas will not be able to
respond effectively to the needs of a homeless individual in
Chicago. Someone in Virginia will not be able to answer a question
regarding a contractual arrangement between a St. Louis based
sheltered workshop and the Missouri Division of Family Services.

These examples illustrate only a small part of the value
derived from SSA's presence in communities throughout the nation.
Our "being there" gives us the potential for responsive leadership
in the service arena. If we can show the American public that we
really do care — and combine that attitude with the ever growing
technological enhancements that allow more to be done faster in
field offices and localized teleservice centers, with fewer steps
in the process — we can provide the world class service to which
our customers are entitled.
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Mr. Running. Just thank you, for your testimony, all three.

Chairman Jacobs. Ms. Zelenske, I especially say to you that I

am glad your testimony is compatible with Mr. Bunning's and mine
in this session. That is refreshing. You may well have been right

before, I don't know. Mr. Shreve, Ms. Chatel, Ms. Zelenske, thank
you for your contribution to the record today.

Our last panel, National Council of Disability Determination Di-

rectors, our friend, Stan Kress; American Federation of Govem-
ment Employees, AFL-CIO, John Sturdivant; and the National
Committee to Preserve Social Security and Medicare, Max
Richtman. Stan, you are first.

STATEMENT OF STAN KRESS, PAST PRESmENT, NATIONAL
COUNCIL OF DISABILITY DETERMINATION DIRECTORS

Mr. Kress. Mr. Chairman, good to see you again. Our president
is ill and I got a chance to return as the past president and present
the testimony.
Chairman Jacobs. I was going to say you have had a little prac-

tice at this.

Mr. Kress. We appreciate the chance to talk about reinventing
SSA by implementing measures to revitalize and streamline its op-

erations. Our testimony today will focus primarily on the issue of

averting crisis in the disability program.
The projection presented by SSA for fiscal 1994 is for the backlog

of initial claims to grow to 1,320,000 claims by September 30, 1994.

That came from the budget presentation, while at the same time
letting the CDR backlog of cases continue to go unattended.
This doesn't mean that SSA is not concerned or not doing any-

thing about these issues. They have piloted and are implementing
on a small scale the CDR mailer process in 1994. SSA has listed

the Crisis and Disability Program as its number one priority, and
it is to be the first area addressed in the reinventing of SSA.

Requests for EDP equipment and software to facilitate the oper-

ations of the DDSs have been made. Congress has also indicated

its awareness of the problem by appropriating additional funds
above the President's request.

I would like to thank you for that. However, even with the extra

$75 million that will go to the DDSs from the congressional budget,
at least 200,000 additional initial cases will be added to the pend-
ing workload by year's end. With all this activity one might assume
that the problem will soon be under control. Unfortunately, that is

not the case.

The backlogs are going to mount during the next few years.

There is no substitute for having an adequate staff and sufficient

resources to process the workload. The DDS's productivity level has
soared to 260 cases per year from 160 just a few years ago. Addi-
tional gains may be made through the reengineering process, but
that is 2 to 3 years away.
The DDSs also need flexibility to manage our limited resources.

I have included a detailed proposal and justification for that con-

cept in my written testimony. I won't take your time to go into that

today. I am happy to learn that Commissioner Chater has just an-

nounced that she is going to accept some of those recommenda-
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tions. I think that is an indication that Commissioner Chater is

headed in the right direction.

Additionally the NCDDD supports the development and use of

improved technology. Improved technology will help, but it alone
will not solve the problem, and as a matter of fact a recent study
conducted by a contractor for SSA confirmed that that will not
alone solve the problem. We would, in spite of all of these things,

however, like to endorse the concept of reengineering SSA and the

disability program.
We offer a number of suggestions in my written testimony of

things that could be addressed in the reengineering process. I

would like to just mention three of the dozen or so that we have
presented in the written testimony. There are many options being
considered right now for splitting the disability claims workload be-

tween SSA field offices and the State DDSs.
You just heard a little about one of the pilot projects being oper-

ated right now. If that could be implemented on a full scale basis

with trained disability people at the time the application is taken,

with medical evidence brought in, perhaps 35 percent of all the

cases could be decided at the time the interview takes place.

In terms of reengineering, another radical idea, perhaps SSA
should consider adopting the OHA review standard for the DDSs.
Such a change would create more consistency between DDSs and
the OHA levels; and third, the use of doctors could be limited by
providing—having them limited to providing consultation on dif-

ficult cases. Why get them involved in every single simple case that

is addressed in the disability program?
Additionally, one of the things we have talked about is that we

wouldn't change the law, but maybe we ought to think about that.

That is another thought for you and Mr. Running to consider, and
that is, perhaps it is time to consider

Mr. Pickle. A change in the law in what manner?
Mr. Kress. Mr. Pickle, one of the things that we could do to solve

the CDR workload problem would be to limit the amount of time

that somebody is going to get disability funds at the time we give

them to them.
Many times we know people have a disability created by an acci-

dent or whatever on the workplace. They are going to be out of

work for a year or two years. Right now we put them on the dis-

ability rolls and the only way we take them off is if we do a CDR.
We haven't gotten around to doing the CDRs, so they stay on prac-

tically forever. If we said right up front you are going to get those

benefits for 18 months, they would know that they had them for

18 months and be prepared to go through the rehabilitation process

and get back to work by the time those 18 months were over.

I think we ought to think about some of those concepts. I see I

am running out of time. In summary, we believe in the concept of

improved technology. We believe in the concept of reengineering

government. In the short term, however, we need the staff and the

resources to do the work in the disability program in order to make
sure that the people get the services they deserve.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
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Chairman Jacobs. Thank you, Mr. Kress, and thank you for

yielding to Mr. Pickle.

Mr. Kress. It was a pleasure, and I still managed to get in under

5 minutes.
[The prepared statement and attachment follow:]
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TESTIMONY OF
Stan Kress, Past President, NCDDD

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, I appreciate the opportunity to appear

before you and testify on behalf of tlie National Council of Disability Detennination

Directors (NCDDD) on "reinventing" the Social Secunty Administration (SSA) by

implementing measures to revitalize and streamline its operations. Our testimony

will focus primarily on the issue, "AverlmR Crisis in the Disability Program", the

first of the three issues to be dealt with by this hearing.

The background iiifomiation you presented on this issue, Mr. Chaimian, is

absolutely accurate and goes to the heart of the problem. At the end of fiscal year

1993, 717,000 disability claims were pending a decision. This does not include tlie

one-million plus cases whose diary dates for a disability review have lapsed. The

projections presented by SSA for fiscal year 1994 is for the backlog of initial claims

to grow to 1,320,000 by September 30, 1994', while at the same time letting the

Continuing Disability Review (CDR) case backlogs continue to grow!

This doesn't mean that SSA is not concerned or not doing anything about these

issues. They have piloted and are implementing, on a small scale, the CDR mailer

process in '94. This process is designed to reduce the number of CDRs that will

need full scale reviews and deserves a trial. Tliere is, however, a danger that

claimants will "leani" how to answer the mailer and avoid a disability review. SSA,

to its credit, is testing and watching out for that possibility.

President Clinton asked for additional funds for the disabilitj- program in his

stimulus package. However, as you know, the fiinds were not forthcoming.

SSA has listed the crisis in the disability program as it's mmiber one priontyand it is

to be the first area to be addressed in the reinventing of SSA. Requests for EDP

equipment and software to facilitate the operations of the Disability Determination

Services (DDSs) have been and will be made.

Congress has also indicated it's awareness of the problem by appropriating

additional funds, above the President's request, for the disability program.

However, even with the extra $75 million the f)DSs will get from the Congressional

budget, at least 200,000 additional initial cases will be added to the pending

workload by year's end

With all of this activity, one might assume that the problem will soon be under

control. Unfortunately, that is not the case. Even with short-tenn initiatives,

released contingency funds, CDR mailers, EDP requests for the Modernized

Disability System (MDS), additional resources being added to the appropriations

bill, enhanced DDS productivity and the reinventing of the disability process; the

backlogs are going to mount during the next few years.

'Dcparlmcnl orHcnIlli and Human Scniccs. Piscal Ycnr, IV'M. Juslincalion or Estimates for Appropriations

Cointnillccs
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We ... SSA, Congress, tlie DDS, tlie Advocacy Coinimuiity and the public, really

need to decide the level of and t>pc of service that we are going to provide to those

individuals making application for disability funds. We must focus our efforts to

protect the trust fluids tlirough the CDR process and focus all our efforts to get there

as soon as possible. This means we will have to have adequate staffs and resources

to process. It also means we need the most modem equipment and teclinology

(MDS) to aid in the process and we need to re-invent and re-engineer the disability

process. It will take all of these and more to avert the crisis in the disability

program.

If I may, 1 would like to address each of these areas in more detail. First, there is no

substitute for having an adequate staff and sufficient resources to process the

workload. The DDS productivity level has soared to 260 claims per employee per

year from a PPWY (Production Per Work Year) of only 160 a few years ago.

Additional gains may be made through the re-engineering process, but that is 2-3

years away, according to those heading up that process. The 260 PPWY figures

have been achieved tlirough improved management techniques, short-tenn

initiatives, 1,191,711 hours of overtime and another 2,137,462 hours of part-time

employees. In addition, we used a great many temporary employees, for which I

don't have figures. To avert further crisis we need adequate, permanent employees

to process the initial and the CDR workloads Sufficient resowces and employee

numbers will avert the crisis.

The DDSs also need flexibility to manage oiu" limited resources. Tlie following is a

proposal and justification for this recommendation.

PROPOSAL

The National Council of Disability Determination Directors feels very strongly

that as competent administrators we must be provided with the flexibility to

manage oiu^ workloads. Hie following recommendations for flexibility are

consistent with sound management practices and with part 20 code of federal

regulations 404 and 416 which govern the federal-state relationship.

1

.

Provide full vear allocations, once a federal budget has passed . It is difficult to

manage without actually having a set money amount.

2. Eliminate workvear and FTE ceilings . SSA should provide advisory workyear

levels only and give the DDSs the discretion to manage our money.

3. Provide the authority to make EDP and equipment purchases wiUiin the annual

budget allocation . Tlie succession of second guessers within several components

of SSA add no value to decision making and only delay piu^chases. All EDP
purchases must be consistent with SSA specifications.

4. Distribute EDP money by the end of the first quarter . The existing process

significantly delays funding, which delays progress toward systems

implementation, which reduces productivity.

The budget process should work as follows:



1. Full year authorizations are provided to the DDSs as soon as possible after

Congress and the President pass and sign the budget.

2. Letters should be sent to all parent agencies and DDS directors with the fiill

authorizations. The letters would include:

• A prescription that sanctions will be applied if the DDS exceeds its

authorization

• A note that SSA will not be responsible for expenditures beyond the ftill year

authorization.

• A caution that at various times beyond the first six months of the fiscal year, SSA
will request the return of funds that will not be used for redistribution to other

states.

3. All existing reporting mechanisms would remain in place.

4. A list prioritizing all DDSs relative to approval of FDP fimding would be issued

by the end of November.

5. All EDP monies taken otfthe top of the DDS budget would be distributed by the

end of the first quarter

JUSTIFICATION

SSA is currently violating the spirit of 20 CFR 404 and 415. A review of the

summary of the final mles published on 05/29/81 reveals the following excerpts:

"The primary purpose of these regulations is to improve the quality of

state agency performance in following our adjudicative criteria and to

improve the timeliness of disability detenninations. These regulations

will afford the states maximum practicable management, flexibility in

meeting objectives ."

"The States will have control over management of their operation as

long as perfomiance is adequate under the standards..."

"Basically, our implementation approach is to specify certain

performance results and let the states perfonn through their best

management procedures with minimum federal involvement as long as

their performance is acceptable."

The regulations do allow for fiscal and administrative oversight, however, SSA's

current 1950's mode of central control violates the flexibility implied throughout

the regulations.

SSA is violating the wording of the regulation summary which calls for a

negotiation of the budget. The summarv reads as follows:

"Individual state budgets will continue to be negotiated on the regional

level . the objective of negotiations will be to detemiine a level of
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funding within available resources that twill be perceived by federal and

state officials as sunicieiit to meet standards and stated goals. The

negotiated budget is an integral part of the decision of setting goals."

There is no negotiation process All budgets are dictated to the states. In fact,

we have often been asked to change our projected and actual costs in order to

make them fit into SSA's planmng figure. Since the money amounts are dictated,

we must have the flexibility to manage them.

Additionally, the National Performance Review and all of the current literature

on managing and re-engineering indicates that flexibility and empowennent are

the keys to success.

All we are requesting is the ability to exercise the management skills that we are

paid to employ. This proposal jirovides flexibility while maintaining SSA

monitoring and oversight.

1 am happy to report that we have just learned that Coinmissioner Chater has

announced her intention to act positively on some of these recommendations. We
understand that we will receive a full year's funding figure with six-month

allocations and be given a yearly work year ceiling with the flexibility to determine

how that will be allocated, i.e., pennanent staff, temporary staff, overtime, etc. This

is a sign that Conunissioner Chater is headed in the right direction.

Second, the NCDDD supports the development and use of improved technology.

Improved technology will help but it is not the solution. To support this statement, I

would like to quote from the summary of the findings in a report of a private

contractor which SSA hired to detennine the effects of automation on the disability

process.

"In spite of extensive efforts to "tease out" the effects of automation

through regression analysis, the study concludes quite clearly that there

is "virtually no correlation" between the degree of automation in a DDS
and any of the three perfonnance measures. Although initially

disturbing, this appears to corroborate the process review findings by

the Office of Workforce Assessment to the effect that only about one

day out of the average 90 days per case is spent in actual processing

activity which could potentially be impacted by baseline automation."^

(A copy of the summary is attached to my testimony).

Thirdly, I would like to state that the NCDDD strongly supports the need for re-

engineering the disability program. We feel this process must entail looking at all

segments of SSA and not just the DDSs and the field offices (FOs). We also feel

strongly that the DDSs must be full partners in this re-engineering process and not

just the recipients of what is developed.

We are quite disappointed at the fact that SSA only included two DDS people out of

19 on the disability re-engineering project team. None of the 19 are disability

'Final Report to the Social Security Adinini.<ilralion. inronnalion I cclinology S> stems Re\ lew StafT. Rc\ lew and

Analysis of OfTicc Aulomalion Oiicslionnairc for llic Stale Disability Determination Services. June 30, 1993
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examiners, and tlie Office of Disability in Central Office has only one

representative In spite of these shc.rtcomings, we ofier a number of ideas to be

consiticrcd by the project team. First, however, we feel it would be worthwhile to

make some suggestions for the process;

1. The re-engineering goal needs to be a clearly understood . Such a goal

would set the overall parameters or scope of change needed. f"or example,

a factor of increase in the cuncnt production rate of 260 PPWY could be

used. A 260 PPWY level is less than one clearance per day per person in

the DDSs. The goal could be that process change is needed to the extent

that 1 .5 or 2 clearances per person per day are necessary to meet fiiture

workload demands (let the management and budget people set the target).

Selection of a universally understood goal will allow budgeteers, policy

people, and DDS administrators and staff to gauge the extent of re-

engineering needed and have a common understanding of the degree of

change needed.

2. A public decision-making process. This is a public program with state,

advocacy group, and legal community interests having ownership

interests. Some means to gather this input and reaction are needed to

speed clearance and acceptance of the initiatives selected. An open forum

to debate and get input on major changes is desirable. Something like the

process Congressional conmiittees use when they conduct offsite hearings

would serve us well.

3. There is need for a "re-engineering" lab. This would be a model site with

full DDS functionality and claimant focus groups under the management of

the re-engineering staff. It would test out significant new ideas that will

come forward and rather than speculate about costs and benefits of

proposed changes, we could gather this data in the lab under conditions as

realistic as possible. FDDS and DDSs are too close to the process and

have over-riding production concerns that might limit there effectiveness

in such a role.

4. Seek Outside Expertise. Ours is basically an adnnnistrative claims

process. Experts in this field exist. I'he Administrative Conference of the

United States (ACUS) has done studies for SSA in the past and likely

could suggest adnnnistrative |)rocess experts for this project. One course

SSA has used in the past is the Administrative Law School of The

University of the Pacific in Sacramento, California. They have experience

in consulting for large administrative claims processes in the workers

comp, administrative claims, the court systems and others. The contact

with them has been Glen Fait. 1 am certain these or others would be

available. In any event we need outside insight.

Now for some suggestions on what could be re-cngineered:

° Many options are under consideration for splitting the disability claims

workload between SSA FOs and state DDSs. One with particular appeal is

for FOs to focus their interview and eflbrt on requesting and obtaining

existing medical evidence before the claim goes to the DDS. If this is done
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by ail experienced disability expert, perhaps 35% of the cases could be

adjudicated witliout going to tlie DDS.

° Use national procurements for DDS systems, FAXs, phones, furniture,

photocopiers, etc.

° Redesign the DDS budget process to facilitate productivity.

° Develop a National Vendor payment system for all DDSs usnig individual

state fee schedules, vendor data and CE panelists.

° In terms of tnie re-engineering, perhaps SSA should consider adopting the

OlIA review standard for the DDSs. This is a "reasonable man" or

"substantial evidence" review standard whereby the decision made is judged

on whether it is a reasonable interpretation of the facts in the case.

° Since the standard of review in large part dictates the adjudicative climate,

such a change would create more consistency between the DDS and OHA
levels.

° Disability program decisions are administrative decisions involving issues of

SGA, medical severity, and vocational assessment. Examiners, not doctors,

are better suited to strike this balance in most cases. The use of doctors could

be limited to providing consultations on difficult cases.

° Evidence does not need to be read, analyzed and interpreted multiple times

"de novo." This is inefficient, duplicative work. Replace it with a process

where the evidence is read and interpreted upon receipt, resulting in an

"evidentiar>' finding" being made, entered into the system, and used at all

subsequent workflow steps.

° Have standardized fonns for the following questionnaires:

Activities of Daily Living

Pain

Fatigue

Seizures

Vocational (to prior employer)

Third Party (to friend or family member)

Drug & Alcohol Abuse

° Give more infonnation on what it takes to qualify for disability benefits to

those interested in applying. This might result in some self-screening and

eliminate some highly dubious claims, which must be dealt with nonetheless.

° Combine and condense the PR'I F (Psychiatric Review Technique Fonn) and

the MRFC (Mental Residual Functional Capacity) fonns.

° The Personalized Denial Notices (PDNs) are supposed to explain denials to

claimants in such a way that they will understand and accept whey they are

denied benefits They take lime and do not provide proper explanation to
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prevent refiling of claims. They could be eliminated and a good standardized

notice vvonid do just as well.

The following suggestions would take inorc ihan an administrative decision or a

change of regulation, i.e., an Act of Congress, but we feel they have value

nonetheless.

° It may be woilhwhile to consider awarding tiine-limited disability benefits;

i.e., in many cases we see individuals who are currently disabled but are

expected to recover and/or could be trained for other employment. If we
could give benefits for six months, a year, or more, along with requiring

vocational training in some instances, we could annoimce in advance when

payments would stop In other countries, where this method is utilized, they

have found that most recipients go back to work 2-3 months before their

benefits nin out

° The differences between DDS decisions and Administrative Law Judge

decisions have the potential for serious legal difficulties. A court decision

could result in the DDSs having to go back and apply ALJ-type decisions to

all those who were denied but didn't appeal. SSA needs to take steps to bring

these two types of decisions together before that happens.

Now we would like to briefly address the other two issues being addressed by this

hearing;

REDEFINING PERFORMANCE GOALS

SSA should look at proven methods used by other successflil retail operations

that rely heavily on consumer 'feedback for survival. Industry leaders have

always been sensitive to the needs of the customer. During a recent visit to a

prominent hamburger chain with a very successful track record of pleasing it's

customers, I was confronted with a customer opinion poll which targeted the

french fries.

Ihe survey was extremely complete; asking questions ranging fi"om the oil

content and the effect on taste to the nutritional value. I am confident that by

the time the data is compiled, the retailer will have valuable infonnation

which will shape the direction of the company. This kind of approach,

involving other users of the service could be implemented in Social Security

field offices.

Public opinion samples, even though statistically valid, can still be subject to

criticism. 1 he public perception can to some degree be shaped by the way in

which it is approached. People are expecting more from the agencies that

serve them If they have confidence that the information obtained would be

used to improve service, there would be greater participation and less desire

to make negative comments.

If SSA were to implement a feedback campaign, they would fmd out what the

public and to some degree the employees have been saying. People want to

be treated with dignity, courtesy and respect. Ihey want the same level of

service from the Government that they require of retail establishments.
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Armed witli this infonnation, SSA could design complete operalions around

the basic concept of "good, efficient service".

ANTICIPATING FUTURI: CUSTOMER NEEDS

The public seems willing to give up some degiee of local presence if they can

be assured of better, more responsive service. Much of SSA's field

operations could be duplicated in larger facilities with lower overhead with no

appreciable loss in service.

Recent system improvements would enable mega-sites to glean ofl at least

40% of existing work presently done m field olTices. Limited service offices

could still exist in most of the same coninuiinties as they are located today.

They would, however, cost less to operate because they would be staffed

with fewer employees, doing less complicated work and being paid less

money.

An issue that relates indirectly to customer needs is in the area of program

simplification. Everyone talks about the need for making the job easier. The

tendency is to cut too seldom and too lean. Major overhauls are in order to

streamline SSA into an agency that resembles a consumer-driven rather than

regulation-driven public agency. If the program administered by SSA were

seriously looked at and cleaned up, significant costs related to implementation

could be recouped immedialely Those savings could be clianneled back into

the ft-ont line at the field oftice level to provide the kind of service the public

is demanding.

In summary, 1 would like to reassert that we support improved technology but it

alone will not solve the crisis. The disability process is too labor intensive. We also

support re-engineering and 1 hope some of our suggestions will be helpful. The

bottom line, however, is that to truh' avert the crisis in the disability program we

must have adequate staffing levels and adequate resources to process the cases of

those individuals filing an initial disability claim, along with working the CDR
caseload

Thank you for the opportunity to present these ideas.
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Some of the findings are not surprising, but some are

unexpected:

I'^o In spite of extensive efforts to "tease out" the effects

of automation through regression analysis, the study

concludes quite clearly that there is "virtually no

correlation" between the degree of automation in a DDS
and any of the three performance measures. Although
initially disturbing, this appears to corroborate the
process review findings by the Office of Workforce
Assessment to the effect that only about 1 day out of the
average 90 days per case is spent in actual processing
activity which could potentially be impacted by baseline
automation. ^ /

o This also substantiates the importance of proceeding
ahead strongly with the effort to reengineer processes on
a broader scope and confirms tliat future automation, as
well as the reengineering effort, should focus on the
"other 89 days," spent largely in transferring files and
waiting for information. As tlie report states, "In the
case of medical evidence development, most of the DDSs
have yet to take advantage of automation to evaluate
responsiveness and direct requests to the more timely
respondents or utilize electronic transfer of records."
The Agency's reliance to date on projected savings in
minutes-per-case of processing time to automatically
justify all automation funds should be carefully examined
in light of tlie report's conclusion that "Without
structural changes, the benefits of automation may fall
short of expectations."

o However, the study did find a statistically significant
relationship between the quality of automation as
implemented in certain States and the productivity
measure. In the words of the report, "... there is a
performance improvement in automation if the system being
employed is robust and user friendly." From this, the
report develops recommendations on training, content and
user input for future systems that should be considered
in the development and fielding of the HDS.

o The study found that predevelopment initiatives were
associated with longer processing times; that mail
distribution and other management efforts to get cases to
examiners as rapidly as possible after receipt were
associated with shorter processing tiroes. One
explanation offered for this finding, which apparently
runs counter to current management efforts, is that the
predevelopment initiative was a patch to current
procedures which failed to correct or adequately mitigate
the fundamental process reasons for the backlogs.

o In anotlier counterintuitive finding, the study reported
that accuracy in the determination process is not
necessarily improved by greater involvement of medical
consultants in decisionmaking.

o Other management conditions which the study found to be
more strongly identified with performance success than
automation included performance incentives, productivity
goals and more extensive examiner training.

o Significant from the perspective of MDS development was
the finding that requirements for extensive examiner
keying of determination documents are counterproductive
in terms of all three performance measures.

o The most significant factors related to performance
success were found in demograpliic factors, such as case
mix, predominant medical conditions, claimant age and the
percent of non-English speaking claimants. The study
recommends that these factors be considered in allocating
resources among DDSs, and that they be used, to adjust
performance indicators and other management' information.
It also suggests greater use of such normative data to
develop and utilize management and adjudicative models to
improve performance.
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Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Sturdivant.

STATEMENT OF JOHN N. STURDIVANT, NATIONAL PRESIDENT,
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES,
AFL-CIO

Mr. Sturdivant. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am John
Sturdivant, president of the American Federation of Government
Employees, AFL-CIO. AFGE represents approximately 55,000 SSA
employees across the country.

I thank you for the opportunity to appear today before your com-
mittee to offer our perspectives and recommendations regarding
reinventing the Social Security Administration. As an opening
gambit, let me just say, Mr. Chairman, that AFGE supports the
concept of independent agency, and we also support the concept
very strongly of moving the administration account off budget.
As we begin the very difficult process of reinventing government

through its attendant agencies, including SSA, policymakers, lead-

ers and employees through their union representatives will have to

discard any previous notions of how government works and begin
a bold initiative that will provide the American taxpayers more ef-

fective, more efficient government at less cost.

Federal employees are as interested and concerned about the cost

and services that government provides as any other citizen. After
all, we are taxpayers, too, and we see the waste and inefficiency

every day. We are the ones who see the long lines in Social Secu-
rity district offices, and we are the ones who experience the inabil-

ity to ensure that the 800 number is answered.
The President has determined that agencies will meet various

customer service standards and that agency heads and manage-
ment officials will negotiate such performance standards with the

President. The Federal employees represented by the American
Federation of Government Employees who work at Social Security

stand ready to join in partnership with the administration to create

the changes and make the necessary recommendations to ensure
that Social Security meets its responsibilities to its applicants and
beneficiaries.

We see the increased opportunity to discuss with Social Security

management the more substantive issues of how the work is done
as an opportunity to jump start and encourage a tremendous res-

ervoir of employee creativity and energy that will have a resound-

ing positive impact on Social Security's operations.

As you will see from our testimony, many decisions have been
made that were contrary to the recommendations of rank and file

workers through their unions. It is absolutely imperative that the

administration listen carefully and work closely with AFGE and
SSA leaders in order to ensure that every change, every purchase
of technology, every initiative to train or retrain employees or to

assign them to new tasks is done with the ultimate goal of provid-

ing the best possible service for our beneficiaries. That is why we
see AFGE playing a pivotal, productive role in not only reinventing

Government but reinventing SSA.
We concur with the administration when it says that reinventing

Government is about right sizing, not downsizing, and as we have
told the administration on many occasions, having more effective
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and efficient Government will require, in many instances, increases
in staff rather than reductions.

For instance, it seems reasonable to us that if you have a seg-
ment of the Government that is producing or collecting revenue,
you would want more individuals performing those functions. Con-
currently, a program that touches and impacts on so many
Americans such as Social Security must have the necessary staff

and technology to ensure that the citizens receive prompt, effective,

and efficient service.

AFGE believes that right sizing SSA means that staffing levels

have to be increased. The Congress also believes that staff needs
to be increased. H.R. 2158, which was signed by the President last

Thursday, provides funding for 2,400 FTEs above the President's
fiscal year 1994 budget request level.

We Delieve that these staff are needed as a first step in address-
ing the SSA's current crisis. Certainly staff should not be further
reduced or offices consolidated before the SSA has defined its serv-
ice delivery criteria and measured those against the current and
future demands. No committee in Congress is more aware of SSA's
problems and its recent history than this one. No committee has
done more to solve those problems. I want to take this opportunity
to personally thank you, Mr. Chairman, the committee's current
and former members and your outstanding staff for your collective
service on behalf of the SSA program, its employees, and the public
it serves. This year's success in the appropriations process in no
small measure is due to your efforts.

The committee has asked that three issues be addressed at the
hearing today: averting crisis in the disability program, redefining
performance goals in terms of customer needs and preferences, and
anticipating mture customer needs. We have answered those in our
written testimony, Mr. Chairman. I see no necessity to try to re-

peat those here in the time allotted.

I will be happy to try to answer any questions that you may have
and thank you for this opportunity.
Chairman Jacobs. Thank you, Mr. Sturdivant.
[The prepared statement follows:]

76-832 0-94-5
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TESTIMONY OF JOHN N. STURDIVANT
NATIONAL PRESIDENT, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES,

AFL-CIO

Mr. Cbainnan, Members of the Committee:

I am John N. Sturdivant, National President of the American Federation of Government

Employees, AFL-CIO (AFGE). AFGE represents approximately 50,000 SSA employees across

the country. Thank you for the opportunity to appear before the Committee today to offer our

perspective and recommendations regarding "Reinventing the Social Security Administration."

As we begin the very difficult process of "reinventing govenmient" and its attendant

agencies including SSA, policy makers, leaders and employees through their union representatives

will have to discard any previous notions of how government works and begin a bold initiative

that will provide the American taxpayers more effective, more efficient government at less cost.

Federal employees are as interested and concerned about the cost and services that government

provides as any other citizen. After all, we are taxpayers too, and we see the waste and

inefficiency everyday. We are the ones who see the long lines in Social Security District Offices,

and we are the ones who experience the inability to insure that the 800 number is answered.

The President has determined that agencies will meet various customer service standards,

and that agency heads and management officials will negotiate such performance standards with

the President. If we look at every high value, high productivity workplace in the private sector,

such as Xerox, Harley Davidson, Cadillac, GE, we will note that there were two significant

actions taken in order to turn their situations around. One, they were in crisis; two, they

determined that all by forging a partnership with their frontline employees through their unions

would they be able to affect the change that is necessary to become highly productive. We
would submit to you that the federal government, and in fact. Social Security is in crisis. The

federal employees represented by the American Federation of Govenmient Employees who work

at Social Security stand ready to join in partnership with the Administration to create the changes

and make the necessary recommendations to insure that Social Security meets its responsibilities

to its beneficiaries. We see the increased opportunity to discuss with Social Security

management the more substantive issues of how the work is done as an opportunity to jump-start

and encourage the tremendous reservoir of employee creativity and energy that will have a

resounding, positive impact on Social Security's operations.

There are too many instances of employees having positive and productive ideas that

would have improved the agency's operations and being unable to present them because of

adversarial, confrontative relations between AFGE and SSA management. There are too many

good ideas and suggestions that lay dormant in the workplace because individuals have been

relegated into very narrow career boxes with no opportunity to breakout or excel. There are too

many good ideas that will make the workplace in Social Security not only a more humane, a

more caring, a more compassionate place to work, but will expand our ability to provide service

to beneficiaries. That is why we see AFGE playing a pivotal, productive role in not only

reinventing government, but reinventing SSA.

As you will see from our testimony, many decisions have been made that were contrary

to the recommendations of rank-and-file workers through their unions. It is absolutely

imperative that the Administration listen carefully and work closely with AFGE SSA leaders in

order to insure that every change, every purchase of technology, every initiative to train or retrain

employees or to assign them to new tasks is done with the ultimate goal of providing the best

possible service for our beneficiaries.

We concur with the Administration when it says that reinventing government is about

rigbtsizing not downsizing, and as we have told the Administration on many occasions, having

more effective and efficient government will require in many instances increases in staff rather

than reductions. For instance, it seems reasonable to us that if you have a segment of the

government that is producing or collecting revenue, you would want more individuals performing

these functions. Concunently, a program that touches and impacts upon so many Americans,

such as Social Security, must have the necessary staff and technology to insure that the citizens

receive prompt, effective, and efficient service. In spite of this, as you will see from our

testimony, although the workload has continued to inaease, the number of staff necessary to

manage that workload has been reduced.
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AFGE believes that "rightsizing" SSA means that staffing levels have to be increased.

The Congress also believes that staff needs to be increased. H.R. 2158, which was signed by the

President last Thursday, provides funding for 2,400 FTEs above the President's initial request

level. We believe that these staff are needed as a first step in addressing the SSA's current crisis.

Certainly, staff should not be further reduced or offices consolidated before the SSA has defined

its service delivery criteria and measured those against the current and future demands.

No Committee in the Congress is more aware of SSA's problems and its recent history

than this one. No Committee has done more to solve those problems. I want to take this

opportunity to personally thank the chairman, the committee's current and former members, and

your outstanding staff for your collective service on behalf of the SSA program, its employees

and the public it serves. This year's success in the appropriations process in no small measure

is due to your efforts.

I would like to briefly review the status of SSA's workload, its workforce and its

administrative cost.

In 1985 SSA had approximately 40,000,000 beneficiaries. Today we are approaching

46,000,000 beneficiaries.

In 1985 SSA bad approximately 80,000 FTEs. Today there are approximately 64,000

FTEs.

From 1985 to 1990 there was a 21% reduction in FTEs. From 1985 to 1990 there was

a 26% reduction in workyears used. (Workyear is the truest measure of the SSAs level

of effort.)

Initial pending disability claims are at approximately 800,000 <tnd expected to grow to 13
million by the end of FY 94.

Approximately 1.5 million continuing disability reviews (CDR's) are backlogged. If these

reviews and other improvements were effected, according to the Administration, $4 billion

could be saved during the 1994 - 1999 period. As you know $4 is recovered or saved

for every $1 spent on the administration of CDRs.

The administrative overhead for both titles II and XVn is .7% of benefit payout. The
private sector industry average for similar insurance programs is more than 12%.

4 Given the scope of its mission, SSA is amazingly efficient. For example. Giant Food has

approximately 24,000 employees in the Washington/Baltimore Metropolitan area. By
comparison SSA has only 63,000 employees nationwide to perform all of SSA's tasks.

The Committee has asked that three issues be addressed at the hearing today. 1) Averting

crisis in the disability program; 2) Redefining performance goals in terms of customer needs and

preferences; and 3) Anticipating future customer needs.

Averting Crisis in the Disability Program

Unfortunately, it is too late to avert a crisis. The crisis exists today. Applicants wait too

long and will wait longer in the future. Disability reviews are piling up at the rate of

approximately 400,000 per year. There are over 1.5 million pending reviews now. Literally

billions of trust fund dollars are at risk. Since most of the payments made in enor either cannot

or will not be recovered, action should be taken as soon as possible in that our savings will be

in the "cost avoidance" category. The American people do not and will not trust and support a

system that does not perform its most basic functions. Clearly, processing initial claims and

reviewing continuing payment cases are two basic functions.
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SSA disability problems cannot be solved in the short run without more personnel at the

federal and state levels. Both levels are probably at capacity where overtime use is concerned.

In the long run it is possible that re-engineering the disability process could save time and

money. However any such system is aLlsast two years away. If history and experience are our

guide, any redesign that could be implemented is even further away. Systems and/or automation

changes are generally looked to as a potential magic bullet. We now have an SSA study that

makes, as its primary point, that there is neither a positive nor negative correlation between

highly automated and less automated state disability operations in terms of productivity. The

report points out that approaches have to change. That is, it will do little good to further

automate the existing process. (SSA Contract # 600-92-0101)

AFGE is currently working with SSA in redesigning its disability process. Undoubtedly,

we will improve the process. However, we would caution those who believe that there is an

easy, effective, efficient, and most of all, cheap approach to administering what is finally a labor-

intensive process.

Former Commissioner King testified that it would take $iOO million to reduce initial

pending disability backlog by 100,000 cases. Therefore, if we have one million pending cases

at the end of the fiscal year and we seek to reduce the initial pending backlog to 400,000 cases,

which is higher than the historical backlog in earlier years, it would take $600 million. At

another hearing before Congress, former Commissioner King testified that it would take 5,000

workyears to reduce the backlog to a normal level. Please note that these resource levels dojiol

address the CDR problem. As mentioned above, for every $1 spent on conducting CDR's we will

save $4.

In summary, the longer we wait to address the disability program's problems with an

infusion of resources, the worse the problem will become. There is not a quick fix in the near

term and probably not in the long term.

Redefining Performance Goals in Terms of Customer Needs and Preferences

It is not new to AFGE's SSA members that previous management routinely made

decisions without seeking input from customer or client groups nor did they consult the SSA
workers who serve the customers and clients. We are working to change that. As you know we

have been testifying long and often about the problems inherited by the current Commissioner.

If only previous administration hgd listened and acl£d upon our advice. We were always

skeptical about the previous systems' redesign. That system has never delivered the promised

benefits. Benefits that were delivered were almost never timely. Clearly there have been

program changes that shifted the burden and cost to the public. The so-called "self-help" SSA-

3368 disability application form is a classic example. It placed the burden on the applicant of

beginning the application process and completion was lengthy and often difficult. Many

individuals are confused and intimidated by the form—to say nothing of the process generally.

Increasingly we are hearing of a growing industry of non-attorneys that are recruiting disability

applicants who arc attempting to negotiate SSA's disability process. The applicants are being

charged hundreds of dollars for a service for which they have already paid through PICA taxes.

As noted by the committee, the 800 number is another example of cost shifting.

Telephone lines and FTEs were removed from field offices. The 800 number experiences high

busy rates which go off the charts during peak periods. The result of the two actions has been

disastrous for the public and a morale destroyer for our members.

You ask the question how should SSA seek outside input so that it can receive unbiased

samples of the public's preferences where service is concerned. Also, how should the information

be used in the planning process? Of course the public's preference should be given enormous

weight. Arguably, Social Security is the "people's" program. Almost every citizen participates

in one of SSA's programs. We believe that SSA should use a private contractor to perform the

sampling of the public. The issues to be sampled should be developed by a team composed of

public citizens, advocacy groups, SSA rank-and-file employees and SSA leadership. The



101

contractor would then develop the sampling instrument which would be reviewed by the team.

Once the sampling instnimcnt is agreed upon the contractor would conduct a survey according

to industry standards to yield an unbiased and valid result. The public's preference should drive

the Agency's plaiming process. Every effort should be made to accommodate the public's

preference. As the agency develops a macro strategy and then seeks to implement that strategy,

the public and the team should be involved at every step to insure that the Agency's decisions

reflect what the public wants, and not what the Agency feels it wants to do.

If the SSA is to serve the public well, it must seek out the knowledge and experience of

its workers who have literally hundreds of thousands of contacts with the public daily. We have

a clear sense and appreciation for what the public wants and needs. The following are general

principles:

The American public wants SSA to deliver accurate, timely benefits.

The public does not want to wait an excessive amount of time for service.

There should be quick telephone response.

There should be personal access to local SSA offices.

SSA offices should be free from health and safety hazards and should be user friendly.

Office settings should assure privacy and confidentiality. Interviewing areas must be

private. There should be no monitoring of telephone calls.

There should be effective outreach. The public wants to be informed of benefits to which

they are entitled.

Anticipating Future Customer Needs

It is probable that the baby-boom generation is already placing increased demands on the

agency. This is reflected in the rise in disability applications. The disability program and many

other of SSA's responsibilities will continue to require personalized service. The move toward

centralization has served the agency's perceived internal needs, which were driven by a lack of

funding resources and staff. The program has moved dramatically away from the public. This

is graphically reflected in the massive closing of contact stations in recent years and the virtual

disappearance of field representatives whose primary task was to carry SSA's message and

services to the public away from SSA's fixed sites. SSA is abeady making maximum use of the

teleclaims approach. The truth is that many people prefer, and in fact, need to meet face-to-facc

with an SSA employee to conduct their business. There is no reason to believe that this will

change. The further we remove the program from the public, the less accessible the program

becomes. There undoubtedly will be a loss in public support for the program if the program

becomes more cenfralized.

In the future we believe that SSA should plan for:

Maintaining and increasing contact stations, enabling the public in remote sites,

institutions, etc., convenient access to SSA.

Maintaining a motivated, efficient workforce:

• Actively train employees and management to reduce stress.

• Less monitoring of work in ways which increases stress levels.

• Sufficient sf>ace in facilities to allow employees to work in comfort and maintain

claimant privacy.
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• Improvements in space design, such as front-end interviewing which is safe and

comfortable for both the employee and the public.

4 Strategic planning that includes the full and open participation of the public, beneficiary

organizations and the AFGE.

4 Public participation through hearings, town meetings and forums throughout the coimtry

to elicit input as to the type of services and levels of services SSA needs to offer to the

citizens in the future.

Unrepresented groups, such as the homeless, the poor, immigrants with language barriers,

etc., should be sought out for ideas/input regarding how SSA will service their needs and

concerns in the future.

Serious consideration must be given to expanding SSA's offices and services to meet the

public's needs.

SSA is already in place in 1400 offices and TSCs. Consider using them for additional

services such as processing of Health Insurance claims under a National Health Insurance

program.

^ Federalize the DDS's to bring consistency in decision making and allow better utilization

of resources between SSA and the DDS's.

Qosed door agency meetings to study office closings, "full service facilities," etc., cannot

continue. SSA needs to work with the public and the unions on planning how SSA
should be structured in the future.

Computer enhancements and training should be subject to full employee input and

participation to insure that changes meet employee and Agency needs.

Training courses should include employee planning and participation so courses are user

friendly and are guaranteed to enhance the employee's ability to do their job and serve

the public.

Major initiatives should be the subject of pilot projects before nationwide implementation

so that projects can be tested and altered if necessary. An example of poor planning is

the 800 number service which was initiated nationally without testing and which has

resulted in continuing service problems.

Congress and the Administration should not assign SSA new responsibilities and

initiatives without providing the necessary resources in staff, equipment, training, etc. to

be able to accomplish the assigned tasks.

Headquarters, Program Service Centers and Data Operation Centers should be maintained.

SSA and the union should meet in a cooperative manner to decide what role these large

centers should play in SSA's future. Parties should seek innovative solutions to erosion

of work. These facilities have trained experienced workers who can continue to do

valuable work for SSA. Employees can be used to relieve backlogs in other components.

There is a need to eliminate rigid concepts of work assignments, PD's, etc.

Public service should be assessed independently of cost. Only after standards are

developed should SSA analyze the amount of funding required to meet those standards.

Issues such as staffing levels, office locations, numbers of interviewers, etc., can be

determined after standards are defined.
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Funding from Congress should be sought to allow SSA a reasonable opportunity to meet
the service standards.

AFGE stands ready to cooperate and work with this Administration and the Congress on
reinventing SSA to become the premier public serve agency in our Nation. Mr. Chairman,
members of the Committee, that concludes my statement. 1 would be happy to answer any
questions.
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Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Richtman.

STATEMENT OF MAX RICHTMAN, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESI-
DENT, NATIONAL COMMITTEE TO PRESERVE SOCIAL SECU-
RITY AND MEDICARE
Mr. Richtman. On behalf of the 6 million members and support-

ers of the National Committee to Preserve Social Security and
Medicare, I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for scheduling this
hearing to assess the potential impact on Social Security of propos-
als to reinvent government. Our statement reflects the observa-
tions of our president, Martha McSteen. As a former Acting
Commissioner of Social Security, she understands keenly the re-

sponsibility and challenges at SSA and regrets that she can't be
here today due to a scheduling problem.

In fact, Mr. Chairman, she is on her way back from Indianapolis
where she addressed the Indiana Governor's Conference on Aging
yesterday.
Chairman Jacobs. It is very sad. She would probably prefer to

stay there.

Mr. Richtman. I am sure you are right. She mentioned that she
would prefer to stay.

In my testimony I want to make three points. First, the national
committee members support reinventing government if reinventing
really means responding to customer needs and desires in a cost-

effective way. If efforts to achieve savings are customer-driven, we
believe delivering quality service can go hand-in-hand with stream-
lining management.
We agree that a review of the central bureaucracy is warranted

and that layers of bureaucracy at the central level are, in fact,

staggering and hinder the organization in accomplishing its mis-
sion. Our members, however, would not support a simple arbitrary
staff reduction to fulfill some concept of reinventing Government.
At the front line of service delivery, direct service positions need

to be increased, to fulfill SSA's mission. A number of witnesses
have said that already.

Second, the Social Security Administration has been exemplary
by attempting to improve Government service at reduced cost. Dur-
ing the last half of the 1980s the Social Security Administration
sustained staffing cuts larger than those being recommended in the
report of the National Performance Review. I think, 17,000 were
beamed out, is the way you described it. Unfortunately, staffing

and budget decisions were based primarily on political consider-

ations and no survey of customer needs or desires seems to have
been conducted in advance of staff cuts. No allowance was made for

modifying cuts if service to the public deteriorated.

Third, the Social Security Administration is a long way from pro-

viding service equal to the best that business can offer. SSA must
start with the realistic appraisal of the agency's problems before
determining its staffing needs. As you know, there is a disability

claim backlog of over a half million new cases. There are over 1

million cases awaiting continuing disability review. We think that

the integrity of the disability insurance system is impugned when
persons who have recovered from their disabilities remain on the

benefit rolls. The public becomes incensed when they witness these
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cases and then they question the validity of the Disability Insur-

ance Program.
Other front line services needing improvement are outreach to

persons who may be SSI and QMB eligible, more timely response
on requests for information and post entitlement actions and reduc-
tion in busy signals on 800 number service calls, as well as the full

restoration of local office telephone service.

According to the National Performance Review report, 47 million

Americans interact with Social Security every year, and SSA has
a responsibility to its customers. Computer technology can lighten

the load, but no reinvention of government can change the fact that
carrying out Social Security responsibilities requires personal inter-

action between Social Security staff, claimants and beneficiaries.

We think that a major mistake occurred when the 800 number was
implemented nationwide. SSA attempted to rely on it as a sub-
stitute for direct contact with local offices, and that, I think, was
an inadequate and an unfortunate assumption. The 800 number
can contribute to superior service as long as Social Security under-
stands that the 800 number and local offices are essential to qual-
ity customer service.

Some individuals have no problem conducting their business by
telephone. Others, especially seniors, you know, do. A customer-
driven Social Security Administration will determine the diverse
needs of its clients and find a way to accommodate them. Only then
will it be prepared to deliver service equal to the best that business
offers and that government should offer.

We believe that Social Security can indeed reinvent government,
be part of it, but it must have leaders who understand the needs
of customers and sufficient administrative funds to accomplish the
agency's mission.
Mr. Sturdivant opened his statement with a plug for independent

agency, and I will close mine with a plug for independent agency.
[The prepared statement follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF MAX RICHTMAN
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, NATIONAL COMMITTEE TO PRESERVE SOCIAL

SECURITY AND MEDICARE

On behalf of the six million members and supporters of the National
Committee to Preserve Social Security and Medicare, 1 thank you, Mr. Chairman, for

scheduling this hearing to assess the potential impact on Social Security of proposals

to reinvent government. National Committee President Martha McSteen regrets that

a scheduling conflict prevented her from being here today, but this statement reflects

her observations. As a former Acting Commissioner of the Social Security

Administration, she understands keenly the responsibility and challenges at SSA.

In my testimony, we want to make three points.

First, National Committee members support reinventing government if

reinventing truly means responding to customer needs and desires in a cost effective

manner. IiefTorts to achieve savings are customer driven, we believe delivering

quality service can go hand-in-hand with streamlining management Our memoers,
however, will not accept an arbitrary staff reduction in fulfillment of some abstraction

called reinventing government.

Second, the Social Security Administration has been an exemplary
organization by attempting to improve government service at reduced cost. For
example, Soci^ Security staffing was cut by 21 percent and overall administrative

expenses were reduced below 1 percent of benefit payments during the last half of

the 1980s. These decisions, unfortunately, were based primarQy oripolitical

considerations without adequate consideration of customer needs. The agency
struggled to continue to fulfill its mission despite growing problems.

Third, the Social Security Administration is a long way from providing service

equal to the best that business can offer. The Social Security Administration must
start with a realistic appraisal of the agency's problems before determining its staff

needs. These problems include, but are not limited to, the urgent need to reduce the

processing time for new disability claims and to cut the backlog of current continuing

disability reviews. Other front-line services needing improvement are a reduction in

busy signals on 800 number service calls, restoration of the local office telephone
service, inaeased outreach to persons who may be SSI and QMB eligible and more
timely response on requests for information and/or post-entitlement actions.

The Social Security Administration and Reinventing Government

According to the National Performance Review report, 47 million Americans
interact with SSA every year. Social Senirity's responsibilities to its customers are

labor intensive. Computer technology can lighten tne load, but no reinvention of
government can change the faa tliat carrying out Social Security responsibilities

requires personal interaction between Social Security staff and claimants and
beneficiaries. If Social Security is to better serve its customers, the agency must be
more rather than less flexible in its dealings with the public. There is no one way to

serve everyone.

We would not argue that a review of the central bureaucracy is unwarranted.
The layers of bureaucracy at the central level are staggering and hinder the

organization in fulfilling its mission. The ratio of managers to workers may very
well need review. At the front-line of service delivery, however, direa public service

positions need to be Increased, not further reduced, to fulfill SSA's mission.

Staff Cuts in the Past

Those who believe that government-wide personnel reductions can be
achieved—and we are among them—should keep in mind that the Social Security

Administration has already sustained cuts larger than those being recommended in

the Report of the National Performance Review. Staffing cuts made in the 1980s
unfortunately affeaed direa service delivery in local offices and largely ignored the

vast layers of bureaucracy in the headquarters offices.

No survey of customer needs or desires was conducted in advance of staff

cuts. No allowance was made for modifying the cuts if service to the public

deteriorated. The computer technology which was to make the cuts achievable was
not realized. A prohibition against replacing per.sons who resigned or retired created

los.ses in the wrong places and wrong job categories. Funds for job retraining were
cut and, even if additional training funds had been available, staff shortages limited

the ability of managers to schedule staff training. Waiting lines grew in local offices

around the country and, because they could not be seen, more and more individuals

turned to the telephones hoping to receive answers. More people encountered busy
signals when they called local offices.



107

The Social Security Administration's response was two-fold. The 800 number
service was expanded and nationwide implementation was accelerated. Calls were
diverted to the 800 service by ordering the removal of Social Security distrirt and
branch office phone numbers and addresses from local phone books. Information

operators were instruaed not to provide any alternative phone numbers. Frustrated

customers attempting to reach Social Security were left to dial and redial in the hope
of getting through to the newly established telephone service centers.

In the face of these problems, SSA has inaeased staff modestly in the last few
years, but the budget has been an important constraint Given past staff cuts, it isn't

a foregone conclusion that additional staff cuts are appropriate.

Need for Customer Driven Solution to Problems

A typical example of the current state of customer service is a letter our
organization received just this week from Mr. Don Young of Encino, California.

Mr. Young provided all pertinent information and asked a straight forward, simple

question: "How much will my wife receive as a widow benefit if I predecease her?"

Nine months ago he wrote an essentially identical letter to Social Security. In

acknowledgment of his Inquiry, he was sent a post card stating he would receive an
answer after the question was researched. He is still waiting.

When Mr. Youne was telephoned to ask permission to use his letter In this

testimony, he recountea another experience.

I^st February he visited his local Social Security office for only one purpose.

His step-mother had died in late January. He wished to report her death and return

her February 3 check. Without being given even a brief opportunity to state why he
was there, he was instructed to take a number and sit down. Forty-five minutes
later, he again approached the desk to ask couldn't he just return the check. Before

he could say a word, he was curtly told "We didn't call your number." He went to

the guard and asked if there wasn't some way to circumvent the number system and
return the check. The guard provided Social Security's 800 number. Mr. Young left

the local office, called the 800 number and was given an address for return of tne

check. He received no acknowledgment, but concluded the report of death must have
been recorded since no additional checks arrived.

Neither of Mr. Young's experiences represents government at its best

Nor does the current state of disability determinations and redeterminations

represent acceptable customer service. There Is a new case backlog of over half a

million pending claims with cases routinely taking three months for an initial

decision. A problem of equal severity Is the over one million case backlog of
continuing disability reviews. The integrity of the Soclcil Security Disability

Insurance system Is impugned when persons who have recovered from their

disabilities remain on the oenefit rolls. The public becomes incensed when they
witness these cases and they question the validity of the Disability Insurance
program.

The National Committee is not In favor of a new round of reviews resulting in

the kind of massive benefit terminations that occurred from 1981 to 1984. But an
accumulation of unprocessed disability review cases lays the groundwork for a
reoccurrence of that travesty. That Is a major reason why review of disabDity claims

should be routine and ongoing.

Another important reason, of course. Is that the failure to review claims in a
timely manner results in the payment of Inappropriate benefits. If nothing Is done to

reduce the disabllltj' review backlog, the loss to the Disability Insurance trust fund Is

estimated to be $4 billion between now and 1999. This is an example of how
employing sufficient additional staff to timely process the workload could be cost

efTective.

Requiring newly disabled individuals to endure excessive waits for benefits

while not reviewing the claims of persons likely to have recovered is unacceptable

service both to customers and to taxpaying incfividuals still In the work force.

The 800 number, on the other hand, can provide not just acceptable service.

It can provide superior service as long as Social Security understands that both 800
number and local office service are essential to quality customer service.
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A major mistake occurred when the 800 number was implemented
nationwide. SSA unfortunately attempted to rely on the 800 number as a substitute
for direct contart with local offices. That was an inadequate and unfortunate
assumption.

Some individuals have no problem conduaing the majority of their Social

Security business by telephone. However, persons with hearing impairments may
find it impossible. Others may be reluctant to Tile a claim by telephone. When it

comes to revealing personal details of their lives, many of Social Security's customers
want face to face service and, if they have follow-up questions or concerns, want to

talk to the person in the local office they have come to know and trust

Public service announcements of the 800 service appeared to have aeated a
new service demand. As more and more callers attempted to use the service, busy
signals became a constant problem. In response, SSA depleted local office staffs of
essential personnel by instituting intra-agency transfers. More callers got through to

the 800 number, but they were increasingly at risk of receiving wrong answers
because tele-service representatives were put on the job before they were adequately
trained. With the loss of additonal front-line staff, waiting times for local office

service grew ever longer. It became a vicious circle of dedining service, reduced staff

morale and, in many instances, resignation of front line workers whose workload
became overwhelming and frustrating because they could not devote adequate time
to the individual in need of service.

This subcommittee has rightfully insisted on the restoration of local office

addresses and phone numbers. Local office lines will remain essential. The 800
number also has become an essential service. More aggressive public education
efforts might deflect some 800 calls, but sixty million callers last year testify to public
acceptance of the 800 number for answers to routine, non-urgent questions about
Social Security. Nevertheless, telephone service is not universally acceptable for

conduaing all Social Security transactions. That, too, can be verified by callers to the
800 number. More than ten percent of 800 number calls were for information on
how to reach a local office.

A retired worker filing a claim for Social Security benefits could receive more
than $100,000 over his or her lifetime. Askyourself this question: Can you imagine
managing a financial organization and permitting telephone completion of an
application that could result in $100,000 paid out to an individual? I think not.

A customer driven Social Security Administration wUl determine the diverse
needs of its clients and find a way to accommodate them. Only then will it be
prepared to deliver service equal to the best that business offers and that government
should offer in an exemplary njanner. Social Security can indeed reinvent
government, but it must have leaders who understand the needs of its customers and
who have sufficient administrative funds to accomplish SSAs mission. SSA has a
special responsibility because there is a lifetime covenant between the worker and
government. In return for contributions, the government has promised to pay correct

benefits in a timely manner.
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Chairman Jacobs. It looks like it is all sealed up.

Mr. Running.
Mr. BUNNING. I want to thank you for your testimony and thank

you for the plug for the independent agency. We have got a vote

on, Mr. Chairman, and I am going to go to vote.

Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Reynolds?
Mr. Reynolds. No questions right now.
Chairman Jacobs. Mr. Pickle, did you ask your questions?

Mr. Pickle. Not yet, I have been quiet all morning.

Mr. Chairman, the National Performance Review Commission
Report is a very able document, and if we can carry it out we can

save a lot of money, but if we don't do it, we are going to be

laughed at again. That document doesn't make many specific rec-

ommendations about Social Security I don't think, but it does cause

Social Security to take an inward look at their own operations. We
have got to make some changes and we ought to do it of our own
volition.

Now, there are a lot of areas where I think we can do it, but
there are two areas it seems to me we ought to concentrate on in

this program, and one is the disability program. We know that we
are being swallowed up in numbers. That doesn't have to be. We
can increase personnel and we can change the way we are doing

business.

I noticed, Mr. Kress, you testified, made some very valuable sug-

gestions, and I am impressed with the fact that your State doesn't

have a big backlog on disabilities like a lot of others, because you
do something about it. There is no excuse in the world that we
would have nearly a million people backlogged in the disability pro-

gram.
It seems to me like we ought to have more staflTing. We ought

not to rely on computerization only, and we ought to change the

way we are doing business. For example, with CDRs, I don't know
whether we can put a limitation on the number of years a person

gets benefits without a reevaluation, one year, two years, three

years, but we do know that now once they get on disability they

stay a lifetime.

Mr. Kress. That is right.

Mr. Pickle. Because very few people come in and say I believe

I am working again, I want you to take me oflT disability. They just

don't do it. Human nature is such that that is not happening. We
must resume the CDR process, and I think that is absolutely nec-

essary, and I think that some of the States ought to be given a

chance to redo the way they are considering these cases, such as

the face-to-face interview.

Would you, Mr. Kress, approve the face-to-face interview?

Mr. Kress. I don't think there is any question that if you start

the process off, having a face-to-face interview with the claimant

right at the beginning, if you encourage them to bring in the medi-

cal evidence with them and you had a trained person dealing with

them right at the start, maybe a third or more of those people you
could allow them benefits that day with the evidence you had in

your hand after interviewing them. That would be a positive

change for the public.
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Mr. Pickle. I think it would, too, but I think we ought to have
some proof of it. I am hoping some States, particularly mine, have
a demonstration to show that that can be done, but the area of dis-

ability determinations has got to be changed.
The other area I think, Mr. Chairman, ought to be given consid-

eration is what is happening in the SSI program. I am told the big-

gest cost we have now, the biggest growth of all is the combination
of SSI and disability. They get on SSI, mainly through mental im-

pairment or whatever, and then after a time, if they choose, and
many of them do, they go for disability, and many of them get both.

Now, if that is the biggest growth we have got in the whole pro-

gram, we ought to give some attention to it. I just think we ought
to concentrate on that. I think some attention should be given to

both disability and SSI.

I want to suggest that we look into that in the future, Mr. Chair-

man. Thank you.
Mr. Reynolds. Mr. Chairman, I just had a really quick question

for Mr. Richtman.
Mr. Richtman, as involved in an organization that represents an

awful lot of people across this country, do you have any estimates

as to how many additional personnel will be needed to adequately

address the current shortfall in the public service positions from

your membership?
Mr. Richtman. I can supply that for the record, but just to fol-

lowup, and it is in response to your question as well, Congressman
Pickle, the National Performance Review suggests that $4 billion

could be saved in speeding up the disability review process, but
there is nothing in there about how much it would cost to have
adequate staff to, in fact, speed that up. And there are estimates

that it would cost about $2 billion to take care of that backlog.

It takes about $1,000 per case on average. There are some good
ideas and some pretty good numbers on savings in the performance
review proposal, but there isn't any funding in this specific case on

disability. To think that Social Security could just absorb that $2
billion is a big mistake because they have already absorbed too

much, and reduced staff by 17,000, as has been discussed earlier.

Mr. Reynolds. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Jacobs. Thank you. And we thank the panel for your

contribution to the record.

This concludes the hearings, cha-cha and off.

[Whereupon, at 12:05 p.m., the hearing was adjourned.]

[Submissions for the record follow:]
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Mr Chairman:

The Association of Administrative Law Judges, Inc [Association] is a

recognized professional association having the stated purpose of promoting
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Administration [SSA] and the Depanment of Health and Human Services.

This statement is presented by the Association and not by any individual

-2"! administrative law judge.

i'(Souih)<:05)*4i.5«l

DAVID HUBOARD
Director Region VI (501) 452^)137

Fl Smith. AR

ARTHUR STEPHENSON
Dircaot Region VII (41 7) 863.O190
Sphngfield. MO

JOEL ELUOTT
> Vlll i X (503) 326-3275

n IX (310) 5

RALPH ERICKSON
Director Region IX ( .

Um Angclei (West). CA

PETER VALENTINO
Direetor ot Leg.1 EJucntio.
S*n Diego. CA

PAST PRESIDE.NT

MELFORD CLEVCIAND
(205)2510.7273

PRESIDENT EMERrriS

CHARLES BONO
(816) 426-375S
kinuj Oi). MO

The primary topic for the hearing recently before you related to the

effort to "reinvent government" at SSA Several issues were raised within this

subject and this statement will concentrate on recommending proposals to

avert the crisis in the disability program

During the past several years, the Association has consistently

maintained that the SSA disability process is systemically flawed. The

Association has further maintained that the problems have a historical basis

which relates back to both poor agency management and faulty program

decisions, and that the current increase in disability claims has brought these

problems to the surface. These problems can be addressed only by substantive

structural changes which protect the due process rights of the claimants as well

as the public, as provided by the Administrative Procedure Act The

Association has addressed these issues in a statement prepared for the National

Performance Review A copy of that statement is attached hereto as Exhibit

A

The Association remains willing to cooperate with the Committee in

any way you deem necessary

Illy yours,

R</nald G Bernoski

Vice President



112

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES, INC.

STATEMENT OF THE ASSOCIATION OF

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The operation of the nation's Social Security program is in disarray In the case of the disability

system, which is administered by the Social Security Administration [SSA] and disburses billions of dollars

in benefits, pressure on the system is driven by the burgeoning caseload of claimants seeking benefits. Next

year, 840 administrative law judges [liereinafter "ALJs" or "judges"] are expected to receive 500,000 new

requests for hearing on claims already twice denied by the agcnc>', with no new resources to cope with the

increased caseload- Tlie system for claims adjudication is antiquated, inefficient and legally inconsistent.

Congress has enacted an excellent program which the agency has chosen not to implement, or has

simply undermined. The current crisis arises directly from two factors: first, the agency's unwillingness to

follow the law; and second, mismanagement of the hearings process. Tlie current structure of the federal

benefits system is unnecessarily multi-layered, cumbersome, and unable to provide proper service to the

public. At the hearing level. Judges have no input in terms of management of personnel and operational

resources, resulting in fnistration of the independent judicial fijnction. Standards for determining eligibility

vary from one adjudicative level to another, and vary geographically as well, resulting in unequal treatment

in what purports to be a nationwide program. The agency is constantly at odds with the judges who

adjudicate appeals from claims it denies, and tries by various means to control the judges, primarily by

control of staff and resources.

We propose that the system of claims adjudication be entirely overhauled. We submit that the

current crisis cannot be remedied unless two events occur: first, that the agency be required to follow tlie

law at every level of claims adjudication; and second, that control of the hearing process be restored to the

judges. We therefore make the following recommendations:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO REFORM SSA DISABILITY BENEFITS SYSTEM

A. Fundamental changes m the adiudicative process

1. Passage of the "Reorganization of the Federal Administrative Judiciary Act"' to accomplish economies

of scale, eliminate layers of management, ensure the independence of adjudicators from improper agency

influence, and streamline the personnel structure by replacing it with an efficient system with a lower

supervisor-to-staff ratio

2. Increase the number of judges to a level sufficient to meet the current workload crisis, together with

adequate support staff,

3- Require the agency to adhere to all provisions of the 1984 Social Security Disability Reforni Act, in

particular those requiring uniform standards of adjudication at all determination levels. It is the failure of

the agency to follow the law at the first two levels of adjudication [initial and reconsideration at DDS) that

puts the system into inevitable brcakdouii

4. Require the agency to discontinue inconsistent policies which impact adversely on the hearing process.

5. Improve the quality of appellate review of ALJ decisions, to provide for decisions of precedential value

and thus a uniform system of disability law

I

B. Fundamental changes in the disability program

6 Fund and require the agency to perform continuing disability reviews to assure that only those who
remain eligible continue to receive benefits.

7. Require the agency to implement and monitor meaningfiil substance abuse rehabilitation programs, as

well as representative payee programs

^Now pending in Congress: S. 486 and H.R. 2586.

Statement of the Association
of Administrative Law Judges
to National Performance Review
August 26, 1993
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8. Require vocational rehabilitation in cases where such rehabilitation is likely to result in a productive

work life for a claimant [e.g., those whose condition is expected to improve, or who arc disabled by

vocational factors rather tlian at "listing" level severity]

9. Reconcile the provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act witli those of the Social Security

Disability Act.

C. Procedural chanpes In adjudication^

10. Begin constnicting the hearing file at the DDS level, and eliminate redundant documents before hearing.

11. Implement face-to-face interviews at DDS.

12. Eliminate tlie reconsideration determination.

13. Implement meaningfijl alternative dispute resolution [ADR] measures pre-hearing and make better use

of the legal talents of staff attorneys.

14. Close the evidence after the ALJ hearing.

15. Streamline tlie decision writing process by, for example, providing for oral decisions from the bench;

entry of minute orders, or authorizing judges to order claimant's counsel to piepare a proposed decision in

cases where the claim is approved

DISCUSSION

A. Current Oreanization.

Tlie current field organization of the Office of Hearings and Appeals [OHA] of the Social Security

Administration [SSA] consists of approximately 840 administrative law judges [ALJs] who arc located in

approximately 140 hearing offices throughout the nation SSA administrative law judges are delegates of

the Secretary' of HHS appointed pursuant to the Administrative Procedure Act as independent adjudicators.

Tlie current head of OHA is an Associate Commissioner appointed by the Commissioner of SSA In brief,

OHA's current organizational stmclurc consists of

Central Office: Office of the Associate Commissioner, and Office of the

Chief Administrative Law Judge

Regional Offices: Ten separate regions throughout the country that correspond roughly to

the eleven federal circuit courts of appeals Each region consists of a

regional chief administrative law judge and staff

Hearing Offices: 140 on-site field offices consisting ofjudges, who conduct

hearings and decide cases, and support staff. Each hearing office

is managed by a chiefjudge and office manager.

Other associated entities are (I) the disability determination services [DDS|, which are SSA field offices

within each slate that adjudicate the claims initially and on reconsideration, and (2) the Appeals Council,

which is the Secretary's administrative appellate body and is located in Central Office. Tlic Appeals

Council reviews cases on appeal from administrative law judge decisions and makes certain policy

determinations.
,

,

B. Nature of the work.

Tlic majority of OHA's work concerns claims for disability benefits under the insured portion (Title

II) of the Social Security Act or under the supplemental security income (Title XVI] provisions of the Act

(42 use.) Tlie ultimate issue in a disability matter is whether the individual claimant suffers from a

medically determinable impairment that renders him or her incapable of substantial gainful activity for a

period of at least 12 months. To answer this question, a five step sequential evaluation process has been

promulgated for application at all levels of administrative adjudication (20 CFR 404. 1520 ct seq)

^Some of these recommendations have already been proposed by OHA. Only the
ADR has been actively pursued.

Statement of the Association
of Administrative Law Judges
to National Performance Review
August 26, 1993
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Such a claim may imdcrgo as many as four levels of administrative review:

I An initial determination by disability examiners at DDS. If the claim is denied at this level and

appealed, it undergoes .

2. A reconsideration determination by different disability examiners at the same DDS office If

the claim is denied at this level and appealed, it nndergocs...

3. A fomial hearing held by an administrative law judge, who issncs a decision that may become

the final decision of the Secretary If llic claim is denied atlhis level and appealed, it

nndergocs,

4. Review by the Appeals Council. A decision of the Appeals Council may be challenged by a

complaint in the federal district court

Current data indicate that few claims denied by DDS at the initial review arc changed on

reconsideration by DDS In contrast, approximately 75% of tliose claims appealed from the DDS

reconsideration denial are granted by the administrative law judge. Systemic problems explain this

disturbing disparity, an issue addressed below

In FY 1992 OHA had a record year: it received approximately 391,000 requests for hearing.

Tliese numbers continue to increase and the projections for FY 1993 extend to nearly 500,000 requests for

hearings which fiirthcr stresses the capacity of OHA to meet this work load. During this same period no

additional administrative law judges were lured and there were fewer support staff on duty. In October

1991 there were 860 ALJs on duty, this number had decreased to 819 by Febniary 1993 and only recently

rose to 840. During this same time period, the field staff has declined from 4,256 to 4,094 persons. Given

that OHA is the hearing level adjudicative arm of SSA, its work is labor-intensive and any reduction in

personnel has an immediate impact on its capacity to hear and decide cases. The immediate result is delay

for people claiming benefits

As we explain in fiirther detail below, the judges have continually risen to the cliallenge of

confronting the tidal wave of hearing requests. However, the recent unprecedented increase in hearing

requests raises alamis. The agency knows how many disability claims are filed, how many arc denied by

DDS, and what percentage is appealed ^ As the onslaught of work has continued, OHA has consistently

asked the agency for fiinds for more judges, more staff, and more resources. Yet most of these requests

have been denied To our knowledge, the agency did not allow OHA to testify' when it (the agency) asked

for a $300 million budget supplement in the March 1993 hearing on the President's Stimulus and

Investment Proposals Affecting SSA, before the Subcommittee on Social Security of the House Ways and

Means Committee. Indeed, OHA now operates with skeletal resources

Additionally, the pressure of the burgeoning caseload has resulted in such concern in the

bureaucracy that the highest priority is to dispose of cases quickly and get tliem out of the way; whether the

decisions are right or not is secondary. As a result, many judges feel tremendously pressured to issue large

numbers of decisions Judges are trained to issue decisions that are factually and legally sufficient.

Production demands such as those now being imposed by the agency make it impossible to issue a high

quality product that is fair, just, and sustamnble in the federal courts. Not only is this state of affairs

disheartening to the judges; the public and the people claiming benefits deserve better.

Data from the Appeals Council fiuctiiate depending on which era one wishes to study. In the past,

the Appeals Council and the agency, particularly during the iy80's, targeted decisions favorable to

claimants for scnitiny. In later years, as the agency stniggled with the decisions in the federal courts and

the conflict such decisions created with agency policy, the Appeals Council targeted unfavorable decisions,

often in an effort to "educate" administrative law judges by remanding cases for re-adjudication in

^In 1992 SSA received 1.8 million applications and initially allowed only '121.

Of the 58% denied (1.1 million), ABI (505,000) appealed. On reconsideration
17% (86,000) additional claims were granted and 83* (420,000) were denied.
Seventy percent (294,000) appealed to the ALJ level. Forty percent of all

claimants (721,000) dropped out before a hearing (595,000 before, and 126,000

after reconsideration). 1992 Green Book, H.R. Committee on Ways and Means,

Overview of Entitlement Programs (May 15, 1992), p. 61.
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accordance with policy while ignoring Ihe time-honored "substantial evidence test." Tlie latter program

increased the case backlog

C. Adjudicative Standard lsl.

Tlie agency guidelines for disability adjudication at the initial and reconsideration levels arc set

forth in the Program Operations Manual [POMS] In contrast, administrative law judges apply legal

principles to disability claims, and thus arc guided by statute, regulation and case law. These standards arc

not consistent and frequently lead to different results on the same fact situation.

More often than not, the inconsistency between the two standards is not reconciled. For example,

in the last decade, the federal courts have established important niles concerning adjudication of pain;

evaluation of treating phssicians' opinions, and the viability of substance abuse as a disability Tliese

standards arc not employed at the DDS level As a result, the DDS detcmiinations often require reversal

by the administrative law judge. It is this difference in standards that accounts for much of the backlog at

OHA and the high rate of reversal of DDS decisions by administrative law judges.

D The need for reform in the OHA administrative process

SSA/OMA and its adniiuislralivc law judges have a dccadcs-long legacy of conftict. This conflict

was exacerbated in the early 1980's, when the then-new administration instituted draconian efforts to

reduce the disability rolls, often temiinating benefits without a hearing. SSA administrative law judges,

applying constitutional and legal principles to disability claims, responded by reinstating thousands of

claims. Tins iciisiou bclwecii ihc "program" side of the agency and the "due process" side of the agency led

to the infamous Bcllinon review which led Congress and the federal courts to take action protecting

claimants.''

That tension remains unresolved to this day. For example, with the alarming increase in disability

claims, the agency's current agenda is to process claims quickly. In short, its primary goal is forjudges to

handle cases quickly, in volume, and in so doing to adhere to the "program" or "policy" established by the

agency. As one can sec from the American court system throughout the land, due process is, however,

inherently time-consuming, oriented to individual rights and needs, and not as expedient as agency

managers would wish. This is as tnic in administrative agency adjudication as it is in any court system.

Tluis, the need for speed and policy necessarily confiicts with Ihe need to assure due process for each

person appealing from denial of benefits.

The AUs and support staff of OHA have a long and proud history of hard work and service to the

public. In 1975 the average number of dispositions per adminislrative law judge per month was 16. The

staffing ratio was 2.9 employees per judge In FY 1992 the average per judge disposition was 36 6 with a

staff ratio of 3.35 per judge. This evidence shows that the judges have increased their dispositions by

128% while the staffing ratio has increased by only 15.5%. It fiirther shows that the judges have increased

their dispositions by 725% more than the increase in staff This is a remarkable performance especially in

view of the fact that the cases have become far more complex, more voluniinous, require the use of more

experts, have more lawyers appearing and arc more time consuming. Tins performance represents a

tremendous public service and contribution to the administration of justice. It demonstrates that the corps

of administrative law judges and support personnel of OHA are motivated by the highest professional

standards. But Ihc time has now come when more production cannot be squeezed from the judges

A historical review of OHA clearly establishes that the root cause of the conflict between the

agency and its administrative law judges results from Ihc agency's inability to accept the concept of

independent administrative adjudication, as provided in the Administrative Procedure Act [APAJ. This

conflict and controversy is well documenled. Congressional hearings in 1975, 1979, 1981, 1983 and 1988;

numerous federal court decisions; the recent study completed by the Government Accounting Office

(GAOj; and the report of the Federal Court Study Committee have clearly established that Ihe problems are

systemic These congressional hearings, decisions and reports li.ivc demonstralcd that historically the

agency has lacked an appreciation for Ihe role of administrative law judges as independent decision makers

within the agency The GAO report specifically found low morale among Ihc administrative law judges as

well as the support staff The background materials for the Federal Court Study Committee slated; "Such

tension is inevitable in a system which houses siip|)Oscdly independent adjudicators within a misoricnted

department."

''The inevitable result was a body of caselaw that varies from circuit to
circuit.
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In 1983 the Subcommittee on Oversight of Government Management of the Committee on

Governmental Affairs m the United States Senate conducted a hearmg which inquired into the role of the

administrative law judge in the Title II Social Security Disability Insurance Program (S PRT 98-111).

The Committee issued its findings on September 16, 1983. The principal finding of the Subcommittee was

that the agency was pressuring its AUs to make decisions approved by the agency.

The Committee further found that the agency was increasing the rate at which administrative law

judges were expected to decide cases (the disposition rate), thereby reducing the quality and quantity of

time that an administrative law judge had to devote to eacli case, and further lessening the opportunity for

the judge to develop additional evidence. Tlie conclusions of the Committee are set forth in part as follows:

"The APA mandates that the AU be an independent, impailial adjudicator in the

administrative process and in so doing separates the adjudicative and prosecutorial

ftinctions of an agency. Tlie ALJ is the only impartial, independent adjudicator available

to the claimant in ;''" ndminislrative process, and the only person who stands between the

. claimant and the whim ot agency bias and policy. If the AU is subordinated to the role of

a mere employee, an instrument and mouthpiece for the SSA, then we will have returned to

the days when the agency was both prosecutor and judge
"

In the case of Association of .Adnunistrative Law Judges. Inc v Heckler . 620 F. Supp. 1123

(1984), the Court found that the Social Security Administration had implemented the Bellmon Review

Program in a manner that pressured judges to issue fewer allowance decisions. The Court stated as

follows:

"The evidence, as a whole, persuasively demonstrates that tiie defendants retained an

unjustifiable preoccupation with allowance rates, to the extent that the ALJs could

reasonably feel pressure to issue fewer allowance decisions in the name of accuracy.

While there was no evidence that an ALJ consciously succumbed to such pressure, in close

cases, and, in particular, where the determination of disability may have been largely on

subjective factors, as a matter of common sense, that pressure may have influenced some

outcomes.

In sum, the Court concludes, that defendants' unremitting focus on allowance rates in the

individual ALJ portion of the Bellmon Review Program created an untenable atmosphere

of tension and unfairness which violated the spirit of the APA, if no specific provision

thereof Defendants' insensitivity to that degree of decisional independence the APA
affords to administrative law judges'and the injudicious use of phrases such as "targeting",

"goals" and "behavior modification" could have tended to corrupt the ability of

administrative law judges to exercise that independence in the vital cases that they decide."

Tlie recent report of the Federal Courts Study Committee addressed the problems in the Social

Security Administration Hearing System. Tlie report stated as follows:

"Recent experience suggests that the process is vulnerable to unhealthy political control

Tlie Social Security Administration has made controversial efforts to limit the number and

amount of claims granted by the administrative law judges, leading to widespread fears

that the judges' proper independence has been compromised. (And the Appeals Council of

the Social Security Administration lacks even the protection that the Administrative

Procedure Act gives the administrative law judge.)"

In a study titled Judges. Bureaucrats, and the Question of Indepenaencc . D. Gofer demonstrated

that management-minded bureaucrats and APA judges cannot live under the same roof and that the current

situation is a disservice to the American people

It should be noted that even the Department of Health and Human Services has questioned the

wisdom of having the judges employed by the same agency whose cases they decide In a May, 1981

Management Oversight Review Report on the Office of Hearings and Appeals and the Social Security

Administration, the Office of Inspector General found that the appeals process could be more effectively

located outside the Social Security Administration. The report highlighted the appearance of impropriety
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and the incongruity in having one arm of the Social Security Administration making the basic eligibility

determinations in cases while the Office of Hearings and Appeals arm of the Social Security Administration

adjudicates that decision It went on to question the wisdom of the arrangement of putting the Office of

Hearings and Appeals under the direclion of an Associate Commissioner because the Social Security

Administration staff controls the resources, space, equipment and supplies of the Office of Hearings and

Appeals which, if restricted, could indirectly control the number and quality of the hearings held.

Tlie fiindamcntal problem in the Office of Hearings and Appeals, as currently constituted, is that

the responsibility and accountability for the entire hearing and decisional process is placed upon the

individual administrative law judge, yet the judge has been given no authority to carry out this mandate.

Some years ago, a "managerial" decision was made to take away from the administrative law judge all

supervisory authority over hearing office support personnel, including staff allomcys, decision writers,

clerical support staff and typists. The result of this office configuration is that administrative law judges

have no power to expedite the work or assure that it is done correctly Authority for case control, resource

improvement and management has been given to an ever enlarging group of non-legally trained bureaucrats

who have no understanding of the concepts underlying the Administrative Procedure Act or the concept of

administrative due process. With respect to the current parallel rather than cooperative system of

management, we experience staff who are not supervised by judges but by others, who assess their

performance. Tlius, many times judges make requests only to find that they have been countermanded or

ignored by staff. Judges in sonic offices find that staff attorneys are ignoring their instnictions in drafting

decisions, resulting in much lost time while the judge makes the appropriate corrections. Tlie judges have

become demoralized, especially with the added pressure to issue a large volume of cases, because of their

frustration in trying to assure that their work gels done appropriately In many offices, this has resulted in

numerous iinheallhy byproducts which undemune the ability of the judges to do the work they are hired to

do: confiision, improper priorities, delay, lack of communication At the least, a work product of lesser

quality for this agency has resulted in more remands of decisions and a longer processing time for

claimants.

OHA also currently experiences much waste due to poor hiring practices, poor use of professional

and staff personnel, and inexplicable travel policies. For example, in response to a GAO recommendation

in 1989, the agency hired 200 new judges in 1990 and 1991. However, they were not placed in offices

according to workload needs. Rather, some new judges went to offices that were already adequately

staffed, and therefore when they arrived, they had insufficient work at that locale; while other offices did

not get the judges they needed As a result, judges from tlie overstaffed offices were and continue to be sent

traveling nationwide, at considerable cost to the public, to address the backlog in those areas that need help.

Another example is that currently, because in many offices staff respond only quixotically to judges'

requests, many judges type their own correspondence and envelopes and do their own xeroxing. This is a

poor use of professional personnel, who receive a much higher salary- than clerical staff, and thus the cost

of clerical work performed by a judge is a waste of taxpayers' money.

OHA has thus been plagued for over a decade with an inefficient management system. This

situation has resulted in a bloated bureaucratic sinicture consisting of multiple, duplicative, administrative

layers that respond to a centralized control process. Tliis organization has created a network of Regional

Offices which micronianage the field offices, which also have a local management team. Tlie only fimction

of the Regional Offices is to act as a fiiiinel for actions from Central Office, an unnecessary function

because modern comniunication systems permit Central Office to correspond directly with the field offices.

Tlie existence of these management practices has been documented by the 1991 Process Review Report of

OHA that was prepared by SSA This report concluded, in part, that OHA employees receive considerably

less training and fewer career development opportunities compared to other organizations within SSA;
OHA is faced with a variety of personnel and staffing-related problems, and the facilities, equipment and

fiirniture for 01 lA officcp are not always conducive to high quality work Tliat the hearing process is held

in such low esteem by the agency is illustrated by the fact that many OHA field offices are j ust now getting

fax machines installed, and the fact that they arc just now getting computers, the first of which arc assigned

not to the judges or attorneys who issue decisions, but to the bureaucrats who issue reports to headquarters.

With respect to micromanagemcnl, SSA lias of late been using the term "Total Quality

Management." Actual experience shows that while the agenc)' and OHA employ the term "Total Quality

Management," they do not in practice understand or implement its principles. Tlie essence of Total Quality

Management is horizontal involvement of the work force, with consequent investment and empowerment of

each employee. This principle is completely at odds with the goals of control and micromanagcment now
present within OHA. Tlic result has been an expression in favor of Total Quality Management, without

any overt attempt to implement the system

statement of the Association ,

of Administrative Law Judges
to National Performance Review
August 26, 1993



118

In addition, OHA has been impaired by inconsistent policies of other branches within SSA which

have impacted upon its ability to perfonn efficiently. As an example, the recently instituted Quality

Assurance Program has created an elaborate 22 page checklist to review ALJ decisions, which are

themselves frequently much less than 22 pages in length. Twenty-five judges have been taken from their

judicial duties to perform quality assurance review, another inroad on our ability to adjudicate the backlog

of claims pending. At the same time the SSA Workgroup on OHA Workload Issues has suggested that, in

view of the caseload crunch, judges issue short-form decisions and "limit editorial changes to initial draft

decisions." Tlie Office of Human Resources of SSA is simultaneously implementing a program which

replaces OHA attorney decision writers with non-attorney writers. Thus, while appearing to demand a high

quality legal product, the agency dtnir-; its judges the resources to meet the demand. Inconsistent policies

of this type, of other branches withm SSA, impact upon OHA in an adverse manner which is wastcf\il and

inefficient Tliese practices result in a poor quality work product, a waste of resources and delay for

claimants.

The judges have fought a long and hard fight to assure the integrity and impartiality of the

administrative hearing process. During the 1980's, when SSA adopted a program which attempted to

systematically deny many Social Security claimants administrative due process, the ALJs were the sole

force in the agency that stood up against this program and protected rights of the people appearing before

them. The American Bar Association [ABA] subsequently issued a commendation to all ALJs in SSA for

this public service. Tlie award stated as follows:

Be It Resolved, Tliat the American Bar Association hereby commends the Social Security

Administrative Law Judge Corps for its outstanding efforts during the period from 1982-1984 to

protect the integrity of administrative adjudication within their agency, to preserve the public's

confidence in fairness of governmental institutions, and to uphold the rule of law.

We submit that SSA has not sufficiently supported the APA-protected due process hearing rights of

claimants. Tlie SSA judges could not have performed their past heroic public service without APA
protection. Tlie need to continue a strong and independent judiciary protected in fact — not merely in

theory ~ by the APA is more important today than ever. Tlie agency seems intent on establishing a

disability program without independent adjudicators.^

Tlie need for systemic reform in the SSA hearing process is apparent. Legislative reform is

necessary to provide the claimants with an administrative hearing system that meets the constitutional

requirements of a fair hearing.

E Recommendations.

The Association of Administrative Law Judges therefore recommends that the SSA disability

hearing process be reformed by adopting the following changes which in many situations will result in

monetary savings and reduce claimant delay

1. Adopt the Reorganization of the Federal Administrative Judiciary Act. Tliis Act will reorganize

the administrative judiciary into a unified corps of ALJs independent of the agencies, and will

promote independence, efficiency, productivity, the reduction of administrative fiinctions and

provide economies of scale to better serve the public in the resolution of disputes. This

^In June 1993, an tJpdate on Social Security Administration's Planning Process
And Implementation of The Strategic Priorities set forth the following
timetable for estafclishing a hearing process without APA due process
protections:

FY 1993
Develop proposal for statutory and/or regulatory change to allow the use
of case adjudicators other than ALJ for Medicare Part B cases.
FY 1994
Revise policy and procedural material and establish senior staff
attorney position with magistrate authorities. Make recommendations on
expansion of the use of senior staff attorney adjudicators in titles .11

and XVI cases and Medicare A cases.
FY 1995
Develop proposal for statutory and/or regulatory changes to allow the
use of case adjudicators other than ALJ's for title II and XVI and
Medicare Part A cases.

I
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reorganization is required because the nature of administrative hearings lias changed. The hearings

now resemble Article III court actions with most respondents represented by skilled counsel. This

is a change from the classic agency licensing and rate-making model. Tliis development requires a

new system that will provide due process for all parties, without agency interference, without

inconsistent policies, and without misuse of resources and personnel. This change creates the

forum needed by this new imperative. Preliminary figures from the Congressional Budget Office

suggest the Act will result in tremendous cost savings.

2. Increase number of judges and support staff. The increase in caseload can partially be

addressed by reluming the SSA judges corps lo its 1980's size of 900 judges together with

adequate support staff -- not supervisors but persons who work on cases. This increase in

personnel will provide OIIA with the ability to reduce the processing time for claimants by

handling the cases in a timely manner.

3. Implement Social Security Benefits Reform Act of 1984 . Tliis Act directed the Secretary to

establish by regulation uniform standards to be applied at all levels of dcteniiination, review and

adjudication in determining whether individuals arc under disabilities. Tliis mandate has not been

implemented. Our best estimate is that if the agency required the same standard at every level of

adjudication, as required by the 1984 Act, the beneficial results wou'd be enormous: (1) deserving

claimants would be paid earlier; (2) there would be a 30% to 40% lower appeal rate to the hearing

level; (3) there would consequently be no backlog as wc sec now, and (4) the reversal rate at the

administrative law judge level, rather than being at 70-75%, would decline to approach that of a

true appellate system,

4. Discontinue inconsistent policies within SSA . Inconsistent policies of other branches within

SSA must be discontinued. These policies have adversely impacted upon the ability of the judges

to function efficiently and have resulted in lesser work product and claimant delay.

5. Improve quality of appellate review of ALJ decisions Tlie quality of appellate review of ALJ

decisions at the Appeals Council level should be improved to provide for a system of written

opinions with precedential value This change will create a system of law that is national in scope

instead of the present patchwork process Tlie disability law will then have consistency which will

provide predictability and reduce the number of cases that are now remanded after appeal. If the

quality of appellate review of the Appeals Council can not be improved, it should be abolished.

6. Reinstate continuing disability reviews . The agency labors under a crushing volume of claims,

without adequate staff to monitor the progress of any one claim. We are particularly concerned

that claimants continue to be paid for years, often due to the fact that the agency lacks personnel to

review the case, update the facts, and determine whether the condition continues to be disabling.

Judges often, in granting claims, request review in a 12 to 24 month period, but these reviews are

not actually done. Despite the initial cost in personnel time, we believe the investment in personnel

will ultimately result in considerable cost savings to the people of the United States. It should

result in returning some claimants to a productive life. We are concerned that given the finite

resources of the disability trust ftind, those funds must be preserved for truly deserving ftiture

claimants, and not exhausted simply because the agency cannot review the cases.

7. Substance abuse rehabilitation Largely because of court decisions and developing medical

principles, the Secretary recognizes thai substance addiction may be disabling in and of itself

While the disability program mentions the need for rehabilitation, many substance abusers end up

receiving benefits but no treatment Not only is this distastefiil to the public; more importantly, the

government often ends up fiinding at least a portion of the drinking or dragging of claimants We
recommend funding of a meaningfiil dnig and alcohol rehabilitation program, with strong

requirements for attendance, possible time limits for receipt of benefits, and close siipcr\'ision and

review of the claimant's disability It is also imperative to monitor the representative payee

program

8. Reinstate vocational rehabilitation Wc ftirlhcr recommend fiinding of a meaningfiil vocational

rehabilitation program Many claimants over time assume what is commonly knoum as a

"disability conviction," a stale of mind wherein one presumes he/she cannot be productive

Certainly the receipt of disability benefits without an accompanying rehabilitation program

reinforces that state of mind, and the downward spiral it engenders. We are strongly convinced
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that investment in vocational rehabilitation, followed by actual productive trial work, would

ultimately benefit not only the claimant but society in general.

9. Reconcile the statutes . We also recommend that the interplay between the Americans with

Disabilities Act [ADA] and the Social Security disability program. The ADA envisions that, at

considerable cost to employers, accommodations be made for the handicapped so that they can be

put to work. Yet the disability program finds many handicapped individuals disabled who would

otherwise be employable with accommodation required by the ADA,

10. Start constniclinp the hearing Re at the DOS level . At the present time a new file is created at

each level of the disability process This inefficient method should be replace by a system which

adds exhibits to the disabilit\' case file at each succeeding level. This initiative will save

substantial worker hours and money at the OHA level.

II and 12. Implement a face to face interview at initial determination level . The interview should

be informal and accessible to claimants. A uniform adjudication standard should be used. The

appeal to reconsideration at the DDS should be abolished because of the ineffectiveness of the

review at this level in the past. Tliis change will reduce the number of requests for hearings at the

AU level.

13. Alternative dispute resolution . We recommend broadening the means of resolving claims pre-

hearing, and expanded use of the legal talents of our staff attorneys. The goal should be to identify

meritorious claims, grant them without a hearing [and thus earlier], and free up judge time for for

difficult cases. Other possible means of pre-hearing resolution could include a summary judgment

provision when the issues are entirely legal and facts not in dispute.

14. Close record after ALJ hearing . The evidentiary hearing record should be closed after the ALJ

hearing is completed An exception should be provided for unrepresented claimants and for newly

discovered evidence. Tliis change will encourage attorneys to be more diligent at the hearing and

will avoid the numerous remands for evidence first presented at the Appeals Council or district

court level. It will also develop a doctrine of administrative finality, reduce the hearing caseload,

reduce claimant delay and save money.

15. Streamline OHA decision writing process . In cases where the claim is approved, the judge

should have authority to issue minute orders, rule from the bench, and/or order the claimant's

attorney to prepare a proposed decision for the judge's consideration. The psychiatric review

technique form data and attorney fee order should be eliminated and simply incorporated into the

ALJ decision, reducing the requirement from three forms to one for each written decision. These

changes will save substantial worker hours and money at the hearing level.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 26th day of August, 1993.

Statement of the Aseociation
of Administrative Law Judges
to National Performance Review
August 26, 1993



121

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT BURGESS
PRESIDENT, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF DISABILITY EXAMINERS

CHAIRMAN JACOBS AND SUB-COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

My name is Bob Burgess, and I am the President of the
National Association of Disability Examiners. On behalf of
our Association, I am pleased to offer comments on the
subject of "Reinventing the Social Security Administration."

We would like to comment briefly on President Clinton's
initiative to re-invent government. We believe that this
effort is fortuitous for the Social Security Administration.
It is difficult to believe that the escalating workloads and
accelerating cost coupled with deterioration in the amount
and quality of service during the past several years is
amenable to anything less than a fundamental restructuring.
NADE joins other Americans in advocating cutting unnecessary
spending and measuring the success of government programs in
terms of customer satisfaction. It recognizes that budgets
based on service outcomes represents the responsible
management approach. We have a particular interest,
however, in that aspect of re-inventing government which
calls for the empowerment of employees. We have been a long
time advocate of allowing disability examiners to make those
decisions which they can accurately make without unnecessary
and cumbersome bureaucratic interventions and overlays. We
appreciate the opportunity to comment.

AVERTING CRISIS IN THE DISABILITY PROGRAM

At current cessation rates there are still considerable
savings to be realized through full implementation of the
CDR process. It is difficult for the general public to
understand why funding is not available for a process which
will save more than it will cost. We strongly urge adequate
funding for the Continuing Disability Reviews which are
backlogged, as well as for ongoing CDR reviews. The cost,
in both economic and human terras, associated with inordinate
delays in processing initial claims is not so apparent,
however, it is just as real. A substantial portion of
monies in the disability program are now used in managing
backlogs rather than processing them. Cases which are not
processed in the most timely possible way accrue additional
and unnecessary cost. It is not possible, therefore, to
under estimate the importance of adequate funding for the
disability program. Over the long term, advanced technology
may achieve substantial results. This is by no means
proven, but because of the complexity of the program it does
not offer any short-term relief. Past efforts in this
direction, such as implementation of the "800" number, while
reducing local service, allows the opportunity to benchmark
unproven technologies.

We do believe that dramatic results can be obtained in
a relatively short period of time. We offer the following
suggestions

.

1. Empower examiners to utilize their full knowledge
and expertise. Examiners should be allowed the
professional discretion that hearing officers and
administrative law judges possess, permitting them to
make correct decisions earlier in the disability claims
process. An important component of this initiative
would be a total restructuring of the goal of the
medical consultant in disability decision making. The
medical consultant should offer valuable medical
knowledge and clinical experience on difficult and
complex cases. There should be no requirement for pro
forma medical review of claims which can be decided by
non-medical adjudicators.
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2. SSA's current re-engineering initiative should
undertake a top to bottom review of procedures,
benchmarking any procedural requirement against
customer satisfaction, quality of product, and
efficiency. Many of the requirements of the program,
some of them required by Congressional mandate, have
not been proven to add to the quality or timeliness of
the decision. All such procedures should be submitted
to scrutiny.

3. Decrease complexity in the decision making process.
Disease processes and their impact on an individual's
capacity to work are inherently complex. Over the past
several years, however, unnecessary complexity of
process has been introduced. These factors make
disability decisions more prone to errors; more
expensive since they require ever increasing specialist
input without any concomitant improvement in quality;
and decrease the public's capacity to participate in
and understand the nature of a process which has such
an important impact on an individual's life.

REDEFINING PERFORMANCE GOALS IN TERMS OF
CUSTOMER NEEDS AND PREFERENCES

We believe that the SSA's first step in improving its
records with customer input should start with its own
organization. Rules and procedures which affect the Field
Offices and the State DDS's are routinely promulgated
without substantial input from these entities. It is often
discovered that implementation of these procedures is very
difficult. At other times it is virtually impossible. When
SSA does request input from affected entities the time frame
given for response is often so short as to make meaningful
response impossible. The DDSs can be asked to comment on
very complex subject matter with no more than a few days to
prepare and mail a response. Once the SSA brings these
components fully into the decision making process, they can
tap through to claimant's which the Field Offices and the
DDSs directly serve. Other, well established, sampling
techniques would allow direct input from disability
applicants or other interested individuals. Any serious
effort to redefine performance goals in terms of customer
needs and preferences will mandate that these preferences,
once identified, must drive the planning process, not merely
be used in it.

ANTICIPATING FUTURE CUSTOMER NEEDS

The General Accounting Office has criticized the Social
Security Administration for not developing a vision for the
future. NADE does not see the possibility of such a vision
being developed unless Social Security is established as an
independent agency. The frequent changes in leadership,
tied to current administrations, puts those of us who are
assisting in the administration of the program in a position
of undoing initiatives that were done a short time earlier.
This stop and go approach to the disability program
squanders resources, compromises the quality of service, and
undermines public confidence in the program.

We are longtime supporters of full utilization of
appropriate technologies. In an information society,
organizations which lag behind in proce.-sing of information
cannot possibly succeed. On the other hand, the
substitution of unproven technologies for compassionate
human beings in a human service delivery program will
succeed even less. More advanced technologies are in
transitional stages and do not offer immediate help.
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A recent study, commissioned by the SSA, found that
examiner productivity decreased with certain of the
technologies SSA currently employs. No automation of the
disability determination services should take place without
full user input into the form that the automation will take.
Support for this point lies in the deterioration in quality
of Field Office disability background reports following the
recent downsizing which took the most knowledgeable
employees off the line; the upgraded modernized technology
did not fill the vacuum left by the departure of
knowledgeable employees.

NADE believes that for the long-term, perhaps
indefinitely, technology cannot substitute for necessary
human assistance to disabled Americans. Individuals who
apply for disability benefits are customarily out of work;
impaired, sometimes, quite seriously; and vulnerable in a
multitude of ways in which other individuals are not. An
experience with an unfriendly or hostile technology can only
add to their despair.

The disability program must provide an atmosphere and a
type of assistance which will ameliorate the difficulties of
disabled individuals, not add to it. It should provide a
timely , accurate , and compassionate decision. Subsequently,
it should afford these individuals, when appropriate, every
opportunity to return to full productivity. The disability
program must be transformed from an income replacement
program exclusively for persons with severe impairments who
can not work into a work assistance program for persons with
severe functional limitations who need support in order to
work. SSA should promote the concepts of independence,
productivity and integration into the community for persons
with severe disabilities. All such rehabilitation efforts
should incorporate safeguards against loss of safety-nets
such as income maintenance or vital health care.

This concludes our statement. Thank you for holding
this hearing on such a critical, timely issue. I wish you
much success in your deliberations.
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STATEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SENIOR SOCIAL
SECURITY ATTORNEYS

The National Association of Senior Social Security Attorneys
(NASSSA) is an association of supervisory management officials
within the Social Security Administration's Office of Hearings
and Appeals. We are presently awaiting final recognition as a
management association by the Department. Our member attorne/s
work in the frontline hearing offices and are presently facing
the largest increase of cases requesting hearing since at least
the inception of the Title XVI Supplemental Security Income
Benefits Program in 1974. At that time the expanding workload
and delays in processing called for innovative work processes and
creation of unique new positions to help expedite the decision
making process. These new positions included the hiring of SSI
Judges to adjudicate the influx of title XVI claims and reviews,
and the creation of the Attorney Advisor position to help the SSI
Judges and the Title II Administrative Law Judges prepare thair
decisions. Both programs were highly successful. The SSI Judges
were eventually allowed to also hear and decide Title II casss
and the Attorney Advisors were commended for their contribution
to management of that tidal wave of appeals.

Faced with case dockets that are growing every day, we are
acutely aware of the crisis that the Social Security
Administration is facing. These growing caseloads create long
delays for the claimants who are anxiously struggling to cop

a

while awaiting receipt of their benefits. We answer calls from
these claimants every day and understand and empathize with their
concerns. We support the measures proposed by the Administration
to help expedite the processing of the cases but feel it is time
to initiate significant new methods in case processing to handle
the explosion of cases awaiting disposition.

NASSSA believes that our proposals would fulfill the goals set
out by Vice-President Albert Gore in the Report on National
Perfoirmance Review. Vice-President Gore urges decentralization
in the executive service of authority over equipment, hiring , and
promotion . Specifically on page 23 of the Report it is stated
that ..."under this decentralized system agencies will be allowed
to make their own decisions about when to bire a candidate
directly, without examination or ratings."

NASSSA believes that two initiatives could be quickly undertaken
that would contribute substantially to increasing the disposition
of awaiting claims: the creation of an Attorney-Magistrate
position and changes in the procedure which OPM mandates that SSA
must use to select applicants for the Administrative Law Judge
position.
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A. CREATION OF A SENIOR ATTORNEY-MAGISTRATE POSITION

As early as 1979 staff attorneys in the Office of Hearings and
Appeals argued that the legal skills of the experienced attorney-
advisors could be better utilized if they were allowed the
limited authority to review appeals, hold hearings and make
recommended decisions to the Administrative Law Judges. This
proposal was essentially forgotten at a time when the workload
had lessened considerably. However, in the last few years, as
the number of cases on appeal has exploded, the proposal has been
revived in various forms.

Associate Commissioner Dan Skoler has signed off on a decision
memorandum that would permit designated staff attorneys to hear
and prepare decisions in small Part B Medicare claims (under
$5,000). This proposal has been included in the strategic plan
of SSA under the general priority "to improve the appeals
process." The Attorney-Magistrate decision would be subject to
Administrative Law Judge approval and signature. Commissioner
Skoler opined that this procedure would allow the Administrative
Law Judges to spend more time on complex cases and disabilit/
claims.

NASSSA has already proposed a Senior Attorney-Magistrate position
that expands the jurisdiction of the Attorney-Magistrate to
Medicare Part B cases involving claims under $5,000 and Title II
and Title XVI overpayment and waiver of overpayment claims wtiere
the overpayment at issue is $5,000 or less. As most Medicare
Part A claims involve well under $1000, these cases could also be
placed under the Attorney-Magistrate's jurisdiction. The
Attorney-Magistrate would only hear cases where the
claimant/appellant was represented. We proposed that all cases
meeting the above criteria would first be assigned to an
Administrative Law Judge and remain under the Administrative Law
Judge control if the Administrative Law Judge decided to assign
it to the Attorney-Magistrate to conduct an administrative
hearing. Any claimant/appellant who is dissatisfied with the
Attorney-Magistrate's would have 10 days in which to file
exceptions with the Administrative Law Judge. The Administrative
Law Judge would retain the authority to adopt the decision
proposed by the Attorney-Magistrate in whole or in part, reverse
the proposed decision, return the case to the Attorney-
Magistrate for a new hearing, or hold a hearing and issue a
decision.

NASSSA' s proposal would require amendment of the Social Security
Act and the Administrative Procedures Act so that the position
and the hearings would be specifically covered by the Acts. We
feel that our proposal will allow simpler cases to be expedited
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while assuring that a claimant/ appellant retains the right to
have their case remain under the control and review of an
Administrative Law Judge. We also believe that this process and
the prehearing conference program that has been already been
tested in the Office of Hearings and Appeals would be in line
with Executive Order 12778 of October 23, 1991, section 1(b) and
the objectives of Public Law 101-552, Administrative Dispute
Resolution Act, in encouraging federal agencies to use mediation
and other dispute resolution techniques to avoid or resolve
disputes. In July 1993 NASSSA proposed that the Association of
Administrative Law Judges participate in the formation of a joint
committee to work with the Attorney Advisors in areas of mutual
concern. We have submitted our proposed Senior Attorney-
Magistrate position for their review and comment.

B. ALLOWING THE HIRING AGENCY TO SELECT APPLICANT'S FROM THE
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE REGISTER CREATED BY OPM WITHOUT BEI MG
BOUND BY THE 0PM DETERMINED SCORE

Under the present system, applicants for the position of
Administrative Law Judge must go through the selection process
created by OPM, receive a score, and then be selected by an
agency from a roster of those scored most highly by OPM. This
centralized hiring process severely limits the hiring agency
which is only able to hire those rated highest under OPM's
selected criteria. The hiring agency is not allowed to hire
individuals who the agency may believe are most qualified and
most clearly meets the agency's needs.

Under the present circumstances, SSA is hindered in it's attempt
to hire Administrative Law Judges who have the most knowledge of
the laws and regulations that must be adjudicated by SSA and
those who have a clear understanding of the needs of a
diversified client population. OPM presently gives significant
weight to experience in litigation and little weight to
familiarity with the agency's -laws and regulations or experience
in the administrative law process. OPM gives little weight to an
individual's experience and involvement in the decision making
process.

Section 13 of the Disability Reform Act of 1984, Public Law 98-
4 60 directs that the Secretary of Health and Human Services take
action to establish positions which enable staff attorneys
employed by OHA to gain the qualifying experience necessary to
compete for the position of Administrative Law Judge. Despite
the creation of a GS-13 Supervisory Attorney position and use of
attorneys in the Pre-Hearing Conference Project, OPM continues to
rate attorneys working for OHA poorly in the experience and
qualifications sections of the Administrative Law Judge
examination. Thus almost all of the final ratings of OHA
attorneys are too low to qualify for the list of potential
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Administrative Law Judges from which SSA is forced to hire. The
process used by 0PM excludes from serious consideration as
decision makers those neutral case review attorneys who devobed
most of their careers to reviewing cases, drafting recommended
decisions, and advising decision makers. In October 1988 a study
by the General Accounting Office showed that OHA attorneys
consistently received below average ratings from OPM. We ha/e
seen little improvement since then and have little faith that,
even if the Attorney-Magistrate position is established, OPM will
give higher experience ratings to OHA applicants .

NASSSA supports measures that would decentralize the hiring
process and give the hiring agency greater latitude in the final
rating and hiring process. Each agency is more acutely aware of
that agency's particular needs as regards skills, experience, and
temperament. GAO studies have also established that the present
centralized system has resulted in low levels of hiring of women
and minorities. Moreover, as is the case presently in SSA with
the exploding workload, the agency needs to select individuals
who can quickly make equitable and speedy dispositions because of
their intensive knowledge of the law involved and because of
their experience as a neutral advisor whose role it is to carry
out the Congressional intent of the Act. The agency will also
have years of familiarity with the individual's temperament and
reputation for fairness and lack of bias so it will not be hiring
an unknown individual who may later turn out to have significant
biases when handling the economically and racially diverse
population that SSA applicants represent.

We therefore urge that, after individual applicants have been
examined and rated by OPM, agencies be allowed to hire from a

list of qualifying applicants without being required to sele::t
those with the highest ratings in the criteria that OPM feels is
generally most important. The agency should be given the power
to select individuals who are more valuable to the agency because
of agency specific experience which can be gained both from
within the agency or through practice before the agency. Such a
system would also allow the agency to create a more diversified
group of qualified Administrative Law Judges and expeditiously
meet the formidable task before SSA in the years to come.

This statement is submitted by the National Association of Senior
Social Security Attorneys. The Association is represented by the
following executive officers:

PRESIDENT: Demos Kuchulis
Suite 200, Yeon Building
522 S.W. Fifth Avenue
Portland, Oregon 97204
(503) 326-3275
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